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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I call Case 16 --

oh, I’m sorry.  You’re all set.

THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I call Case

16-W-0130, proceeding on motion of the Commission as to

the rates, charges, rules and regulations of Suez Water

New York, Incorporated, for water service.  This is our

third day continuing these evidentiary hearings and at

this time, I’d like to give the parties and their

representatives the opportunity to put in their

appearances for today.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Good morning, Your

Honor.  For Suez Water New York, Inc., the law firm of

Cullen and Dykman by Brian T. Fitzgerald.

MR. ALESSI:  Good morning, Your Honor.

Robert Alessi, D.L.A. Piper, on behalf of the company.

MR. DILLON:  Good morning, Your Honor.

John Dillon for Suez.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Good morning.

MR. DICHTER:  Joel Dichter on behalf

of Municipal Intervenors.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Good morning.

MR. LEVINE:  Bruce Levine -- party.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Good morning.
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MR. DOWLING:  Joseph Dowling for

Department of Public Service.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Good morning.  So,

when we left off yesterday, I -- we had the staff panel,

they had been sworn in.  They are still under oath and we

have in order next to cross-examine them, Mr. Dichter --

well, wait a minute.  It should be Mr. Duthie.  Okay,

we’re skipping him and we’re going to the next person in

order, Mr. Levine.

MR. LEVINE:  Bear with me just one

second.  Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. LEVINE:

Q. All right.  Good morning.  So the

staff panel supports a 1 percent main replacement through

this rate process.  Is that correct?

A. Yes, that’s -- the J.P. requires the

company to achieve 1 percent annual main replacement by

the end of the rate plan.

Q. Okay.  In the last 3 years, did the

company meet the same replacement rate?  In the last 3

years, did the company meet -- replace mains at a 1

percent rate?

A. No.

775



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

Q. All right.  So, did -- why isn’t the -

- why didn’t the staff support a catch-up for years that

were not met?

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. DOWLING:  The question assumes

that the company had a 1 percent target in the prior

years.  I don’t think that’s been introduced into

evidence.

MR. LEVINE:  Well, the --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You can respond.

MR. LEVINE:  -- I think they -- the

A. I don’t have that --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Wait, wait, wait.

testimony?

company’s own direct testimony says that that’s an

appropriate rate for a 100-year-old set of pipes, at 1

percent a year, as I understand it.  Is that correct?

Isn’t that what your direct file -- pre-filed 

testimony said?

Now, he said the company’s pre-filed testimony --

MR. DOWLING:  Yeah, I’m sorry, Your

Honor.  The staff.  The staff.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  The staff’s pre-filed
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MR. DOWLING:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  They’re not --

MR. LEVINE:  I’m being mis -- I’m

being imprecise.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. LEVINE:  I apologize.  No, it’s in

the testimony in support of the J.P. and as the

appropriate amount and I’m asking if -- isn’t that

correct?  Start with that.

MR. LEVINE:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Thank you.

Q. Okay.  So, isn’t that right?

A. Yes, I think we answered that.

Q. So, the question is, why did you not

support or propose or agree to a catch-up for at least

you’ll have to give a cite to that because they’re not

adopting that testimony anymore.  They’re adopting the

testimony in support of the joint proposal, so I think

you’ll have to give them a little bit more guidance as to

what you’re referring to than --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can I just clarify?

Now you’re asking is it correct that in their testimony on

the J.P. there’s a 1 percent main replacement rate

advocated.  Is that your question?
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some of the previous years?

A. So, when planning main replacement

rates and that type of work, I -- I -- the staff’s

position is that a ramp up approach is more appropriate

than increasing to a level, say, 1 and 1/2 percent and

then bringing the replacement rate back down to 1 percent.

The reason being is that unit costs can become extremely

high under that scenario due to contractor availability

and we don’t think it’s in the customers’ best interest to

be paying such high costs.  I think the second point I

would make is that it’s a long-term planning process.

It’s a long-term infrastructure management goal, so it’s

not something we feel needs a, as you phrased it, a catch-

up rate.

Q. So, are you saying that at the end of

this rate period, you’ll review it and if, having ramped

up from less than 1 percent to 1 percent, you’ll consider

potentially doing a catch-up at that point, assuming the

cost is reasonable?

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor.  Staff can’t

commit to what they’re going to do in the future.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yeah, that -- that’s

beyond the scope of this proceeding and we’re not even

sure that will be the staff in --
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MR. LEVINE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- at the time that

you’re talking about.

MR. LEVINE:  All right. --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- Not, I’m not

suggesting anything.  They just may not be assigned, to be

clearer.

MR. LEVINE:  I understand.  I was

trying to explore the word ramp-up, but I’ll - I’ll leave

the testimony the way the implication is as I understand

it -- my understanding.  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And can I ask -- do

you -- can you sort of give us a guide as to what -- where

you are in their testimony just so I --

MR. LEVINE:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- I can follow.

MR. LEVINE:  I will try to do that,

Your Honor.  Unfortunately, the testimonies don’t come

with tables of contents or the searches.  Okay, so --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Or, if you could

even give us a topic, it --

MR. LEVINE:  Yeah, well, that was --

the topic was main replacement.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. LEVINE:  So, all right.  Okay.

Q. Okay, so let me -- let me focus on the

J.P. itself and the topic is the -- the reporting

requirements and meetings to review progress on the plan.

Can you just state in general terms how often you’re

proposing to -- to meet?

A. This is -- by the plan, you mean the

conservation program?

Q. I’m talking about -- I don’t think

it’s limited to the conservation program, but I’ll limit

it to the conservation program.  I’ll -- I’ll agree to

limit it to that.

A. Okay.  So, your question is how often

does the company report on the conservation program?

Q. Right.

A. I believe the J.P. states it’s -- it’s

twice a year.

Q. Okay, and those -- is that in writing

or are there also going to be meetings?

A. Our understanding of the language in

the J.P. is that is a written report.

Q. Okay.  How often do you intend to meet

with the company to discuss the progress of the
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conservation plan?

A. The -- the J.P. doesn’t specify a

meeting frequency, so it’d be on an as needed basis.

Q. The -- does the plan call for

participation in both the written documents and any

meetings you might have of the Rockland County Water Task

Force?

A. I’m sorry.  Could you repeat the

question?

Q. Does -- let’s break it down into two

things.  Written documents that the company is required to

file -- Is there any requirement that they provided to the

Rockland County Task Water Force?

A. So the written reports will be

publicly available.

Q. They’ll be on D.S.M. or D.M.M.?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  What about if you met with

them?  Is -- are the -- is the Water Task Force going to

be invited to such meetings?

A. That’s -- I don’t think such meetings

are specified in the J.P., so, so I’m not sure how to

answer that.

Q. Okay.  So what would be the process if
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you or any of the parties reading these reports on the --

on the Public Service Commission’s website thought that

something was in -- needed improvement, was inadequate.

What would be the process for us, the parties?

A. I think the process would be similar

to many other proceedings.  You could comment on the

proceeding.  You could send a letter to the secretary to

the Commission.  You could contact staff, staff counsel

with your concerns.

Q. Could we initiate a meet -- could any

of us or -- I’ll start with that -- initiate a meeting?

A. A meeting with staff?

Q. Staff and the company.

A. I can speak for staff.  You can

certainly initiate a meeting with staff.

Q. All right.  Is there anything in the

current joint proposal that would require the company to

be represented at such a meeting?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  The company or?

MR. LEVINE:  The company.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh.

MR. LEVINE:  So, in other words,

they’re saying they’re willing to meet.  I’m asking is

there anything that would -- could -- would require the
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company to be present?

A. So, again, the J.P. is -- does not

mention meeting, so I don’t see how it could require that

they attend meetings.

Q. Okay.  Is there any requirement at all

that -- in the J.P., that the company cooperate in any way

with the Rockland County Water Task Force?

A. So, there are -- I guess if we could

have a minute to find them, to cite them, there are areas

of the J.P. where the company is required to solicit input

from all interested stakeholders on certain issues.

Q. All right.

A. So that would certainly include the

task force.

Q. Okay.  Would that include -- on

conservation issues?

A. Yes, I believe the -- the low income

collaborative is one example of that.

Q. What about on any other conservation

issue?

A. Sorry, could you re --

Q. What about on any other conservation

issue?

A. If you look at the J.P., page 27, the
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second note.

Q. There are notes?  Am I now missing

notes?

A. Yeah, number 2 in the numbered list.

Q. I'm on page 27 and I don’t see it.

The -- oh, I see.  They’re committing to collaborating

with all interested stakeholders, is that what you’re

saying?

A. Yes.  The end of line 4, the company

commits to collaborating with all interested stakeholders

to support the overall goal of broadly communicating with

and involving as many stakeholders as possible in water

conservation efforts.

Q. Okay.  All right.  That’s on the issue

of communication.  What about on the issue of actual

progress?

A. Can you define actual progress?

Q. The amount of water saved.  The amount

of rebates utilized.

A. I’m not sure -- so, I think this  -- I

think this statement may encompass those efforts as well.

Q. Okay.  Is there a reason you felt six

months is an appropriate amount of time?

A. 6 months for --

784



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

MR. DOWLING:  I’m sorry, Your Honor.

6 months for what?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yeah.  Can you --

MR. LEVINE:  6 months for reports, set

every 6 months, twice a year.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So, you’re talking

about -- you’re back to the conservation plan reports --

MR. LEVINE:  Yeah. --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  --

MR. LEVINE:  Twice a year, the

conservation plan reports.

A. That’s the length of time we felt was

appropriate, balancing -- having enough information yet

still seeing information often enough to have input into

how the plan was being implemented.

Q. If staff was dissatisfied with the

progress, can -- after -- at any point during the rate

period, can the staff require the company to report more

frequently?

A. So, within the confines of this J.P.,

no.

Q. Okay.  So, let’s move on to another

area.  The -- you’ve accepted the company’s proposal of 75

dollars as the rebate amount for toilets and various other
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of the company’s suggestions for the rebate amounts for

various other plumbing fixtures that would be qua -- be

water efficient.  Is that correct?

A. Yes, so we -- we reviewed the

company’s proposal, found it reasonable.  We would also

note that those rebate amounts are not locked in for the

duration.  That they are flexible and can be changed based

on program implementation success.

Q. Did staff notice that among the many

examples of plans around the country that were included in

the Black and Veatch report, that many of them were at 100

dollars and a couple of them, including New York City, was

at a higher amount?

A. Could you - could you point me --

Q. To that?

A. -- to what you’re looking at?  Yeah.

Q. Sure.

MR. ALESSI:  Your, Your Honor, if I

could, just while we’re -- they’re looking, it -- it --

it’s even difficult for the company to be following where

this is.  I know, Your Honor, as I stated yesterday --

made it very clear that counsel were to provide for each

question, citation too, and I understand there’s some

leeway to be given at certain instances, but even the
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company is having diffi -- we’re having to kind of like

hurry and catch up to try to locate it, so to the extent

that that can be improved, we would appreciate it.  Thank

you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Well, yes.

MR. LEVINE:  Let me try to find that.

It’s there.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And again, he is

right.  I’m giving some leeway, but it’s difficult for me.

I’d like to be able to know where you have asked

questions, because it helps me to rule better if there are

objections or if there’s an issue of it not being within

the scope of your cross, so I’m -- it’s not to make this

difficult, but it helps facilitate the process, so if you

need to take extra time to -- to do that, I’ll recognize

that in your estimate, your time estimate.

MR. LEVINE:  Let me just find it.

MR. DUTHIE:  Good morning, Your Honor.

Sorry, I’m late.  I’d like to make my appearance.  Daniel

Duthie, on behalf of the Municipal Consortium.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  It’s

noted.

MR. LEVINE:  Let’s see.  I’m looking

at it -- at the -- I’m looking at it and I don’t see it in
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the testimony -- on the J.P., but it is in the Black and

Veatch report, and is it fair to say that you are relying

on the Black and Veatch report to -- on the issue of

reasonableness?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So, did they rely on

the Black --

and Veatch report --

MR. LEVINE:  Black and Veatch report

is -- on --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- with respect to

the reasonableness of the amount of the rate rebates?  Is

that the question?

MR. LEVINE:  That’s exactly right.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

A. Yes, that’s -- that’s one component of

what we relied on.

Q. All right.  Did you -- what other

components did you rely on?

A. We also did our own market research.

Q. And what -- can you describe what the

nature of that market research is or was?

A. Similar to any customers looking for

toilets.  We searched online and looked for reasonable

prices.
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Q. Okay.  Do you -- did you consider the

fact that plumbing costs are not included?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you do any research as to what

plumbing costs are?  Similar kinds of surveys as a

customer would as to what it would cost to have a plumber

come in to someone’s home in Rockland County?

A. We -- we did look into that, yes.

Q. And what did you find?

A. I don’t have that information in front

of me.

Q. Okay.  Did you consider the high costs

of living in Rockland County relative to other parts of

the state?

A. Consider it when determining what?

Q. Whether the rebates were reasonable.

A. We considered the costs avail -- the

costs that we found of the water appliances available

through rebate programs.

Q. Okay.  Did you look at the success of

-- of the rebate programs -- did you -- in other words,

independently review these other -- other locations that

have had rebate programs and -- and review their success

based on their numbers?
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A. I’m sorry.  Your question was did we

look at the results of the other rebate programs?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes.

Q. And did you look at those that had --

were in high cost areas like Rockland County?

A. I -- I can’t speak to the cost of

living in the areas of -- of the specific programs.

Q. Okay.  Thank you.  All right.  Last

area.  It’s -- it’s not in your testimony but are you

familiar with the conservational alternative plan that I

proposed?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  So, why did you not include any

specific part of it?

A. So, I think I would disagree.  I think

we did include parts.  There’s -- there are -- the J.P.

includes provisions to provide conservation documents in

multiple languages, as an example.

Q. All right.  Well, why did you not

require the company to do a inventory of multiple dwelling

build -- multiple dwellings, actual multiple dwellings not

based on the way they rate -- the way they pay their bills

-- actual multiple dwelling buildings by age and find out,

790



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

at least, when the last time they were retrofitted and

then, as my plan would then call for, then retrofitting

where needed in a specific and organized way?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  May I ask a

clarification?  You used multiple dwelling and if I

remember correctly, the last time this came up, your

definition of multiple dwelling was different from the

definitions perhaps that are in the tariffs.

MR. LEVINE:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is that correct?

MR. LEVINE:  Yes, the company.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So can you define --

when you say multiple dwelling, are you including --

MR. LEVINE:  3 or more units.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- was it condos or?

MR. LEVINE:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- So, places that

have common spaces.  All -- like -- condos.  It was

condos, co-ops.

MR. LEVINE:  Condos, co-ops.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And actual multi-

dwelling buildings is how you defined multiple dwelling?

MR. LEVINE:  Condos, co-ops, rentals

where the structure is 3 or more units.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MR. LEVINE:  Okay.  Though most of

them are larger.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

A. So we feel that the plan in the J.P.

provides the company the flexibility needed and the

incentive financially to make this program successful and

we did not feel the need to micromanage every outreach

effort towards specific -- you know -- multi-family,

single family dwellings, and we’ll note that we -- the

J.P. does require the company to provide a service

classification study, which would maybe alleviate some

possible rate design concerns with multi-families, single

family and non-residential customer classifications.

Q. I mean, that’s on rate design because

of the way the company deals with multiple dwellings --

actual multiple dwellings, pardon my language.

A. I think your question though was did -

- did we require the company to address any of the multi-

family dwelling outreach and classification and I think

rate design is part of the conservation program that does

that.

Q. Is -- is the staff relying on the fact

that if we put out these rebates -- rebates and we
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advertise them and no one comes, then everything can be

fixed later?  No one -- no one utilizes the rebates?

A. Could you rephrase that?

Q. Well, the plan that I submitted, if I

may, as a prelude, is based on the idea in most

categories, not all, of inventorying specific types of

properties that might be appropriate for water

conservation and then systematically, over a period be --

well beyond 3 years, going through them and retrofitting

where needed or checking off as not needed as it went.

The company’s proposal is to publicize and offer rebates

and await response of customers, hopefully not all free

riders, to come.  Is that a fair statement of the

difference between my plan and the company’s?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Let me just, before

they answer that, it should be the J.P. proposal.

MR. LEVINE:  J.P. proposal and mine.

Thank you.  You’re right.

A. I -- I think that’s a generalization

of the J.P’s outreach.  I  - I don’t know that I would

agree.

Q. Okay.  All right.  Can you tell me if

there’s anything specific in the J.P. that, for example,

would tell somebody looking at this plan, the progress of
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the plan in a year from now, what -- whether a target has

been reached for, let’s say, the retrofit of private or

public school buildings?

A. So -- So the semi-annual reports will

show the progress of the program’s results toward and

would include schools.

Q. Okay.  But will -- but are there

any -- any targets, even goals for completion on a six

month, semi-annual basis?

A. So, I’ll refer you to page 25 of the

J.P. that shows annual rebate targets for each rebate

program item.

Q. I’m sorry. Bear with me one moment.

25?

A. 25, yes.

Q. Okay.  I see that chart but as --

isn’t it true that that -- that those, well, actually it

says number available.  It doesn’t say what they’re

supposed to achieve.  Is that cor -- isn’t that correct?

A. So, this chart would show the plan.

So I, I guess I don’t see the distinction.

Q. Well, year 1, it says number of

rebates available, water sense toilet, 2,900, rate year 1.

If they achieved 1,500, would the company see that -- was
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-- would the staff in reviewing the J.P.’s progress with

the company, see that as successful or not successful?

A. So I’ll -- I guess I’ll answer by

saying this is a 5-year conservation program, so to

determine the success of the program after 1 year and one

rebate program, is a little premature, but certainly we

would expect the company to provide an answer as to why

the rebate numbers are below the anticipated amount and a

plan to either change outreach rebate amount or, you know,

any other factor, to ensure that the in years 2, 3, 4 and

5, the anticipated rebate levels are achieved.

Q. Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you mind if I

just ask --

MR. LEVINE:  I’m just about done.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- a question?  No,

no, no.  I wanted to ask a clarification.

MR. LEVINE:  Yeah, sure.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think.  I need --

again, you can object, if at the end of 5 -- okay, say in

year 1, following up on Mr. Levine’s example, the number

of rebates available are 2,900 but they get 1,500 and then

maybe year 2, there’s a result that is different, higher

or lower than the number of rebates.  If at the end of 5
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years, the number, the total number available over that 5-

year period is less than the total number accepted or

implemented, is -- how will that be viewed?  Is that

success or not success -- is the first question?  How is

that assessed or assessed in terms of reviewing it?

A. So I think to answer or tie in the --

the incentive program --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

A. -- it goes with the -- the

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  And it sounds

like -- and again, you can object and correct me if I’m

wrong, but if there are less redeemed than were made

available at the end of 5 years, but somehow they still

achieve, like, I think 1.5 is the first level for the

positive side of the incentives, then they would still get

796

conservation program itself as the incentive mechanism, so

we are measuring water savings based on the number of

rebates redeemed and using the -- the estimates in the

company’s pre-filed testimony for water savings per rebate

and each rebate program, so I guess short answer would be

if less rebates are redeemed than we anticipated -- than

are available on that table, we would -- I mean

unsuccessful might be a little strong, but we’re certainly

looking to see all of the rebates redeemed.
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the incentive the way it’s structured in the J.P.?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, Your Honor, but I

would add that the 1.5 is calculated based on rebates

redeemed.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. TIMBROOK:  So I --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. TIMBROOK:  Mathematically.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  That’s what I wanted

to understand though.  Thank you.  That’s helpful.

MR. TIMBROOK: Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m done.

Q. Now, is there -- is -- is there a

negative incentive for the company if they fail to reach a

certain part -- point in the redeeming of various

vouchers?

A. Yes.

Q. Rebates?  Okay.  All right.  And

you’re satisfied that’s sufficient?

A. Yes.

Q. All right.  If it should -- if it

should -- is there any flexibility -- well, rephrase it --

if the company was significantly below the what was -- I’m

sorry -- was -- let me withdraw it -- I’ll withdraw that.
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Are you aware that since at least

1991, the company’s been required to have a conservation

program?

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor, required by

whom?

MR. LEVINE:  By the Commission.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

A. No, we’re not aware that since 1991

they’ve been required to do that.

Q. All right.  Your Honor, it seems that

I’m older than they are.

MR. DOWLING:  Could we have the

citation?  Is there an -- a specific order that required

that or a regulation?

MR. LEVINE:  There were but I couldn’t

give you a citation 25 years ago.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And he’s asking were

they aware and you wanted them to go back to ’91 and

they’re not aware but if you are aware of an order that

required that, you could cite it.

MR. LEVINE:  Yeah.  I understand.  Am

I allowed to add that to a brief?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  If you -- yes, if --

MR. LEVINE:  Have them.  Yeah.  Okay.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- you’re relying on

it and please do provide an order because I’m not going to

have time to look for un --

MR. LEVINE:  I understand.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- undocumented

cites.

Q. Do you know -- well, let’s try to do

it a slightly different way, in the last ten years, has

the company been required to engage in some conservation

efforts?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Are you asking if at

any time in the last ten --

MR. LEVINE:  Any time in the last --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- years or?

MR. LEVINE:  Last 10 years, yeah.  I -

- I believe I saw --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  If you know.

Q. If you know.

A. As -- as any conservation effort --

Q. Yeah.

A. -- would satisfy that?  Yes.

Q. And what was the -- did you measure

the results of those programs?

A. As a part of this panel, no.
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Q. I believe this is sort of -- I think

it’s directed Ms. Odell -- as I try to -- Odell-Keller?

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  Odell-Keller.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

believe at some point, you provided information on the --

or asked for information and provided a report on the last

3 years or 4 years of the company’s outreach efforts,

which included a category on conservation spending.  There

was a certain amount of money to be spent on conservation,

isn’t that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Is it true that the company under-

spent those lines in each of those years?

A. Correct.

Q. And is it also true that in one

instance the use of that money went to pay for the Amy

Vickers water con -- water task force joint with -- with -

- with Suez was participating in report?

A. I’m not aware.

MR. LEVINE: Okay.  Okay.  All right.

That -- that concludes my cross.  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Mr.

BY MR. LEVINE:

Q. Odell-Keller?  Sorry.  I apologize.  I
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Duthie.

MR. DOWLING:  Thank you, Your Honor.

May I --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Sorry.  Sorry.

MR. DOWLING:  I confer.  See if we

have any redirect?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Did you want

to do redirect on each -- each individual set of questions

then?

MR. DOWLING:  Well, with each -- with

each -- with each attorney.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Questioner?

MR. DOWLING:  Yes, or I can wait.  I

can wait until the end then.  Thanks.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It -- I mean, if no

MR. DOWLING:  I -- I’ll wait until the

end then.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  If you want to do

that and -- does anyone object?

MR. ALESSI:  I don’t object, Your

Honor.

one else objects, it’s just that previous -- the reason

why I did that yesterday is because Mr. Rigberg was not 

coming today.
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MR. LEVINE:  The company has no

objection how Mr. Dowling wants to proceed with his

redirect.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Levine?

MR. LEVINE:  No objects.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Dichter?

MR. DICHTER:  No.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Be careful of

the wires.

[End of Audio]

MR. LEVINE:  Your Honor, is Mr.

Herbert here?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m the wrong person

to ask because I don’t think I’ve ever met him, but --

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, he is here.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- is he?  Okay.

MR. LEVINE:  Is he part -- on the

panel?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  He’s not staff

witness, so no.

MR. LEVINE:  Oh, I’m sorry.  There.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  That part I do know.

MR. DOWLING:  Panel, during the years

the company under spent on its conservation budget, was
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there an incentive program in place for that budget?

MR. TIMBROOK: No.

MR. DOWLING:  Thank you.  Done, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Mr.

Duthie?

MR. DUTHIE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

Good morning panel.  I think this first question is

directed at Mr. Bullock.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And can you tell me

-- you’re going to give me an indication of where you are

either in the J.P. or testimony, correct?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, yes, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MR. DUTHIE:  Of course.  I’m referring

to page 2, lines 8 to 9 of the staff J.P. panel testimony,

which I -- is the initial testimony, and it says that Mr.

Bullock’s responsibilities as Senior Utility Financial

Analyst include analyzing the competitive position of

utilities.  Is this not a monopoly -- Suez Water?

MR. BULLOCK:  Please rephrase that.

MR. DUTHIE:  Sure.  In your -- is --

is not Suez Water a monopoly utility?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You might want to
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turn off your mikes while you're consulting, just.

MR. BULLOCK:  The company isn’t a

monopoly but in this case they are competing for the

capital.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay, so, so when you use

the phrase competitive position, it’s in the sense of the

competition for capital?

MR. BULLOCK:  Correct.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.   Now would you

agree with me that regulation of monopoly utilities is a

substitute for the competitive marketplace?

MR. BULLOCK:  Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DUTHIE:

Q. And with respect to the competition

for capital, how is Suez New York doing?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  Can you

repeat that?

Q. Sure.  Let me -- let me rephrase it.

Does Suez --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m not sure I

understood.  If you -- just --

Q. Okay.  Let -- let me rephrase, Your

Honor.  Does Suez New York have any problems accessing the
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capital markets for equity or debt?

A. Can you reference the page and the

line number?

Q. Well, yeah, I’m -- this is just a

follow up to your -- now that I understand on -- your

competitive position meant, I’m just pushing that concept

a little further.

A. Indirectly, they get their capital

from Suez resources.

Q. So, Suez New York does not directly

compete for capital in the traditional marketplace?

A. They have the option but at this

point, it -- they’re going through the parent company.

MR. DUTHIE:  I think this question is

directed to Ms. Wang, if you would refer to page twelve of

your initial testimony.

MS. WANG:  Initial testimony?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes.  Lines -- starting

with the answer on line 19.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  He -- he means your

September 14th, I believe.  Correct?

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m sorry.  The -- the

September 14th testimony addressing the -- the J.P., yes.

Thank you, Your honor.
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MS. WANG:  Twelve?

MR. DUTHIE:  Page twelve where it

states your responsibilities include routine examination

of the books and records.  Do you see that?  Okay.  Is --

are you the -- are you the best witness to answer the

question about audits?

MS. WANG:  Best among who?

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  Basically what is

an audit?

MS. WANG:  I can find the book for a

definition.  I’m not sure I can answer that accurate.

Yeah, we examined.

MR. DUTHIE:  Let me -- let me try it

this way.  I’m going to show you a copy of Exhibit 16,

which was a sample of an invoice, which I hope I have here

somewhere.  Exhibit 16 has been not only marked for

identification but was entered into evidence yesterday --

is from a firm called A.K.R.F.  Can I show you that

exhibit?  Now, looking at that exhibit and if you’re --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can you wait until

you get back to your mic?

MR. DUTHIE:  Sure.  Sure.

Q. Okay.  Looking at that exhibit, do you

see any description of the services that were provided by
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the individuals who are identified on that invoice?

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, the company

is going to object to this line of questioning.  The

company gave and -- and for this -- this reason, I know

it’s staff’s panel but the -- the -- Your Honor and the

company gave Mr. Duthie a lot of leeway with regard to

being an attorney and a witness, and this was his exhibit

and there was questions on it yesterday.  There was the

opportunity for parties to question that.  Now what Mr.

Duthie is doing is he’s turning around.  Any other exhibit

we’re not going to have an objection to, but now he’s

turning around and trying to make up for what occurred

yesterday with this exhibit and we think that that really

takes undue advantage of being the attorney, being the

client, being the witness.

Yesterday was the opportunity for --

for that exhibit.  If there’s any other exhibit, that’s

fine, but we think that this takes undue advantage of the

leeway he was given as attorney and witness, because he’s

actually getting another bite at the apple from testimony

in that regard.

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, I’m not

looking for another bite at the apple but I can rephrase.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, but this is
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your exhibit, --

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- correct?

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m not even going to re

--

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You’re asking --

MR. DUTHIE:  -- with this question --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- staff --

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m -- I’m going --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- about your

exhibit.

MR. DUTHIE:  I’ll withdraw reference

to the exhibit.

Q. Ms. Wang, if you have an invoice that

does not have an explanation of the services provided,

does that comply with the uniform system of accounts?

A. That's a description.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We’re not -- Don’t

answer with respect to that exhibit, just generally with

respect to the question.  It was if -- can you just

restate it.

MR. DUTHIE:  Sure.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m not going to

restate it.
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Q. If you -- you are reviewing an invoice

that a utility paid but does not have any explanation of

the services provided, does that invoice comply with the

uniform system of accounts?

A. No.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m just going to

approach and collect the exhibit, if you don’t mind?

MR. DUTHIE:  Sure.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, I’ll do it.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.

Q. Ms.  -- Ms. Wang, do you know what

ConEd’s rate of return currently is in its present rates -

- authorized rate of return on equity?

Q. Okay, and the joint proposal calls for

a 9 percent return on equity in this case.  Is that

correct?

A. That’s correct.

Q. And -- and maybe you’re not the right

person to ask.

A. I differ --

and steam test.  They may have a different rate of return

but as far as I can remember, they are all above 9

percent?

A. I think Con-Ed has the electric, gas
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Q. Maybe someone else on the panel that -

-

A. -- continue with your question.  I can

answer.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Just, just as a

reminder with respect to the panels, you don’t necessarily

have to direct it to --

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- a specific

person.

MR. DUTHIE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

Q. So, panel, is it your opinion that the

business and financial risk of ConEdison is comparable to

Suez Water, New York?

A. In terms of the business risk,

ConEdison is rated as excellent business risk profile from

Standard and Poor’s.  In terms of financial risk, it has

significant financial risk profile.  In terms of rating,

ConEdison is rated A minus.  Suez by S and P.  Suez is not

rated by what is all S and P, but if you look at J.P.

testimony, page 2, based upon our knowledge, this -- we

believe Suez will have excellent business risk and

significant financial risk.

Q. Now, when you use the term business
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risk, excellent business risk, does that mean the business

risk is low?

A. Yes.

Q. And you just testified that the

financial risk for Suez New York is significant.  Could

you explain what went into your thinking to characterize

the financial risk as significant?

A. If you look at page 1 of J.P. 2, are

you there for me?

Q. I’m going to try to get there, but

keep -- keep going.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, actually wait.

I’m -- because I’m not there.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is this J.P.

Appendix 2?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, please.

MR. DUAH:  Exhibit 2.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  It’s

Appendix 2?

MR. DUAH:  Exhibit 2.

MR. DICHTER:  I believe that it’s

Exhibit 27.
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MR. DUAH:  J.P.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  Yes,

yes, yes.  Got it.

MR. DUAH:  Are you there for me,

please?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think he’s still

looking.

MR. DUTHIE:  One moment, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yep.  Take your

time.

MR. DUTHIE:  Mr. Dichter is providing

for me with some assistance here.  Okay, I am now on Staff

J.P. 2, page 1 of 3.  And this is Exhibit --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think it’s Hearing

Exhibit 27.  It was originally designated as --

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, Your Honor.  That’s

what -- that’s how my notes have.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  H B 2.

MR. DUTHIE:  So this is Exhibit 20 --

27.  Yes, I’m -- I’m there.

MR. DUAH:  If you look at -- it’s --

you look at the 6 different financial parameters, one is

fine for operations, you look at that and the date of

admittal and now until you get to this discretionary cash
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flow for that.  You look at all the financial parameters

and then we determine that -- we determine the financial

risk profile of the company.

MR. DUTHIE:  If -- if I’m reading this

Exhibit 27 correctly, this is a comparison of the implied

credit metrics in the J.P. versus a 1-year plan compared

to the 3-year plan provided in the J.P.  Is that correct?

MR. DUAH:  Yes, please.

Q. So, this table is essentially a

forecast of the credit metrics?

A. It’s based -- it's implied based upon

Q. In -- in the -- in the column for the

1-year rate plan, did that reflect staff’s recommendation

of an 8.5 percent rate of return on equity?

A. Yes, please.

Q. And in moving to a 9 percent rate of

return on equity in the J.P. for the 3-year plan, which

credit metrics were most significantly affected?

A. Consider change of there for -- fine

for operations, you see they were moved from -- make it

the -- the financial adjustments and what we agreed on,

the 9 percent R.O.E. and the 46 common equity ratio and 

other adjustment -- that stuff made in the J.P. or agreed

 on inthe J.P.
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better, from 17.2 to 20.2.

Q. And that’s as a result of the

increased cash flow --

A. Correct.

Q. -- associated with the higher equity

return?

A. Correct.

Q. Now, did you compare a similar table,

comparing the 3-year J.P. plan to the ConEdison profile?

A. No.

Q. So, it’s your testimony that ConEdison

-- it serves electric, gas and steam in a very densely

populated portion of New York State, is comparable to the

business risk of Suez New York that serves in a

predominantly suburban portion of New York State?

A. Yeah, I believe so because you don’t

pick one particular risk.  It’s the way you consider

business risk.  You look at the totality of business where

you don’t pick one.

Q. So, let me just focus on that.  Is the

provision of electric service in New York City, including

the provision of high voltage transmission service,

comparable to the provision of water service in Rockland

County, from a business risk perspective?
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A. Can you repeat your question, please?

Q. Sure.  Is the provision of electric

service in New York City, including high voltage

transmission electric service, equivalent to the provision

of water service in Rockland County?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You had something

else at the end of that from -- previously you said from a

--

MR. DUTHIE:  From -- from a business -

- business risk perspective, yes, yes, Your Honor.  Thank

you.

A. As I said earlier, where you look at

business risk, you have to look at the totality of it.  It

may be true that probably the -- the area you are citing

probably the ConEdison may have higher risk but in that

area, Con Edison also have lower risk, so S and P looks at

management, they look at country, they look at industry

risk.  Everything is considered.  You don’t pick one and

choose one.  Everything is a package.

Q. Perhaps you could define your -- for

me what you mean by business risk?

A. Business risk relates to volatility in

the cash flow.

Q. I’m -- I’m sorry.  Could you repeat
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that?

A. It -- it relates to the volatility in

cash flow.  Cash flow.

Q. So then anything that affects cash

flow contributes to business risk.  Is that correct?

A. Yeah, that is my opinion.

Q. You -- you mentioned, I believe, that

management of the company also has an impact on business

risk.

A. Yes, I said, S and P considers

business risk, management efficiency.  It considers

country risk, industry risk, diversification as part of

the business risk analysis.

Q. So if a company, all things being

equal, has a less capable management than another company,

in your opinion, that would mean that the less capable

company would have a higher business risk?

A. I would say --

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor, I believe

the testimony was that Standard and Poor’s rating includes

management capabilities.  Not that management capabilities

is a component of business risk.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yeah.

MR. DUTHIE:  I’ll rephrase, Your
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Honor.  It -- It -- in your understanding of the S and P’s

ratings, it includes an analysis of the management of the

company being rated.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And is it also correct that S and P

would rate less desirable a utility with less capable

management than one with more capable management?

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I --

MR. ALESSI:  -- I’m going to --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yeah.

MR. ALESSI:  -- object.  This

question’s been asked and answered several times.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It has.  And I’ll --

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’ll --

MR. DUTHIE:  I’ll move on, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes, thank you.

Sustained.

MR. DUTHIE:  With respect to

reconciliation mechanisms, would you agree that Suez Water

New York has a revenue decoupling mechanism or

reconciliation mechanism, an RAC, Reconciliation

Adjustment Mechanism?
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MS. WANG:  Yes, that’s provided in the

Joint Proposal.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  Now, when a

company -- a utility has such a mechanism and it

reconciles all metered sales, correct?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes.

MR. DUTHIE:  Does that increase or

decrease the business risk of the company, such a

mechanism -- all things being equal compared to a company

that does not have such a mechanism?

MR. DUAH:  It decreases the business

risk but on the other hand, business risk must also be

considered in totality.

MR. DUTHIE:  Does it decrease the

financial risk?

MR. DUAH:  I would say business risk

but not financial risk.

MR. DUTHIE:  So if a company has a rec

-- revenue reconciliation mechanism, which means that if

it receives less revenues let’s say in a wet year, and

then is able to recoup those revenues in the following

year, that does not affect the financial risk?

MR. DUAH:  As I said earlier, anything

cash flow -- affects business risk and RAC, I think
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affects cash flow, so I will say affects business risk.

Financial risk relates to the amount of leverage on -- and

a couple of structure or the company’s financial of its

assets.

MR. DUTHIE:  So, from the perspective

of financial risk, does Suez New York Water have a -- a

good level of leverage from a financial risk perspective?

MR. DUTHIE:  But isn’t the financial,

the capital structure in the Joint Proposal set to -- for

the purposes of setting rates and is not the actual

capital structure of the company?

MR. DUAH:  It is not the actual

capital structure.  It is the -- what we agreed on for

rate making purposes.

MR. DUTHIE:  And do you know what the

actual capital structure of the company is?  Doesn’t it

have more equity than the rate making structure?

MR. DUAH:  Yeah, the company actual

MR. DUAH:  From -- if you look at a

J.P., the J.P. has a capital structure, which is more

leverage than what the company fell, the J.P. calls for 46

percent common equity ratio versus the 50 percent that a

company propose and then the 47 percent recommended by

staff in our July testimony.
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capital structure is higher than what is -- I think I

believe is higher than what is in the J.P.

MR. DUTHIE:  Well, what does S and --

do you know -- if you know, what does S and P look at when

it comes to its ratings?  Does it look at the rate making

capital structure or the actual capital structure of the

company?

MR. DUAH:  For S and P analysis, it

looks at the capital structure in the company’s financial

statement and makes some adjustments to it so whenever,

say, it is the actual capital structure because they make

some adjustment, for reason, they make adjustments to

leases -- operating leases, and other debt like

obligations, which in actual capital structure of the

company’s now conceded.

MR. DUTHIE:  But when S and P does its

analysis, does it start with the rate making structure or

the actual capital structure?

MR. DUAH:  I would say it starts with

the 10 K, the annual report and make some adjustments.

MR. DUTHIE:  So the 10 K is the actual

capital structure?

MR. DUAH:  I would say that’s the

basis where they start from.
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MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  Thank you.  I want

to turn now to the section in the staff panel testimony

supporting the Joint Proposal that deals with the

construction projects.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And this is their

initial testimony?

MR. DUTHIE:  It’s -- it’s an -- it

starts at page 25, and if my understanding is correct as

reported in the Joint Proposal, which I believe it's at --

hang on, let me get the exact page.  This -- I would refer

you to page 19 of the Joint Proposal, under the title,

System Improvement Charge, and would you agree, subject to

check, that if I would add up the costs of all of those

projects from A to K, the total comes to about 23.8

million dollars?

MR. TIMBROOK:  If -- if you give me

one moment, I think I actually have the total.

MR, DUTHIE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes, take your time

because I’d prefer not to have subject to check if that’s

possible.

MR. TIMBROOK:  Mr. Duthie, you said

23.8 million?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, Mr. Timbrook.
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MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, I agree.

MR. DUTHIE:  All right, and of that

23.8 million dollars, I’m going to say almost 10 million

dollars is associated with 3 new production wells?  Would

it be close to 9.7 million?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, approximately.

MR. DUTHIE:  All right.  Do you know

the capacity to -- potential capacity of those production

wells in terms of million gallons a day?

MR. TIMBROOK:  I don’t have that in

front of me, no.

MR. TIMBROOK:  Again, I don’t have

those numbers in front of me.

MR. DUTHIE:  Is there an immediate

need for these production wells to meet demand?  When I

say immediate, I mean within the next 2 or 3 years.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, I don’t have

an objection yet but I will make an observation that the

company panel was up for several days and with regard to

these types of question, the company panel was available

and it’s my understanding remains available with regard to

MR. DUTHIE:  Are -- are you familiar

with the current capacity of the Suez Water New York

system in terms of meeting average demand?
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these types of questions.  So I don’t have an objection, I

just have an observation in that regard.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, so the company

wouldn’t object to this question being presented to its

panel later today?

MR. ALESSI:  That is correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So only if

you know.

MR. TIMBROOK:  I can’t answer that

either way at this point.

MR. DUTHIE:  Do you know when the

construction is to begin on the wells?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So the reason the wells

are included in the SIC mechanism, is that that timeline

is -- is uncertain.

MR. DUTHIE:  Would you know whether or

not these wells would be commenced --construction would be

commenced within the 3-year rate period or beyond the 3-

year rate period?

MR. TIMBROOK:  I would answer the same way

because they’re in the SIC mechanism, they could be within

or outside of the rate plan.

MR. DUTHIE:  Returning to page 26,

line 5 of the initial testimony supporting the Joint
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Proposal.  Do you see the number 3,578,531 dollars per

year for the amortization of the Haverstraw expenditures?

MS. WANG:  So, where’s he at?

MR. DUTHIE:  So that’s simply to 53

million divided by 15. 

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It’s --

MR. DUTHIE:  Is that correct?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yeah.

MR. DUTHIE:  Now, do you know how much

the return component contributes to the revenue

requirement, that is, the return on the unamortized

balance, in approximate, approximate figures?  Perhaps,

Mr. Simon, if I just ask you a couple of questions about

the methodology, maybe we can get to it a little faster?

So, for --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Are you with --

MR. DUTHIE:  -- a methologi --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Wait.  Wait.  Are

you withdrawing your question then?

MR. DUTHIE:  -- I’ll withdraw my

question, Your Honor.  So, for a methodological

perspective, to compute the return on the unamortized

balance, would one not start with the balance of

53,677,964 and subtract from that one half of the first
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year amortization?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can you use a mic?

MR. DUTHIE:  And -- and then the --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Wait.  Wait.

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m sorry, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Could you?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay, and then that

balance would be multiplied by the 6.92 percent overall

rate of return?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Can you -- you -- can

you rephrase that?  You mentioned 6.92 and I don’t know

where that number is coming from?

MR. DUTHIE:  My -- my understanding is

that’s the overall rate of return that is provided for in

the J.P.

MS. WANG:  9.0.

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m sorry.

MR. TIMBROOK:  9.05.

MR. DUTHIE:  This is the after tax.

MR. ALESSI  Is there a citation, Your

Honor, that would be available for that so we can follow

where Mr. Duthie is?

MR. DUTHIE:  Sure.  I can -- I can --
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MR. ALESSI: I’m sorry Mr. D -- and I

didn’t mean to make it complicated --

MR. DUTHIE:  No.

MR. ALESSI:  -- but I --

MR. DUTHIE:  No, that’s fine.

MR. ALESSI:  I couldn’t find it.

MR. DUTHIE:  That -- that’s fine.

MR. ALESSI:  Are we looking in the?

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m looking in -- I’m

looking in the J.P., yes.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

MR. DUTHIE:  And it appears on many

occasions but I’m looking at Appendix 2, page 1, at the

bottom of the right hand column, the as adjusted revenue

requirement and it computes a rate of return of 6.92

percent.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Sorry.  Say that

again?  Appendix 2?

MR. DUTHIE:  Append -- Appendix 2,

page 1 of 31.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MR. DUTHIE:  It’s the --

MR. ALESSI:  Oh, I see it.  Thank you.

MR. DUTHIE:  -- it’s the lowest right
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most number in the table.  So, if I were to multiple 6.92

percent times the unamortized balance, I would get

approximately 3.6 million dollars, in addition to the

amortization through the income statement.  Is that

correct?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can I -- can I back

up though because it -- that’s assuming that they used

6.92.  Is -- is it correct to assume that the 6.92

percentage number was applied to the balance in the

question that he’s asking -- the Haverstraw balance.  Was

that what you applied to --

MS. WANG:  Actually in this exhibit,

that number you are talking revenue requirement impact is

not in the schedule but by calculator average rate of biz,

not of tax, where you see J.P. Appendix 2, page 6 of 31,

the average rate base is 34,246,541.  So, you want to

determine revenue requirement impact.  You either multiply

that number by the pre-tax rate or return, 9.05 percent,

and cross out by the retention factor before income tax,

that’s roughly 99 percent or, if you, you mult -- multiply

that average rate base by the 6.92 that’s after tax, and

you have to cross out by the -- cross out factor that

including income tax, that’s roughly 68 percent, you will

get the same result.  That’s about 3.1 million revenue
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requirement impact.

MR. DUTHIE:  So, the gross up factor

is approximately 1.5 dot dot dot additional --

MS. WANG:  Yeah, I didn’t calculate

that --

MR. DUTHIE:  -- precision on the sub -

-

MS. WANG:  -- just divide by that

number.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  All right.  So it

you can -- it can be done either way.

MS. WANG:  Right.

MR. DUTHIE:  All right.  So, if we

were to do that, we’re looking at an approximate revenue

requirement impact for the collection under the J.P. of

the Haverstraw expenditures of something in the

neighborhood of 6.5 million dollars?  Would you agree with

that?

MS. WANG:  Including amortization and

the rate base.

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes.

MS. WANG:  Yes.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  And in the non-

levelized option, what is the rate increase for rate year
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1?

MS. WANG:  Probably 7.6, 7.7 million.

MR. DUTHIE:  In connection with the

company’s capital budget, including the SIC projects, did

staff review any benefit cost analyses justifying those

projects?

MR. TIMBROOK:  I’m sorry.  Could you

repeat that?

MR. DUTHIE:  Well, let me break it

into two pieces.  In terms of the company’s capital

expenditure program on which the J.P. is based, did staff

review any of the benefit cost analysis justifying those

projects?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So, staff reviewed the

projects included in the company’s capital plan and found

them necessary to provide safe and reliable service.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And, I’m -- I’m just

going to jump in.  We’re about 5 minutes from our first

morning break and we’re already past your 30-minute

estimate, so, I’m going to let you go and --

MR. DUTHIE:  My apologies, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- to attend.  Okay.

I’m going to let you go until another like 4 --

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  I just --
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- minutes --

MR. DUTHIE:  I just have a couple more

questions then I’ll be concluding.

So you found that these projects were

necessary, but did you review any benefit cost analyses?

So, so for -- let just give you one example to -- to

focus.  So, for example, I think the parties are now in

agreement that the conservation plan, whichever one you

happen to pick, whether it’s Mr. Levine’s conservation

plan or the plan that was put forth by Jonathan Kleinman

or the plan that’s provided in the J.P.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can I just correct.

It’s the Commission that will be making that

determination, so I think your question assumes whatever

the Commission decides.

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, Your Honor.  Thank

you.  But I think the parties have agreed that the

conservation plan, whichever flavor you choose, is less

expenses -- less expensive than new supply for the same

amount of million gallons a day.  Would you agree with

that?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, based on the cost

benefit analysis provided by the company, I would agree.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.  So, then in
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recommending for approval in this Joint Proposal, within

the SIC projects, there are 3 new wells and you can’t

remember what the capacity of each new well is, but you’re

telling me that staff is supporting those 9.6 million

dollars worth of expenditures out of the total of about 23

million dollars of expenditures, in addition to the

conservation plan.  Is that -- is that correct?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So, you’re asking if we

have -- think the supply wells are necessary in addition

to the conservation plan?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes.

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes.

MR. DUTHIE:  And on what basis do you

make that conclusion?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So, as part of its rate

case filing, the company provided justification for all of

the capital projects and SIC projects.  Staff reviewed

those projects and determined that the pursuit of new

supply was at least an avenue that was -- starting to

consider at this time.  It’s -- it’s in the SIC mechanism

because the timing is un -- uncertain but I -- it was

staff’s opinion that conservational loan is not the only

reasonable option to at least pursue.

MR. DUTHIE:  Will -- will staff -- so
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if -- if I understand correctly, staff is saying that

let’s take a belt and suspenders approach to this.  Let’s

have conservation and let’s have new supply at the same

time.

MR. TIMBROOK:  I -- I think you could

phrase it that way.  As I said before, the cost benefit

points to conservation but again, I guess I wouldn’t put

all your eggs in one basket.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  One minute.

MR. DUTHIE:  If all of the SIC

projects came online at some point, how much would that

increase rates in Rockland County?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So, I think there are

several factors that make that question difficult to

answer.  The SIC projects total 23.8 million

approximately.   The revenue requirement could -- effect

could be calculated based on the current rate plans --

rate of return, but I don’t th -- I guess I don’t have an

answer for that question given that these projects could

go outside the current rate plan and thus changing the

calculation.

MR. DUTHIE:  I have no further

questions, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you. What I’d
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like to -- well, do you want to do re-direct before or

after?

MR. TIMBROOK:  After, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So, let’s take a 20-

minute break and we’ll return in 20 minutes.

MR. DUTHIE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

(Off the record)

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Come to order and go

back on the record.  I just want to confirm before we

proceed, does staff counsel have redirect based on Mr.

Duthie’s?

MR. DICHTER:  No, Your Honor, but I’d

just like to point out that Ms. Wang is not back yet.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I’m still

going to go ahead.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And I just, well,

I’ll note -- I went over to welcome Ms. Cornell, who is

here, so I want to give her the opportunity to make her

appearance on the record and I will also note that I did

ask her -- because I expressed appreciation that she made

herself available today, but I also wanted to confirm that

she did not have any other obligations that might need us

to reconsider the order of witnesses and she has indicated
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that she does not.  So, if Ms. Cornell or her designated

representative would like to do -- or provide their

appearance for the record, please do so at this time and

you’ll have to come to the mic so the court reporter can -

- can reflect this.

THE REPORTER:  Hello?  Ms. Cornell’s

representative is Mr. Tom Simeti and he stepped out just

for a moment.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and Mr. Simeti

also represents the County of Rockland, so I will just

note his appearance on behalf of that party as well.  I

know that’s irregular, but I want to keep moving.

MR. ALESSI:  Excuse me, Your Honor, if

I could -- just relative to the scheduling, I spoke to Mr.

Simeti --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Uh-huh.

MR. ALESSI:  -- this morning on

MR. ALESSI:  -- first and so --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- We can deal with

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  That’s fine. 
 

scheduling and we indicated and he agreed -- wish he 

werehere -- he agreed we’re -- we’re going to, with Your

Honor’s permission, reverse back and have Mr. Amawalk go 

--
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that later.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay.  Thank you, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, so we are

going to proceed and continue with the cross-examination

of the staff panel.  It’s now Mr. Dichter’s opportunity on

behalf of the Municipal Consortium and you indicated sixty

minutes.  Is that still your estimate?

MR. DICHTER:  Well, Mr. Duthie covered

a couple of subjects, so hopefully I can do better than

that, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Please

proceed.

MR. DICHTER:  But I do need --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh.

MR. DICTHER:  -- Ms. Wang for several

questions, but I’ll try and work --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Starting with her

question?

MR. DICHTER:  I -- I -- I’ll try and

start with some other subject matter.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you want -- would

you rather wait?  I don’t want to throw you off.  I’m

serious.
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MR. DICHTER:  That’s all right.  I can

start from the back -- the back end and move forward.

I’ll start from right design.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I -- I don’t want

you to feel like your prejudiced.  Would you prefer to

wait?

MR. DICHTER:  Give me one moment.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  All right.  Can --

all right.  Let’s go off the record.

OFF THE RECORD

ON THE RECORD

THE REPORTER:  On the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Dichter?

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DICHTER:

MR. DICHTER:  Turning to staff’s

initial testimony in support of the J.P., looking at page

15.  Does that set out the standards used by the

Commission to review whether or not the Joint Proposal is

in the public interest?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes.

MR. DICHTER:  And now I draw your

attention to what is page 15, line 12, number C.  Could
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you just read that for me?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Sure.  Whether the

Joint Proposal fairly balances the interests of the

ratepayers, investors, and the long-term soundness of the

utility.

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you.  Now I -- if

you would turn to page 17 of the -- the same testimony.

Could you read me the sentence there starting on line 1,

going through line 4?

MR. TIMBROOK:  It achieves a balance

of interests among the signatory parties and produces

results that may not have been attainable except through a

negotiated agreement.

MR.DICHTER:  Is that meant to refer to

the -- what you had just read before, part C, about the

public interest?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So I -- I think the

statement is geared more towards signatory parties’

interests and the benefits of a negotiated agreement.

MR. DICHTER:  But the standard is

whether or not the Joint Proposal fairly balances the

interests of the ratepayers and investors not among --

just among the signatory parties.  Is that correct?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, it’s stated on
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page 15.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.  As long as we’re

on page 17, I want to go down to something that Mr.

Tompkins touched on.  I’m still not quite clear on and

that’s on lines 11 through 15.  Say -- it -- in addition,

the proposed rate year 2 and rate year 3 increases through

surcharges, ensure that the base rates were not be higher

than the under the non-levelized approach.  See that?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes.

MR. DICHTER:  When you say surcharges,

what are you referring to?

MS. WANG:  That means a part of the

base rate increase is going to be realized through

surcharge so at the end of the rate plan, the customer

bill is not higher than the dollar levelization.

MR. DICHTER:  Can you give me an

example of the sur -- of surcharge that you’re referring

to?

MS. WANG:  I can -- maybe after I can

give you some number.  For example, you pay 10 -- you

currently pay 10 and retail value increases ten and rate

year 2 additional 5, rate year 3, 2 -- so if you add this

up, I can do quick math, ten plus 10 -- 20, 25, plus 227,

so I -- third year you pay 27, right?  If you do
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levelization, you first add 3 10, 2 5, and 1 2, you add

that up, you divide it by 6, and you add to add 10 dollar.

You could end up instead of 25, you could have a number

28.  Example -- okay?  The number I -- I didn’t calculate.

So if it -- there’s no change to base rate, you are -- you

are raised 28 instead of twenty-five, but by redesign, you

put three dollar as surcharge.

The surcharge can be dropped at any

time, so then you -- you pay 25 instead of 28 a year for

year 5.  That’s what the surcharge mean.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.  So, for the

increase in year, rate year 2, the company will be filing

new tariffs or they will be implementing a surcharge to

consumers, to rate payers?

MS. WANG:  Yes, right.  The J.P.

provide details of the base rate cannot be changed.  The

surcharge will be implemented starting rate year 2 and

rate year 3 and at end of rate year 3, the surcharge will

drop unless company file for new rate.  Yeah, that’s where

the -- the option of levelization.

MR. DICHTER:  Right.

MS. WANG:  Without levelization, it’s

our base rate.  The rate won’t change.

MR. DICHTER:  Understood.  Okay.  So
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the -- the filed tariff rate for -- I don’t know is it --

what’s it called?  Residential rate?  I’ve -- is -- is

S.C. 1?  I don’t know what the residential rate tariff is

referred to.  Do you know?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Why don’t we call it

single family residential.

MR. DICHTER:  There you go.  So the --

the filed single family residential rate tariff that’s

submitted after the Commission’s final order in this

decision, that will not change during the 3-year rate

plan?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Right.  It typically

will put the base rate effective in year 1, 2, and 3 on

that tariff and the effective dates and that will not

change during the rate plan.

MR. DICHTER:  I’m not quite sure I

followed that.  So there’s going to be 3 tariff sheets

filed, one for rate year 1, 1 for rate year 2, no.

MR. TIMBROOK:  No.  On -- on one rate

leaf for -- for example, for single family residential --

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.

MR. TIMBROOK:  You would have the --

you would have 3 rates listed.  The effective dates would

be the beginning of each rate year and that way you don’t
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-- the tariff would be effective for the duration of the

rate plan.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.  So will the

volumetric rates for rate year 2 and 3 be higher than it

is for year 1, under the rate plan?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, and this is shown

in Appendix 7 of the J.P.  So, for example, if you look at

page 2 of that appendix, --

MR. DICHTER:  I’m there.  Go ahead.

MR. TIMBROOK:  -- the -- for example,

the first block rate for a single family residential is

shown on the right as 5 dollars -- 5.026 dollars for

C.C.F.

MR. DICHTER:  Yes.

MR. TIMBROOK:  And if you go to page 8

of the same appendix, you can see all -- all three

volumetric rate blocks the price increases.

MR. DICHTER:  And how is that

allocated among the rate blocks?

MR. TIMBROOK:  So on page 22 of the

J.P., that process is described.  Part E mentions rate

differential between blocks 1 and 2, and 2 and 3, and how

that differential is governed.

MR. DICHTER:  So it was adjusted in
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rate years 2 and 3 to preserve this -- the 50 percent

differential?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, that would apply

to the duration of the rate plan.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.  Let’s move on to

staff initial testimony, Exhibit 26, which I believe is

J.P. 1.  Can you explain what this exhibit demonstrates?

MS. WANG:  This exhibit demonstrates

the major driver of the rate year plan of the proposed

rate plan compared with existing rate that’s determined in

the 2013 case -- Case 13W0295.

MR. DICHTER:  You have a revenue

requirement number here of 7,592,474.  That’s not the same

as in under the J.P.  Isn’t that correct?  J.P. -- I can

give you a reference, has a number of 7,691,000 dollars.

You can see that at in --

MS. WANG:  Yeah, that’s -- yeah.  I

see that.  That’s in J.P. Appendix 2, you’re referring?

MR. DICHTER:  Right.

MS. WANG:  Page 1.  That number --

when we do reconciliation, you see it?  First line of that

exhibit and the revenue requirement adjustment, that’s

that exact number, 7,592,474, but J.P. referred to the

total line, that’s 7,691,533.  You could also add the
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revenue tax to talk actually revenue increase -- add

revenue taxed, could be a different number, but it’s all

the same schedule -- source is the same schedule.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay, and on Exhibit 26,

you show an amount for recovery of Haverstraw project

costs.  Is that correct?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.

MR. DICHTER:  And you break that down

into the amortization and then a portion that’s called

unamortized balance in rate base?  Is that --

MS. WANG:  Correct.

MR. DICHTER:  -- Is that the return on

rate base in year one?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.

MR. DICHTER:  And that total is

6,690,189.  Is that correct?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.

MR. DICHTER:  So of the -- am I

correct in saying of the rate year one revenue

requirement, 6.7 million dollars of it is -- of the 7.6

million dollars is attributable to Haverstraw project

costs?

MS. WANG:  The 6.7 million is

attributed to Haverstraw costs but also want to point out
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that that’s the result also the pass back of the new --

qualified New York manufacturer credit that’s about 3.3

million.  Without that, the rate increase would be about

more than 10 million.

MR. DICHTER:  Uh-huh.  In that regard,

can we turn to what was handed out yesterday?  I think

it’s Exhibit 31 -- I have here somewhere.  32, which is

Staff J.P. 7.

MS. WANG:  You said the, you said the

J.P. 7, right?

MR. DICHTER:  Yes.

MS. WANG:  Okay.  I have it with me.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.  Can you explain

column A?

MS. WANG:  That’s the revenue

requirement impact of amortized has the Haverstraw cost

over 15 years?

MR. DICHTER:  Okay, and this is

assuming the current -- or the rate of return provided by

the J.P.?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.

MR. DICHTER:  Through the whole 15-

year period, correct?

MS. WANG:  Right.
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MR. DICHTER:  So the 75.9 million

dollars is the amount that the company would recover on

Haverstraw project costs assuming the same rate of return

over the 15 years?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you

mind if I just ask a clarification while you’re thinking.

The other -- yesterday, when someone was asking about

this, I just want to make clear I refer to -- I think I

asked if it was the way that the interest is applied is

analogous to like an adjustable rate mortgage.  So, I want

to follow up on that because that can sometimes have

negative connotations.  The -- I think the line of

questioning today and yesterday is just asking or

confirming -- or I’m asking to confirm.  Say the -- the

company does come in again in three years for a rate case.

These numbers would possibly change starting with if -- if

it were 3 years, the year 4 number, correct?

MS. WANG:  Right, that’s techni --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And the could --

MS. WANG:  -- called --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh, sorry.  Go

ahead.

MS. WANG:  The amortization model
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won’t change, but after 3 years the balance going to be

reduced by this 3 year past.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MS. WANG:  At that time, we determined

that the rate in different rate of return and that return

of the amortized balance is going to change.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and did you --

MS. WANG:  This is just --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- just a thought --

Oh, sorry.  Sorry.  Sorry.

MS. WANG:  Sorry.  This is just some

information we have is the current plan, current rate of

return, so we do this for comparison purpose.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and so to be

perfectly clear, if -- if under my hypothetical, they came

back in in 3 years and the rate, whether it was by

agreement or just through the generic finance case, was

lower than the total number that we’re talking about now,

the 77 point -- I'm going to estimate -- 77.9, would also

be lower then, right?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.  They say

come down to the number total interest, so the total

interest number going to change.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I
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just wanted to make sure that was clear without --

MS. WANG:  You're right, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MR. DICHTER:  In following up on the

judge’s question, the inverse is true also.  If the rate

of return is higher in the next rate case, then this --

these amounts will go up.  Is that correct?

MS. WANG:  That’s correct.

MR. DICHTER:  In the Commission order

directing the company to abandon the Haverstraw plan, they

requested the company to file a petition to move the

expenditures from account one oh seven; construction work

in progress to account -- can you remind me of the

account?  One oh -- no, it’s 186 I believe, for

miscellaneous debit accounts.  Is that correct?

MS. WANG:  Uh-huh.  I think that’s

correct.

MR. DICHTER:  That’s correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Correct.

MR. DICHTER:  And the language I’m

referring to is on page 20 of that order.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And can I justclarify

The one that was issued December 18th, 2015 --

 the order that you’re referring to is in Case 13-W-0303.  
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MR. DICHTER:  And I can read it just

to make it --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Well, well.

MR. DICHTER:  -- easier for staff or

not.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Would that be

helpful to staff for him to read the language or?

MS. WANG:  Sure, if it’s not long.

MR. DICHTER:  No, it’s not.

MS. WANG:  Ten minutes maybe I just

read it.

MR. DICHTER:  Once abandoned, the

company should file the deferral petition requesting to

transfer project costs from construction work in progress;

account 107, to miscellaneous deferred debits; account

186.  The deferral petition should include the information

identified in the appendix to this order.  Did the company

file such a petition?

MS. WANG:  Company file second

recovery in conjunction with the re-case finding, so the

company’s proposal as to Haverstraw met those Commission

requirement.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay, and the reference
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to miscellaneous deferred debits account 186, that’s

referring to the Uniform System of Accounts?

MS. WANG:  Yes, I think so.  That’s

regular -- regulatory asset.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay, and the uniform

system of accounts is a component of the code and

regulations of the Commission.  Isn’t that correct?  Set

forth therein?

MS. WANG:  Yes.

MR. DICHTER:  You can -- I wondered if

you would be able to tell me what the def -- what falls

within account 186?

MS. WANG:  Without checking the

detailed description, I think 186 is for regulatory asset.

MR. DICHTER:  And what type of items

typically fall into that category of regulatory asset?

MS. WANG:  Well, any extraordinary

expense or other item, if Commission approve to be treated

as reg - regulatory asset, it’s going to be categorized in

account number 186.  I can give you example -- a storm

cost for electrical utility, deferred pension -- I cannot

exhaust list but once it is determined to be regulatory

asset, that’s the general account book; regular asset.  Or

in -- in some case, company can also book regular asset in
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250-some account that -- that’s in it for regular

liability.

MR. DICHTER:  Uh-huh.

MS. WANG:  But the reg -- regular --

liability can be a possible regulatory asset.

MR. DICHTER:  Looking at the Uniform

System of Accounts, section 186 -- account 180 -- section

186 of the -- of the Code of Rules and Regulations of the

Commission, it states:  This account shall include all

debits not elsewhere provided for, such as miscellaneous

work in progress and unusual or extraordinary expenses not

included in other accounts which are in the process of

amortization and items, the proper final disposition of

which is uncertain.  So, with that definition, you're

calling it and saying that this is an unusual or

extraordinary expense?  Is that correct?  If I understand

your testimony.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, just a point

of clarification.  Does the witness have the regulation in

front of her or is she being asked to listen for what Mr.

Richter -- or Mr. Dichter is -- is saying?  I -- I’m --

MR. DICHTER:  I’m happy to show it to

her.  I don’t have any --

MR. ALESSI:  -- follow the question
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myself, but I don’t -- I don’t have it in front of me, but

if the witness --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  -- is doing it, fine.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Does -- does the

witness have the regulation in front of her?

MS. WANG:  No.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Does anyone object

to her being provided with a copy of the regulation?

MR. DICHTER:  Of course not.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Do you have

it in paper format or on your computer?

MR. DICHTER:  This is --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  I don’t have an objection

to, Your Honor.  I just wanted to note for the record

whether she had it in front of her or.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, I -- I

understand.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

MS. WANG:  Mr. Dichter, I think you

are mistaken this section 186 where it states U.S.O.A.

account 186.  Is this U.S.O.A.?  P.S.C?  U.S.O.A.?

MR. DICHTER:  Just PSC.
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MS. WANG:  But the -- yeah, maybe this

is the ju -- but -- but -- we didn’t testify what account

is appropriated book this Haverstraw because it’s really

the nature if Commission has ruled is prudent here in cut

cost and company allowed recovery as regulatory asset, if

Commission decided it’s appropriate to book in sep --

different account, that’s not really usual here.  It’s

really the nature of the day putting in cut costs and

allow recovery.  That’s what reflect in the J.P., not the

account number.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So I think

what’s is appropriate then, is to the extent you want to

continue on this line of questioning, we’re going to have

to rely on what’s in the order and how the order

characterized that account and based on the language that

you pointed us to, it seems to indicate that account 186

that they were talking about, was miscellaneous deferred

debits and so you can -- these questioning on what this

says but not on what you were showing her on the computer

-- I don’t think because it sounds like there’s confusion

as to whether or not that’s referring to the correct

U.S.O.A account.

MR. ALESSI:  Well, that’s what I’m

trying to understand.  What the witness’ understanding is
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of what the Commission was referring to in its order when

it said miscellaneous account 186.

MR. DICHTER:  That’s correct, and,

Your Honor, I -- I’ve been trying to understand what --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I’m going to

allow you some leeway but it’s not going to be based on

the assumption that what you’re looking at on your

computer that we can’t see -- we, the others of us who

don’t -- are not sitting in front of your computer, can’t

see -- is exactly the same as what the Commission was

referring to on page -- page twenty.  So, with that

clarification, I’m going to let you go question by

question and we’ll -- we’ll see what happens.

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

Q. Do you believe, Ms. Wang, that the

Commission was referring to the Uniform System of Accounts

set out in the code and regulations for water utilities?

A.  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Did the court

reporter get that answer?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Miscellaneous

Deferred Debits is what it says in front of -- It says

miscellaneous deferred debits, (account 186).
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THE REPORTER:  Yes.

MR. DICHTER:  I’ll move on, Your

Honor.

Q. The reason one would move the item

from construction work in progress to miscellaneous

account in part would be to stop the accrual of A.F.U.D.C.

on those expenses.  Is that correct?

A. The Commission ordered the company to

abandon the project since there’s no construction activity

the A.F.U.D.C. was stopped accrual.

Q. So when construction activity stopped,

A.F.U.C.D. should stop being accrued by the company.  Is

that correct?

A. That’s correct.

MR. DICHTER:  Okay.  Did the court

reporter get that?

THE REPORTER:  Yes.

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you.

THE REPORTER:  Thank you.

Q. Moving on to management and services.

The company presented a new methodology to be utilized in

allocating its -- in recovering its management services

costs in this proceeding.  Isn’t that correct?

A. That’s correct.
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Q. In -- after the last case, did the

Commission undertake an audit of management services costs

of the company?

A. I -- yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Just to clarify, you

mean after the last rate case?

MR. DICHTER:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

A. I don’t think it’s full audit.

Commission ordered the company to -- started the cost

allocation and company filed report of that allocation

study.

Q. Uh-huh.

A. And that result also the new cost

allocation manual -- the company filed that in this

proceeding.

Q. Thank you.  And what did staff do to

review that manual in this proceeding?

A. Yes, staff did extensive review and

the proposal adjustment.

Q. Okay, and those adjustments are

incorporated in the J.P.?

A. Partly.

Q. Okay.  What part was not included in
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the Joint Proposal?

A. Staff tests for position had one point

-- roughly one point two million adjustment.  The J.P.

reflect I think something near one million.  That’s the

result of negotiation give or take, but looking at overall

J.P. provision, it’s a whole package, so we don’t really

look at specific line because you really -- you give or

you take to reach the overall --

Q. Okay.

A. -- J.P. package.

Q. Understood.  My question is more

directed at what did the staff undertake to determine the

justness and reasonableness of the new methodology

proposed by the company?

A. We do see --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can I just -- I’m

A. Yes, the company’s allocation manual,

you can find in the company’s direct filing, staff made

adjustment to the allocation ratio to use net plan instead

sorry.  The new methodology for M&S?

MR. DICHTER:  Yes, correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Go ahead.  Sorry.
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of total asset and we also use ONM labor expense instead

of total payroll and also staff adjust some costs as a

result of adjustment.

Q. Now my understanding is, under the new

methodology, more are costs are incurred at the service

company level than under the previous methodology.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Again, just to

clarify, the new methodology as expressed in the J.P. or

as expressed in the staff’s testimony or in the company’s

testimony?

MR. DICHTER:  Well, the -- the -- the

Joint Proposal adopts the new methodology with some

adjustments as Ms. Wang has been discussing --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  But again, just --

I’m not --

MR. DICHTER:  -- Referencing --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- and I’m not

trying to give you a difficult time --

MR. DICHTER:  No, no, no --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- but is it the new

methodology as it was expressed in the company’s

testimony?  Is --

MR. DICHTER:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- I --
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MR. DICHTER: -- that’s correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Sorry.

MS. WANG:  I don’t totally agree with

you because with the change of new cost allocation manual,

some costs were directly booked at the subsidiary level

before, now it’s reclassified.  As a result, those line

number -- for example, outside service employee, cut-rate

general insurance, those are sig -- significantly reduced.

I -- I think they’re reduced by more than two million --

those other lines.  So it’s really the class --

Q. Is the -- is the manner -- sorry.  If

you have -- was --

A. -- reclassification, it’s not more

causes a shift from this account to that account.

Q. Okay, but does the company’s proposal

and as adopted in the J.P., provide a new method for

allocating common costs among various Suez company’s or

subsidiaries mannered different than under the old

methodology? Is a -- Is a portion of cost, the way it's

allocated to New Hampshire or New Jersey, and New York

different than it used to be under new methodology?

A. I think that’s in company testimony

and exhibit.

Q. Did the staff review the manner in
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which those costs are allocated among the various Suez

entities to determine if it was reasonable?

A. Yes.

Q. And how did the Commission do that?

How did staff do that?

A. Where we see not appropriate, we made

adjustment.

Q. Moving on to a new subject area; non-

revenue water, so we’re clear.  If the company has a non-

revenue water percentage of 24 and 1/2 percent versus 18

percent, does that impact on the expenses of the company?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, in -- in theory.

All else equal, that would mean the company would need to

treat and pump more water to provide the same amount of

supply.

Q. And that would impact, for example,

chemical costs?

A. Treatment, yes.

Q. Looking at the Joint Proposal Appendix

2, page 12 of 31.

BY MR. DICHTER:

Q. So, it’s page 22 of 31.  Excuse me.

The company is showing a line item for

purchase -- a purchased water expense.  Is that correct?

859



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

A. Yes.

Q. And showing for the rate year ending

January 31, 2019, 209,000 dollars, approximately?

A. Yes.

Q. Where can I find that number for the

rate year, which I thought I had?

A. I actually think you had it on page 12

the first time.

Q. Okay.  That’s correct.  For the rate

year, it shows 208,580 dollars.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. In the rate design provided by the

Joint Proposal, it provides for the elimination of the

summer winter rate differential.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Was any study undertaken to determine

what the impact would be on consumption of eliminating the

summer rate schedule?

A. By impact, do you mean customer usage

impact of different rates?  Like customer behavior impacts

of different rates?

Q. Both.

A. So, I believe that the company has

submitted, and I don’t recall whether it was under this
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case or a different case number, but a report including

different rate design proposals.  Staff also, as a part of

its review, looked at bill impacts as -- from the rate

design change and considered behavioral impacts of the

rate design change.  Those I don’t have in front of me but

they are things that we considered.

Q. But a formal study wasn’t undertaken

to determine what the  -- the impact would be?

A. The -- the impact both on customer

behavior and bill impacts?

Q. Well, more on the total volume

consumption of the customers as a whole.

A. Not specifically for this rate design

changed, to the best of my knowledge, no.

Q. Turning to page 35 of the staff’s

initial testimony in support of the J.P., turning to line

11 through 15.  It states that the company is to provide a

comprehensive service classification study with its next

rate filing.  Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. So this -- does the staff believe this

is a -- a valuable study to be undertaken?

A. I think the value of the study depends

on the results, but staff certainly thinks it’s
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information that is potentially useful toward making this

-- the -- making this rate design optimal.

Q. Okay, and this would determine whether

customers are assigned to the right class.  Is that

correct?

A. So, I believe there are two main goals

that are both listed in the J.P., but I can summarize.

One is to make sure that customer classes make up of

customers of similar type.  For example, you know,

customer size, and 2, to detect any seasonality of use to

further break down customer classes that the rate design

could target.

Q. Okay.  Now, it would be possible,

would it not, during the rate plan, to conduct this study

and implement its -- the results in a revenue neutral

fashion?

A. It would be possible, yes.

Q. If the study is worth doing and the

results could be implemented during the rate plan, why is

not the staff requesting the company to do it within the

rate plan period instead of for the next rate case?

A. So, staff would be -- either option is

acceptable as I said previously.  Staff recommend --

recommended this particular option of including it with
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the company’s next rate filing because it’s often helpful

to look at service class reclassification, which ties into

revenue allocation, which ties into bill impacts on a more

global forum like a rate case.

Q. Move on to conservation.  The Joint

Proposal provides a reward and penalty incentive to the

company for achieving better or worse results in the

rebate program than the target of 1 million gallons a day

reduction?

A. Not -- not exactly.  The - the

negative revenue adjustment begins at 0.8 M.G.D. and the

share to save -- shared savings kicks in at 1.5 M.G.D.

Q. Okay, and that’s computed at the end

of the 5 year period --

A. Yes.

Q. -- for the conservation plan?

A. Yes.

Q. So, if the company decided that it

wanted to backload its efforts in conservation to years 4

and 5, for example, of the Joint Prop -- conservation plan

provided by the Joint Proposal, they could do so and there

would be no harm or penalty to the company from doing

that.  Is that correct?

A. If -- yes.
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Q. But the Joint Proposal provides for

compensation to the company for conservation for each year

of the rate plan.  Is that correct?

A. So, you mean the cost of the program

are covered in rates?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes.  The first 3 years’, costs of the

program are covered in the first -- in the 3 years of this

rate plan.

Q. Does the RAC Mechanism provide any

reconciliation for expenditures for conservation?

A. The RAC Mechanism is for revenues, so

no.

Q. Is there another mechanism that

provides any reconciliation during the rate period for

expenditures of conservation measures?

A. So, there’s -- there’s no

reconciliation during the rate plan, although the J.P.

provides that there will be a reconciliation of costs at

the end of the 5-year program.

MR. DICHTER:  May I have a minute,

Your Honor, to check and see?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  Yes, it

does not -- I -- I have to say yes, so that it’s in the
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record.

Q. One last few questions in the

conservation area.  Would staff expect that the

participation in a direct install program would be greater

than in a rebate program as proposed by the Joint

Proposal?

A. I’m -- I’m sorry.  We had a long

enough discussion.

Q. It’s fine.

A. Could you refresh us?

Q. Yes.  The question was would staff

anticipate a higher participation by customers of a direct

install program versus a rebate program as proposed in the

Joint Proposal?

A. I -- I think potentially.  It depends

on the nature of the direct install program, but in theory

re -- rebates that cover more value are more appealing to

customers.  We would agree with that.

Q. And would you agree that an audit

program where customers, fixtures are reviewed and

determinations are made as to what they would benefit most

from replacing is also a helpful tool in having customer

participation in achieving maximum results from a

conservation plan?
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A. Absolutely, we would agree, which is

why that’s part of the plan in the J.P.

MR. DICHTER:  And can you describe the

plan as it is under the J.P.?

MS. MAMMEN:  On page 28 of the J.P.,

the fifth point describes the program.  It’s a do-it-

yourself audit.  They’ll -- there essentially will be

provided to residential customers.  There will also be an

audit program developed for multi-family, commercial,

institutional and industrial facilities.

MR. DICHTER:  Are there any target

dates provided for when those au -- audits will be

implemented and offered to customers?

MS. MAMMEN:  I don’t believe there’s a

target date for that specifically, but it is part of

program rollout.

MR. DICHTER:  And the company is

compensated for the cost implementing an audit program in

this -- in rate years 1 through 3, in this proceeding?

MS. MAMMEN:  Yes.

MR. DICHTER:  That’s all the questions

I have, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Just a

clarification.  What was the answer to the last question?
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MS. MAMMEN:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Does

staff have any redirect?  Do you want to --

MR. DOWLING:  May I consult?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, let's go off the

record.

OFF THE RECORD

ON THE RECORD

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Let’s go back on the

record.

THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

MR. DOWLING:  Panel, returning to the

issue of a potential direct install program.  While such a

program may encourage more people to take part in it,

would it be more -- as cost effective as the proposed J.P.

pro -- program?

MR. TIMBROOK:  No.  A direct install

program, obviously, would make rebate plus installation

costs -- or would -- would make the rebate much more

expensive, thus changing the whole comparative equation of

conservation on a cost per M.G.D. saved basis as compared

to other -- either water supply or conservat -- you know,

demand and reduction efforts.  So just making the rebate

program, as provided in the J.P. direct install would --
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would change the program entirely in terms of its -- its

comparability to those other programs.

MR. DOWLING:  Thank you.  No further

questions, Your Honor.

MR. DICHTER:  I have one redirect

question, Your Honor.  I mean re -- recross.  Sorry.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It’s -- you have to

stay within the scope --

MR. DICHTER:  I am.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- of the -- okay.

MR. DICHTER:  Mr. Dowling in his

question to you asked if -- about cost benefit of doing

direct install versus rebate program.

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor, it was cost

effectiveness.

MR. DICHTER:  Cost effectiveness.

Okay.  Has the staff studied the cost effectiveness of a

direct install versus rebate program?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Staff has done

estimates of what a direct install program could cost on a

dollar per M.G.D. basis and found it to not be, at this

point in time, an effective use of the rebate program.

MR. DICHTER:  Uh-huh.

MR. TIMBROOK:  I would add that under
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the terms of the rebate program in the J.P., if a direct

install program was the only conservation effort that

would appeal to the company’s customers, they have the

flexibility to raise the rebate amount to that level.

MR. DICHTER:  That’s all I have, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  I

actually have a few questions and I think all of the

company’s panel witnesses are here as well that were here

previously.

MR. FITZGERALD:  I believe so.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So, to save

some time, I -- I would -- even though we can’t fit them

all at one table -- like to proceed with the assumption

that these questions are directed to both panels, if

that’s okay and if a spokesperson from the company wants

to also answer the question, if they could maybe come to

the mic or just come closer so they can do that, but if

there are objections, I won’t do that.

MR. ALESSI:  No objections, Your

Honor, from the company.

MR. FITZGERALD:  No objections, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So, the
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company’s witnesses are still under oath and just bear

with me, and again, I’m -- I’m not kidding.  If I ask a

question that you feel there’s a reasonable objection to,

please make it.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, would it be

acceptable if the company stands or comes close?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes, yes.  That

would be helpful.

MR. ALESSI:  Company, if you could

just -- or if you need it -- want a chair and bring it

over there, but I’d be helpful for the judge if she can

look in just one place.  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  The -- the

first --

THE REPORTER:  Closer.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oops.  Sorry.  The

first question is on page 16 of the Joint Proposal --

paragraph 8, under the property tax section.  It indicates

that the signat -- I’ll -- I’ll wait a minute.  The

signatory parties agree that reasonable expenses

associated with the company’s efforts to reduce its

property taxes including challenges, I’m going skip the

paren, will be fully recovered by the company prior to

calculation of the amount of tax savings to be shared
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between the company and customers as described above.  I

just wanted to ask, will the reasonableness of those

expenses, is that going to be as determined by staff

pursuant to a filing?  Oops.

MR. CAGLE:  We don’t want any

electrocutions here.  So --

MR. ALESSI:  Excuse me.  So, does the

reporter need a name when someone is answering?

MR. CAGLE:  Oh, sorry. It’s James

Cagle.

THE REPORTER:  Thank you.

MR. CAGLE:  So, basically, when --

when the company undertakes a -- a -- you know -- a

challenge to its -- to its property taxes, it will incur

some costs and as -- if those costs are not otherwise

provided for, the company has the opportunity to request

or ask for that within the context of its reconciliation.

Those reconciliations are then reviewed by staff.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and is that --

after staff conducts its review, does the Commission have

to take any additional action on it?  Is that what’s en --

envisioned here or no?

MR. CAGLE:  At this point, the

reconciliation mechanism has kind of been in the property
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tax reconciliation mechanisms has been around for quite a

-- quite a while.  It seems to have worked fairly well.  I

don’t believe that there’s any Commission action that has

to be taken --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. CAGLE:  -- under that.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And staff concurs or

no?

MS. WANG:  When it’s a -- the cost

related to the asset come naturally achieve a refund,

generally we -- not that refund but the cost before

sharing with the -- with the ratepayers.

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh, sorry.

MR. DOWLING:  Just to clarify, there’s

a specific section in the Public Service Law that

addresses these property tax refunds and a hearing is

required, so, there would be a hearing on the specific

refund and recovery.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  That’s exactly what

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I just wanted

the clarification as to the process and how the

determination as to whether they're reasonable would be

made.  Thank you very much.
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I was getting for -- thank you for that because I was

trying to understand the nexus between this and what

normally happens when there’s a property tax refund.  So

thank you.  I guess I should’ve just rephrased or phrased

it differently.  And then, this is just -- it’s a little

more nit picky, on page 21, paragraph numbered 9, and this

is under the SIC, System Improvement Charge section.  The

very last sentence of paragraph 9, when I first read it

and I -- I think I understand it now but I was a little

bit concerned because it almost -- it’s -- the sentence

reads, those new base rates will recover the costs that it

had been recouped previously via the SIC charge.  So,

they’re going to recover the costs.  It’s -- it’s more the

mechanism.  It’s not going to recover any costs that had

been previously recovered.  It’s going to be the new

mechanism for recovering those costs.  Correct?  Based --

putting them in base rates will be the way that the costs

that were previously recovered through the SIC will be

recovered going forward but not recovering any of the same

costs --

MS. WANG:  That --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- that had --

right?  Had -- had been recovered in the SIC?

MS. WANG:  Right.  So, before this

873



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

project, they're placing rate base, the assets here really

recovering the carrying costs of those project, so once

you wrote in base rate -- in coming -- in next rate base

proceeding, so those carrying costs going to be part of

this revenue requirement.

MR. CAGLE:  Yes ma’am.  That’s

basically it.  The -- the -- this rate would be on a bills

rendered basis as opposed to a prorated basis, so that’s

why it’s the 30 days.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So, what

happens if the government entity ends the countywide water

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  On twenty --

page 23, it’s a clarification of the drought rate.  It’s

part 3 A, Subsection 2. When the government entity puts in

place such a water use restriction, the company will

implement per its tariff, the drought rate 30 calendar

days after the restriction has been initiated and then the

drought rate will remain in effect until the government

entity has ended the previously mentioned countywide water

restrictions.  Is the implementation of the drought rate

30 calendar days after the restriction has been initiated 

an effort to make sure that that’s implemented because of

 how the company bills for its water?  Like to put it in 

line with the bills?
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restrictions before -- like on a less than 30-day period?

It -- is it prorated then when you do the next bill, will

the drought rate be prorated or will it still go for the

full thirty days?

MR. TIMBROOK:  No, in -- in that case,

Your Honor, it wouldn’t go into effect.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, no, no.  I'm

saying it’s been instituted, so in -- I’m going to say

July because that makes more sense since it’s the drought

rate -- say July 1st, they implement the drought rate

pursuant to this provision, starting July 1 to July 30,

but on July -- I don’t know -- 19th, the county says we --

we’re removing the countywide water use restrictions.  How

does that get reflected for the bills that start on August

1?  I may have choose -- Wait.  Let me change that.  So,

they end it on August 2nd and then the bills -- I’m

assuming the bills in September cover August.  Is that

correct?  You have to say it into a mic.

MR. CAGLE:  Sorry, yes.  Yes ma’am, to

a large degree.  It -- it’s -- we -- we bill during the

month, so it’s kind of a rolling -- some bills may be on

the 3rd, some bills may be on the 5th -- that type of

thing.  So, it’s not -- it’s not all based on a calendar

period if you will.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So, just bear

with me.  So, in my hypothetical, a person gets a bill on

the 3rd for all of August, but the countywide restriction

ended on August 2nd, will it reflect the drought rate for

2 days or will it reflect it for another 30 day period?

MR. CAGLE:  So, okay.  So, if the --

under a scenario, if I may, kind of repeat it just to make

sure that I -- that I have it correct.  If the county

imposes -- if the -- the drought rate could become

effective through -- through the actions of -- of the --

the Department of Health on the 1st of July, and they

canceled it on the 19th --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Well, I changed it

to the --

MR. CAGLE:  I’m sorry.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- the -- to August

2nd because --

MR. CAGLE:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- I’ve been trying

to understand.  It sounds like the drought rate goes into

effect for a 30 day period, but I’m trying to understand

what happens when the restriction is not for the full 30

days that the customer is being billed.  Sorry.

MR. CAGLE:  I’ve got -- I think Chris
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has a --

MR. GRAZIANO:  Chris Graziano.  Your

Honor, maybe I can shed some light on this.  The 30 days

drought -- the 30 calendar days was there to ensure that

the drought was a long-term issue and drought in the

county.  So this stops the rate from having to go on and

off, in your exact scenario, every 2 weeks or every week.

So, if the drought is in effect for 30 days, then the

drought rate takes effect at that point.  If the drought

is in effect for 30 days.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. GRAZIANO:  That’s why it’s in

there.  That’s what it’s built in there for.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Thank you.

So, now, continuing on page 24.  This is a -- the

Conservation and Efficiency Program.  There seem to be

several components of that and, for example, part B of

that section, which appears on page 26, says the company

will propose, Part C says the company will develop, and I

was trying to make sure I understood the timing, so I went

to Appendix 9, which is the Table of Reporting and Filing

Requirements, and it refers to the Conservation and

Efficiency Program overall will in -- so in -- within 6

months, that’s the time period identified under the
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deadline column in that chart, will all of the components

that are reflected in Sections A, B, C, D, and et cetera -

- on pages 24 through 28, be included in that filing so

that we know when they will propose the -- for example,

the outdoor water use and when they’ll develop the sponsor

workshops?

Is that the intention -- that all of

those will be in that filing as provided for in the

appendix?

MR. GRAZIANO:  Chris Graziano again,

Your Honor.  Let just -- just let me clarify a little bit

for that question.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. GRAZIANO:  Do you mean in that

first 6 month filing, will all the anticipated dates of

implementation for these programs be in that six month

filing, or do you mean will there be an implement --

implemented by the time of that 6 month filing?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think both because

I’m just trying to understand.  I have a question mark as

to when they will -- they -- I’m sorry -- the company will

propose the outdoor water use workshop and when it will

develop and sponsor the workshops and training programs

under C, so I'm just trying to get a sense of timing and I
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-- I didn’t know if all of that was going to come in in

that first filing or if it could be staggered.

MR. GRAZIANO:  We anticipate it will

be staggered and we’ll have a better idea of the exact

implementation time in the first 6-month filing.  Some --

some of these things might be in place by then and some

will have plans of when they’ll be in place by then.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So, will the

first 6-month filing then provide estimated dates, for

example, the Irrigation Workshop Program and the

Commercial Industrial Trade Workshop Programs?

MR. GRAZIANO:  Yes, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Perfect.  Thank you

very much.  On page 27 of the J.P., paragraph 2, the first

sentence indicates that there will be an annual estimated

budget of 25,000 -- 25,000 dollars and then further down,

the third sentence, has another estimated cost of 15,000

dollars.  Are those two additive? Like, is the total 40 or

the 15 is not a subset of the 25, correct?  I’m sorry.  I

made that a compound question.  Let me start over.  Is the

25,000 and 15,000 additive so that the total is 40,000?

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  The 25,000 is for
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marketing and the 15 is for translation of publications.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  So they are

separate.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  I -- I’m

-- I want to understand better.  On page 29 and 30, this

is related to the Conservation Program Incentive

Mechanism, and if you have addressed this in your

testimony, maybe you can just point me to the right area

or you can decide to address it in brief.  So, I was

trying to understand -- it seem -- it seems -- I think

there’s a provision to recover the Conservation -- the

costs of the Conservation Program Incentive Mechanism.

Those costs are provided for, correct?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, that’s correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So, how --

What’s -- okay -- and so a positive revenue adjustment

mechanism is designed to be an incentive correct?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is it intended to

reflect any risk that the company is undertaking or

exposed to by implementing this program?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Your Honor, the -- the

purpose of the positive is shared benefits, I’ll phrase it
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as -- is to give the company a financial incentive to make

the program successful.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  In -- oh, go ahead.

MR. ALESSI:  If I could, Your Honor?

For protocol here, if the company believes it has an

answer or a supplemental to answer to what staff has, are

they -- should they voice that supplemental answer?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay.  So if the company

--

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Does the company

answer and you want to add to it or you don’t, but you

have the option.

MR. GRAZIANO:  Oh, okay.  We have the

option and do we have the option to confer as well?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. GRAZIANO:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.  I

appreciate the clarification.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You’re welcome.

wish to be heard?

MR. ALESSI:  If -- if there’s --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Company witnesses?

MR. ALESSI:  -- if the staff has an
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MR. TIMBROOK:  The -- the -- we

confer.  The company doesn’t have anything to add to that

response, Your Honor.

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay. It did say in

Appendix 3 of the order related in that case that it would

continue in subsequent years unless changed by the

Commission.  Do -- do you recall that?

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and did it say

that?

MS. ODELL-KELLER:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  On page

31 of the Joint Proposal, it -- it -- the -- I -- I don’t

-- I don’t see the customer complaint rate and I -- just

to confirm, does that mean that the Customer Service

Performance Incentive Mechanism as proposed in this J.P.

does not include a complaint rate portion anymore?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Okay.  All

right.  In, I believe, in Case 13-W-0295, I believe part 

ofthe Customer Service Performance Incentive Mechanism 

wasthe inclusion of the customer complaint rate.  Is 

thatcorrect or do you remember?  Okay.  You remember and

that’s correct?
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MS. ODELL-KELLER:  That’s correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Okay,

and this is my final question and this is actually for the

company panel.  At the most recent public statement

hearing that was held on September 29th, there was a

speaker, I don’t remember her name, but she asked why

there were -- was not a bar chart similar to what she has

for her electric company or gets from her electric company

showing her use month -- on a month to month basis, so she

can track whether it’s higher or lower.  Is that something

that can even be provided on a water bill?

MR. GRAZIANO:  Your Honor.  It’s Chris

Graziano again, Your Honor.  I’m a bit confused by the

question because on the left-hand side at the top of our

bills, there is a bar chart that goes back into last year

--

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. GRAZIANO:  -- that shows your

usage.  There is one on the bill.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So it’s

already reflected then.

MR. GRAZIANO:  There’s -- there’s

columns that show you you’re actual usage each month for

the last whatever -- I believe it’s 12 months.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, my

recollection though is that they were dealing with a

comparison to the average consumer, so that somebody could

say am I better than the average or worse than the

average.  My -- my recollection is not what the person at

the public statement hearing asked.  I mean the transcript

will obviously speak for itself.   My recollection is the

same as the judge’s, is that the speaker indicated that

they -- they couldn’t see what they were going month to

month.  I -- I don’t recall any speaker ever saying I

wanted to know what my neighbor was doing.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Right.  That’s my

recollection as well because I -- I was thinking of my own

electric and gas bill and I do have a little chart and so

I can compare July to July and if I’m higher or lower and

figure out what I’m doing to cause that differential.  So

that was my question.  That was the only thing I wanted to

ask because it sounded like a good idea, so.  All right.

MR. ALESSI:  It is a good idea.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Those are all of my

questions.  Does counsel need to confer with their panel

to see if they have redirect or would you like to do so?

And I’ll direct this to staff counsel first.

884



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

MR. DOWLING:  Let me confer, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and to

company’s counsel as well.  If you’d like to confer and

let me know the answer to that question and please don’t

trip over the wires.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, we’re just

going to do a two-step.  Counsel’s going to confer and

then we’re going to go -- thank you.

(Off the record)

THE REPORTER:  On the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Prior to the break, I had

given counsel an opportunity to consult with their witness

panels to determine whether they had redirect based on the

questions that I asked.  Staff counsel, do you have any

redirect?

MR. DOWLING:  No, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Company counsel, do you

have any redirect?

MR. FITZGERALD:  No, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, thank you.  All of

the cross for the staff panel, I believe, has been

concluded at this time and so I want to thank the staff

panel for its time and you are now excused.  All right.
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Our schedule indicates that we have two more witnesses but

given the time, I was going to suggest that we take our

lunch break.  I’ll do an hour -- well, actually if you

could be back by 1, that’s slightly.  No, okay an hour.  I

heard the eesch.  One hour break for lunch.  We are off

the record.

(OFF THE RECORD)

(ON THE RECORD)

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh sorry.  We’re back on

the record.

MR. ALESSI:  Judge, did I hear you say

there are two more witnesses or three more witnesses?

MR. DUTHIE:  That’s right.  We have Mr.

Herbert, the Company’s rate design witness.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes, thank you.  I’m

(OFF THE RECORD)

(ON THE RECORD)

sorry.  They’re not on -- I have them handwritten in.

Correction, there are three more witnesses.  The Company

panel is not excused.  They will be coming back with Mr.

Herbert.  We also have cross examination for Ms.

Legislator Cornell and for the Amawalk witness but we 

will do that after lunch.  1:15 if you could be back.  

That’sless than an hour but more than 45.
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THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I just want to

confirm, before we broke for lunch, I believe the company

was going to confer with the other parties and let me know

what the witness order is.  Is that correct?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So I don’t see Mr.

Simeti.  Is he here?  No.  I mean I know he’s here but not

in the room somewhere.

MR. DUTHIE:  I think he -- he indicated his

MR. FITZGERALD:  It was correct, Your

Honor.  And we did attempt to confer with the other

parties on witness order.  We had initially discussed

having the company panel come up with Mr. Herbert to

complete that one remaining piece and then move on to the

two other remaining witnesses, one from Amawalk and then

Ms. Cornell.  Mr. Simeti did express some concern about

the timing of completion and I did indicate to him that

the reason we are looking to have the New York, the SWNY

panel go up first with Mr. Herbert was his need to catch a

plane this afternoon, and so that’s where we left it, Your

Honor, with a preference by the company to proceed in that

manner, which would be the company panel with Mr. Herbert.

Then moving on to Ms. Cornell and then finally the Amawalk

witness.
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agreement with Mr. Fitzgerald’s proposed order of

witnesses.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. DICHTER:  His only concern was that his

witnesses be finished today.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh, we’re going to finish

today.

MR. DICHTER:  I assumed.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We’re going to finish

with all of the witnesses that are indicated for today

today.  So with that, the company, if you could please

call your panel back.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Certainly, the company

calls its panel back to the witness stand.  Your Honor, I

would note that as indicated, we’ve added Mr. Herbert to

the panel.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.  I need to swear him

in.

MR. FITZGERALD:  That is correct.  Thank

you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So, Mr. Herbert, can you

remain standing and please raise your right hand.  Will

you state your name for the record?

MR. PAUL HERBERT:  Paul R. Herbert.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And Mr. Herbert, do you

swear or affirm that your testimony will be the truth, the

whole truth and nothing but the truth?

MR. HERBERT:  I do.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  And I’m just

MR. LEVINE:  Mine is probably the shortest,

Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  You can go first.

Mr. Levine, please proceed.

are large families which for want of a better word, I’ll

call family of two parents and we’ll use 8 children, so a

family of ten, that there’s a group, a large group of

families like that in Rockland County?

A. Yes.  In my discussions with -- with

company management they had, they indicated that that is

an element of their customer base.

Q. Did you examine since you worked for

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BRUCE LEVINE

Q. Mr. Herbert, are you aware that there

889
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the company, did you have access to bills of families in

those geographic areas where they might be to see what the

effect of your rates would be on those families?

A. I -- I did not.  I didn’t have any

specific information on those types of families.

Q. Do you have any idea if the rate

structure that you’ve proposed might affect them just

because as large families, they would be predicted to use

more water?

A. Well, I would -- I would agree with

you that larger families use more water. We had to come up

with a rate -- rate design that, you know, satisfied, you

know, the average -- the average household and that --

that would involve, you know, single person families and

more than the -- the normal size family.  I just -- you --

you can’t design a rate structure that -- that approaches

every specific situation because that would be

administratively, you know, impossible.

Q. Last question is do you think that

when whatever rate structure is approved, whether there

should be some analysis done in reviewing how that works

concerning those families?

A. Well, as I understand the joint

proposal, it will include a study of service
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classifications and the different types of customers that

are being served under certain rate classifications and I

would -- I’m not a party to that negotiation.  I don’t

know what was involved with coming up with that part of

the J.P. but I would imagine that that would -- that study

would address those issues.

Q. Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Mr. Duthie,

would you like to go next?

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, I think I’ll yield

to Mr. Dichter.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Dichter, please

proceeding, did you not?

A. I did.

Q. Do you have a copy of it with you?

A. I do.

Q. Can I refer you to page 10 of your

proceed.

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. JOEL DICHTER

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Herbert.

A. Good afternoon.

Q. You filed pre-filed testimony in this
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pre-filed testimony?  Line 22, going over to page 11 where

the question is did you discuss rate design guidelines

with company management?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.  And your response was yes, and

could you read number 1?

A. Design a conservation based rate

structure with monthly facility charges by muni-size and

inclining block rates for residential and multi-family

classifications effective year round with no summer

differential.

Q. Was that a request from the company’s

management or was that your signature?

MR. FITZGERALD:  And your Honor, I do need

to object indicating that the witness is not standing here

today for that particular piece of testimony.  It has been

marked for identification purposes only as to the

company’s litigation position.  That position has since

been supplanted by the testimony of the panel on the J.P.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you want to respond?

MR. DICHTER:  The Company’s -- the proposal

to go from a season rate design to a 1-year round is in

the Company’s initial testimony and that was incorporated

into the joint proposal, so I’m trying to find out the
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basis for how that came about in the first instance.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  The -- okay, my concern

though is I don’t think it was incorporated into the joint

proposal.  I don’t believe he’s even -- it hasn’t been

offered as something that he’s swearing to but I will

offer you some leeway if you’re just trying to understand

what the previously articulated position was but he has

not sworn to that or adopted it as his sworn testimony in

this part of the proceeding.

MR. DICHTER:  I understand that, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I’ll give you some

leeway.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DICHTER

Q. Can you answer the question, Mr.

Herbert?

A. That part of the proposed rate

structure was a -- a discussion with the Company that

indicated some opposition from the customer base on the

seasonal tariff and through, I think it was part of the

Black and Veatch study that -- that indicated in the

survey from customer class, from the customer base that

that was not a popular aspect of the rate design.  So to
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get away from that seasonal part of it and have a year-

round inclining block rate structure, I then suggested

that a 3-block structure was more appropriate so that we

could target the -- the discretionary consumption in the

third block, so that we could price that at the highest

rate in order to encourage a reduction in that

discretionary use.

MR. DICHTER:  Your Honor, I’d like to have

marked as the next exhibit number the response to

Intervenor’s Request No. 6.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It’s a 1-page document MI

6 will be marked for identification as give me one --

Exhibit 44.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DICHTER

Q. And this is directed to anyone on the

panel, not just Mr. Herbert.  I requested whether any

analysis to determine the impact of summer usage from

eliminating the summer/winter rates had been undertaken

and the response is no such analysis was performed.  Is --

is that correct?

A. That’s correct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  One second.

THE REPORTER:  So, I didn’t -- I couldn’t
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hear you.

MR. DICHTER:  I’m sorry.

THE REPORTER:  I’m sorry.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DICHTER

Q. The first question on MI 6 was please

provide any analysis to determine the impact on summer

usage from eliminating the summer/winter rates and the

response is no such analysis was performed.  And I’m just

confirming that that’s correct and I believe the answer

was yes.

A. That’s correct.

Q. Mr. Herbert, in your pre-filed

testimony, you performed a cost of service study.  Is that

correct?

A. I did.

Q. And you used the based extra capacity

methodology?

A. Correct.

Q. Under the base extra-capacity

methodology, could you describe what goes into the base

component of it?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can I just clarify, is

the cost of service study still underlying the proposals
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that are in the joint proposal?

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, I’d like to -- I’d

prefer to have the company witnesses --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  Is that okay if they can

answer that?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.  Yes.

MR. ALESSI:  You’re under oath.

MR. HERBERT:  As -- as far -- I can answer

as far as --

MR. ALESSI:  You can confer.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You can -- wait -- let me

--

MR. ALESSI:  Oh.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  He wasn’t here before so

if you need to consult, you’re part of a panel.  The

questions are directed to the panel.

MR. HERBERT:  I understand.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  If members of the panels

need to consult before you answer, you’re allowed to do

that.

MR. HERBERT:  The -- the joint proposal for

-- for the revenue allocation part by -- by customer class

did comport with the results of the cost of service study
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after the -- in the third rate year.  However, there were

some -- some elements of the cost of service study that

weren’t taken into consideration, such as the -- the

customer costs.  We had -- we had proposed up a higher

customer charge to recover the customer costs that were

identified in the cost of service study but in the joint

proposal, the customer charge was left unchanged.

MR. DICHTER:  Thank you for that

clarification.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DICHTER

Q. And base costs are costs that tend to

vary with the quantity of water used.  Is that correct?

A. That’s -- that’s true under average

load conditions.

Q. Yes.

A. The costs that vary with the use plus

for maximum day facilities, the average portion of the

average of the maximum day facilities.

Q. So if the quantity of water used

declined due to conservation, for example, that would

reduce the base costs that are going into the formula?

A. It would -- it would reduce the

variable base costs but not the fixed base costs.  In
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fact, that would go up with the reduced consumption per --

per unit.

Q. And if the company had a lower non-

revenue water loss, would that impact on the base cost if

it was reduced from 24 percent to 18 percent non-revenue

water, would that reduce the base costs?  That would be a

variable cost, would it not?

A. It would -- again, the same answer.

It would reduce the variable cost but the base portion of

fixed costs would not be reduced.

Q. Okay.  Now, in designing rates, the

allocation of costs is not the only factor that should be

considered.  Isn’t that correct?

A. It should be, in my view, the primary

-- the primary level of -- of consideration when designing

rates but there are other considerations to -- to look at.

Q. Conservation incentives is another

rate design factor to create in the design areas.

A. It would be one, yes.  Uh-huh.

MR. DICHTER:  Those are all the questions I

have, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Mr. Duthie?

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, I have nothing.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  I don’t think
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MR. FITZGERALD:  One moment, Your Honor, if

I could consult.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, may we step in the

back of the room for a moment?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Thank you, Your Honor.  We

have no redirect for this panel.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  In that case,

the panel is excused and I thank you for your time.

PANEL:  Thank you, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So my understanding is

that the next panel is being offered by the County of

Rockland?

MR. SIMETI:  Yes, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  If you could call your

Panel, please?

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, it’s not my

understanding that it’s the Panel.  I believe it would be

two separate witnesses.  One would be the Amawalk

anyone else has indicated cross for this panel, so do

you have any redirect based on the questions that were

asked?  I’m sorry, does counsel have any?
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representatives and the other would be Ms. Cornell.

MR. ALESSI:  But that’s the way the

testimony was filed.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  There are two names on

here.  Is there only one witness?  I think --

UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Well, Your Honor, I

think there should --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  C. Edward Markus and

Shane Lynn.  Are those two names?

MR. FITZGERALD:  Yes, Your Honor.  I

thought -- I thought they only had one witness appearing

today.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  But only Mr. Markus is

here?

MR. FITZGERALD:  I believe that’s correct.

MR. ALESSI:  Is this on?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is the green light on?

MR. ALESSI:  Yes, the green light is on but

I don’t know.  Okay.  Very well.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You may -- you may want

to move up if that’s the case for -- it might be something

with the mic but it’s -- it’s totally up to you.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, it was -- it

was our understanding also that Ms. Cornell would go first
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not sure -- let’s go off the record.

(OFF THE RECORD)

(ON THE RECORD)

THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Oh thank you. We’re on

the record.  And could you please state your name for the

record.

MR. EDWARD MARKUS:  Edward Markus.  M-A-R-

K-U-S.  I’m sorry.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  And could you

please stand and raise your right hand.

MR. MARKUS:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you swear or affirm

that the testimony you give today will be the truth, the

whole truth and nothing but the truth?

MR. MARKUS:  I do.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Please prepare your

witness.

MR. SIMETI:  Very well.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SIMETI

Q. Mr. Markus, are you a principal of

before the Amawalk panel.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Honestly, I don’t, I’m
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the direct testimony consist of 7 pages containing

questions and answers and including 2 exhibits, an Exhibit

A and an Exhibit B?

A. Yes.

Q. And -- and with regard to the rebuttal

testimony, did that testimony include questions and

answers, 10 pages of questions and answers and including

an Exhibit A?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you have any changes or

corrections to that testimony?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Okay.  If I were to ask you the same

questions today, would your responses be the same?

A. Yes.

in this proceeding?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And for the purpose of the record, did

under DMM 104 and rebuttal testimony under DMM 126 --

A. Yes.

Q. -- on behalf of Amawalk Consulting

 

Amawalk Consulting Group, LLC?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you pre-file direct testimony
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MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, I ask that the

direct and rebuttal testimony of the witness consisting of

the pages as indicated be copied into the record as if

given orally today and that the exhibits be marked for

identification.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  With respect to

the testimony, have you provided the testimony on disk for

the court reporter?

MR. SIMETI:  I did not but I can do that

before I leave today.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  The testimony that was

described as direct testimony dated September 4th, 2016 --

MR. SIMETI:  14th.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  14th, thank you, 2016,

will be copied into the record as though given orally and

the testimony that was described as rebuttal testimony

dated September 23rd, 2016, will be copied into the record

as though given orally.  
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1 I. INTRODUCTION 
2 

3 Q. PLEASE ST ATE YOUR NAME, OCCUPATION AND BUSINESS ADDRESS. 
4 
5 A. Our names are Edward Markus and Shan Lin. We are employed by the Amawalk Consulting 

6 Group LLC ("Amawalk"), located at 90 Broad Street, Suite 707 A, New York, NY 10004. 

7 Q. ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU SUBMITTING THIS TESTIMONY? 
8 
9 A. We are submitting this direct testimony ("Direct Testimony") before the New York State Public 

IO Service Commission ("PSC") on behalf of the County of Rockland (the "County") to review 

11 the petition for a rate increase filed by SUEZ Water New York, Inc. (the "Company"). 

12 Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND 

13 PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE IN THE UTILITY INDUSTRY. 

14 A. Mr. Markus is a Managing Consultant and the President of Amawalk. He has provided 

15 financial and management consulting services to water and wastewater clients for over 33 years 

16 and has over 39 years of experience in the water and wastewater industry. Mr. Markus was a 

17 member of the management consulting practice of Ernst & Young for 12 years before opening 

18 a New York City office for Black & Veatch in 1993. He left Black & Veatch in July 2005 and 

19 founded Amawalk, a financial and management consulting company. Mr. Markus has been a 

20 speaker at numerous utility industry seminars. Mr. Markus has a B.E. in Civil Engineering 

21 from Manhattan College and a M.S. in Civil/Environmental Engineering from the Polytechnic 

22 Institute of New York. 

23 Ms. Lin is a Senior Consultant with Amawalk providing financial and management 

24 consulting services. Ms. Lin has eleven years of experience, with Black & Veatch and 

25 Amawalk, with water and wastewater rates and budgets, alternative rate analysis, forecasting 

26 of water demand, feasibility analyses to support the issuance of debt, complex data analysis, 

27 benchmarking and best practice analysis, and the development and use of financial models. 

Amawalk Consulting Group Page 2 
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I Ms. Lin has a B.A. in Economics from the University of Chicago and a M.B.A. in Finance 

2 from NYU Stem School of Business. 

3 A summary of our professional and educational backgrounds is included as Exhibit A. 

4 Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE AMAWALK'S ACTIVITIES IN WATER UTILITY 

5 ENGAGEMENTS. 

6 A. The Amawalk Consulting Group ("Amawalk") provides financial and management consulting 

7 services for water and wastewater systems. Examples of the services we provide include: 

8 Competitive assessments, including benchmarking and implementation of best practices; 

9 Consolidation of services and resources; Cost of service and rate studies, including financial 

IO modeling; Customer service: enhancement of quality and efficiency; Expert witness services; 

11 Feasibility studies to support the issuance or restructuring of debt; Financing alternatives 

12 including both public and private sector options; Formation of public authorities including 

13 transition planning; Service delivery optimization: organization structure, policies & practices, 

14 facilities & equipment, outsourcing (where appropriate) and use of technology; Succession 

15 planning; and Strategic plarming and master planning. Clients include: the New York City 

16 Water Board; the New York City Municipal Water Finance Authority; the District of Columbia 

17 Water and Sewer Authority; the Boston Water and Sewer Commission; the North Hudson 

18 Sewerage Authority (Hoboken, NJ); the Momoe County Water Authority (Rochester, NY); the 

19 Mohawk Valley Water Authority (Utica, NY); the major water supplier for Northwest 

20 Arkansas and the Philadelphia Water, Sewer and Stormwater Rate Board. Our firm has 

21 previously been retained by the County of Rockland for the proceeding before the PSC. 

Amawalk Consulting Group Page 3 
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1 II. PURPOSE AND OVERVIEW OF TESTIMONY 

2 Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY? 

3 A. Our testimony assesses the compliance of the Petition and the Joint Proposal ("JP") with the 

4 PSC Orders under 13-W-0295 and 13-W-0303, compliance with industry practices and the 

5 potential impact of the JP on the ratepayers of the County. 

6 In conducting our analysis of the JP, we focused on three key issues: 

7 I. Reasonableness of the inclining tier thresholds - are customers appropriately classified so that 

8 the rate structure sends the appropriate conservation message and are the tier thresholds for 

9 the proposed rate structure reasonable given customer usage patterns and the urgency to 

1 O promote water conservation through the rate structure? 

11 2. Alternative rate structures - are there alternative rate structures that can better achieve 

12 conservation and the equitable recovery of cost among customer classes without unduly 

13 burdening users in any particular customer class? 

14 3. What options does Suez have to assist low income ratepayers given the already high cost of 

15 water in the County? How do its efforts compare with peer utilities? 

16 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR METHODOLOGY USED IN PREPARATION FOR 

17 YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY AND REPORT. 

18 A. To prepare this Direct Testimony and the Report, Arnawalk reviewed documents filed with the 

19 PSC regarding the Petition. We considered publicly-available information from other water 

20 systems, water industry publications, as well as for the County. 

21 !!!. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 

22 Q. PLEASE SET OUT THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM YOUR REPORT. 

23 A. 1. As to issue 1, PSC should order the Company to validate the classification of each customer 

24 within one hundred twenty (120) days of the date of the JP so that: 
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1 1. Each customer is confirmed as being in the correct billing class or reclassified immediately 

2 into the correct class, 

3 11. Customers that could be included within multiple categories are flagged as such for further 

4 

5 

review and action including, but not limited to, submetering or the creation of different rate 

classes, 

6 111. Non-residential customers with significant seasonal variations in use are flagged as such for 

7 further review and action including, but not limited to, the creation of a seasonal rate class, 

8 1v. Accounts with zero consumption on a year-round basis are reviewed to identify those with 

9 

10 

broken or tampered meters - those that serve active customers but are inoperative should be 

replaced in a timely manner, 

11 v. The Company provides the results of the classification review to the PSC and the results are 

12 posted to the PSC Document and Matter Management System (DMM) (the results posted on 

13 DMM may be in summary form, without reference to specific property names/address). 

14 2. As to issue 2, the PSC should order the Company to maintain the existing MFR rate structure 

15 until such time that it complies with the previous PSC Order to: (a) submit a realistic assessment of 

16 MFR conservation rate structures and (b) recommends a specific conservation rate structure and 

17 obtains approval of the structure by the PSC. The Company submission of a realistic assessment of 

18 MFR conservation rate structures and recommendation of a specific conservation rate structure 

19 should be made within one hundred eighty ( 180) days of the date of the JP. Key components of the 

20 assessment and recommendation must include the following: 

21 

22 

23 

I. Detailed information concerning the characteristics of the MFR class including water 

consumption by varying size of customers (housing units) and the diversity of the housing 

stock and its inhabitants, 
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I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IL 

111. 

IV. 

v. 

Review of alternative rate structures and their ability to encourage conservation in the 

County including: water budgets per housing unit, use of historical rolling averages per 

account and other options to tailor the consumption allowances and calculated charges to 

the MFR customer accounts, 

Proposed billing tiers and rates and estimated effects of the alternatives on consumption 

and customer bills of varying size customers, 

Company recommendation for a selected structure including the basis for the 

recommendation, and 

Proposed methodology for reviewing the rate structure effectiveness in future rate cases. 

10 3. As to issue 3, the PSC should order the Company to create an affordability assistance program 

11 for monthly water bills of low income ratepayers. The program design shall be submitted to 

12 the PSC within two hundred seventy (270) days of the date of the JP. Key components of the 

13 affordability assistance program must include the following: 

14 1. Establishing an agreed-upon budget for assistance, such as 0.5% of revenues from user 

15 charges for the initial years of the program, 

16 11. Identifying eligibility criteria (e.g., similar to LIHEAP energy assistance and/or based on a 

17 

18 

percentage of the federal poverty level) that minimizes the efforts of both customers and the 

Company in determining who is qualified to receive assistance, 

19 111. Identifying appropriate social services agencies that can qualify customers at a reasonable 

20 cost per application, 

21 1v. Providing assistance to qualifying customers within the agreed-upon budget, and 

22 v. Periodically reviewing the status of the program and providing an assessment of potential 

23 changes to the program for the next rate case. 

24 4. Additionally, the PSC should expand the scope of the proposed Conservation Program 
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1 Incentive Mechanism to include not only rebates but the effectiveness of all other actions 

2 required including the use of conservation rates. In addition, the review period should not 

3 have to wait for five years, but be started immediately and be finished in time for the 

4 beginning of Rate Year 2. 

5 Finally, if the Company's efforts are falling short of expectations (in terms of demand 

6 reduction), an independent party should be retained to review and routinely monitor the 

7 Company's conservation performance, reporting to the PSC and interested stakeholders. 

8 Our analysis and recommendations are incorporated herein by reference in the Report annexed as 

9 Exhibit B. 

10 Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY AT THIS TIME? 

11 A. Yes. 
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12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Did you file direct testimony in this proceeding? 

Yes. 

What is the purpose ofthis rebuttal testimony? 

The purpose of this testimony is to provide comments in response to open issues 

presented in the direct testimony submitted by Suez Water New York, Inc. (the 

"Company" or "SWNY") and the other parties regarding the Joint Proposal (the "JP"). 

Please discuss your comments to these open issues. 

The JP identifies three key issues: 

1. Reasonableness of the inclining tier thresholds - are customers 

appropriately classified so that the rate structure sends the appropriate 

conservation message and are the tier thresholds for the proposed rate structure 

reasonable given customer usage patterns and the urgency to promote water 

conservation through the rate structure? 

2. Alternative rate structures - are there alternative rate structures that can 

better achieve conservation and the equita!:Jle recovery of cost among customer 

classes without unduly burdening users in any particular customer class? 

3. Options for low income ratepayers - What options does the Company have 

18 to assist low income ratepayers given the already high cost of water in the County 

19 and how do its efforts compare with peer utilities? 

20 These key issues highlight several points. Firstly, the Company's own consultant, Black & 

21 Veatch, questions whether high usage accounts classified as Single Family Residential ("SFR") 

22 are, in fact, SFR customers. "During review of the billing data, single-family accounts with 

23 exceptionally high use were identified and were flagged for further review to determine if they 

1 
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I are appropriately assigned in the SWNY customer billing system." 1 There is no mention by the 

2 Company or its consultant as to whether the further review was conducted and whether there 

3 were necessary changes to the findings. 

4 The cost of service analysis and the development of rates are dependent, in part, upon knowing 

5 that customer accounts and their accompanying meters and consumption are included in the 

6 appropriate class. The Black & Veatch Report criteria for estimating how many accounts may be 

7 misclassified is arbitrary and unsubstantiated. The actual number of misclassified SFR accounts 

8 could be higher or lower than the Black & Veatch Report estimate. Here too, there is no 

9 explanation offered in the Black & Veatch Report or the Herbert Testimony as to why over 12% 

10 of Multi-Family Residential ("MFR") bills have no consumption. 

11 Secondly, the JP further ignores the customer classification issues identified by Black & Veatch 

12 and the concerns we cite in our Direct Testimony (e.g., why are there so many MFR customers 

13 with zero consumption and if customers are in the wrong class for billing purposes, how 

14 incentivized will they be to conserve water?) by saying that the matter of customer classification 

15 could be studied as part of the next rate case in three years, "as necessary''. The terms for "as 

16 necessary" are not defined; there is currently no financial incentive for SWNY to take action. 

17 We recommend that the PSC order the Company to perform the classification analysis now, not 

' 18 in three years; the first step of the analysis is to simply determine if each customer account is in 

19 the correct billing class. 

20 When the rates for customers vary by class, reviewing the classification of each customer to 

21 determine whether each customer is in the correct class for billing purposes or to identify 

1 Suez Water New York, Water Conservation Plan, hereinafter referred to as the Black & Veatch Report, pages 74-5 
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1 circumstances (e.g., mixed residential and commercial use properties or large seasonal users) that 

2 warrant special considerations (e.g., a new billing class) is prudent practice for water utilities. 

3 Here, the PSC should order the Company to validate the classification of each customer within 

4 one hundred twenty (120) days of the date of the JP. Recommended steps in the classification 

5 analysis are outlined in our Direct Testimony. 

6 Thirdly, the JP fails to address a directive from the previous PSC Order requiring the Company 

7 to analyze rate design strategies that promote conservation: 

8 "We therefore direct UWNY to conduct and report to us the results of a study of 

9 revenue allocation and rate design strategies that might further promote 

10 conservation in its service territory. 

11 Such a study should forecast the likely response, in terms of usage, of various rate 

12 design strategies. " 

13 The County recently requested data from the Company for the number of multi-family properties 

14 by building size (i.e., 2-family, 3-family, 4-family, 5-family, etc.) in its service area. A copy of 

15 the Interrogatory and Response is attached as Exhibit "A". The Company response is set out 

16 below. 

17 Response: 

18 1. The Company objects to this interrogatory because it calls for the preparation of a 

19 special study and is also overly burdensome. The analysis would require the gathering 

20 of 10 months of data for approximately 74,000 accounts as well as additional 

21 calculations to arrive at an answer. This information is not readily available to the 

22 Company. 

23 Here, the Company admits that it has no information on the number of building units in its 

3 
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I MFR customer base; in the absence of such data, SWNY could not comply with the PSC Order 

2 because it is a very important element of estimating the " ... likely response, in terms of usage, of 

3 various rate design strategies". Further, it is unclear how SWNY designed the proposed MFR 

4 rate structure to be conservation-oriented without knowing the characteristics of its MFR 

5 customers. The Company response in denying the County data request for the number of 

6 housing units in MFR accounts references the burden to the SWNY of gathering 10 months of 

7 data and 74,000 accounts; yet Black & Veatch reported that there are 1,600 MFR accounts in the 

8 Company system (not 74,000) and the County simply asked for the number of accounts by size 

9 of account (with size based housing units, not consumption). The Company appears to be saying 

I 0 that it doesn't understand a very basic characteristic of its MFR customer base. Additional key 

11 concerns that we have include: 

12 a. The JP presents no analysis showing how the new MFR rate structure will be 

13 better than the existing rate structure in promoting conservation; there is no basis for 

14 concluding that changing the existing rate structure is in the public interest 

15 b. The PSC Staff Testimony refer to the proposed rates as a conservation-

16 oriented rate design when there is no data presented in the Petition to support this 

17 conclusion for MFR customers; as noted above, SWNY failed to comply with the PSC 

18 Order regarding the likely response, in terms of usage, of various rate design strategies 

19 c. There is no supporting analysis to explain the logic of the proposed tiers and 

20 rates to individual MFR customers; telling very large MFR customers that they will pay 

21 more per I 00 cubic feet and per housing unit than smaller customers simply because they 

22 are bigger is not sending a logical conservation message through the rate structure 
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I d. The PSC should require the Company to fully comply with its Orders before 

2 rewarding it with a revenue and a rate increase; otherwise, the Company has no incentive 

3 to comply with PSC Orders 

4 e. In addition, the Company should evaluate the option of setting a water budget 

5 per housing unit for MFR and/or other conservation rate structure alternatives with real 

6 customer data and analysis in order to comply with the PSC Order and reach well-

7 supported conclusions on its proposed rate structure and the potential of that selected rate 

8 structure to promote conservation. Black & Veatch has previously worked with 

9 alternative conservation structures; SWNY should require Black & Veatch or a similarly-

! 0 qualified firm to present a thorough analysis of MFR conservation rate alternatives with 

11 real customer data 

12 f. The absence of data or analysis supporting the logic of the MFR rate structure 

13 and its ability to promote conservation raises a significant risk that the proposed rate 

14 structure will fail to promote conservation and MFR consumption actually increases; 

15 requiring the MFR rate structure to be overhauled again in three years 

16 g. To the previous point, it will be confusing and costly to customers to have to 

17 study this matter again in three years (with more consultants and Company staff to be 

18 paid from ratepayer dollars) to potentially change the rate structure again, when it should 

19 have been analyzed in accordance with the PSC Orders now 

20 h. The PSC, in the public interest, must require the Company to complete the 

21 analysis thoroughly this time 

5 
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1 From the illustration presented in our Direct Testimony, the proposed new MFR rate 

2 structure functions principally on the size of customer, not whether water is being used 

3 efficiently. 

4 Consequently, the PSC should order the Company to maintain the existing MFR rate structure 

5 and rates until such time that it complies with the previous PSC Order to: (a) submit a realistic 

6 assessment of alternative MFR conservation rate structures, (b) recommends a specific 

7 conservation rate structure with the supporting logic using: actual customer base characteristics, 

8 estimates of water savings and impacts on customers, and c) obtains approval of a well-

9 documented MFR conservation rate structure by the PSC. The Company submission of a realistic 

10 assessment of MFR conservation rate structures and recommendation of a specific conservation 

11 rate structure should be made within one hundred eighty (180) days of the date of the JP. Key 

12 components of the assessment and recommendation are highlighted in our Direct Testimony. 

13 We submit similar testimony regarding the proposed Non-Residential ("NR") rate structure. The 

14 Black & Veatch Report notes that commercial water use in both July and August 2015 was over 

15 1 mgd greater than in the same months in previous years and that the seasonal use profile which 

16 shows a pattern of summer peaks. Another previous report prepared for the Company also 

17 highlighted portions of the NR customer base as impacting seasonal demand. 

18 "Thus, the summer peak water demand appears to be driven by the increase in water use 

19 among single-family, commercial, and municipal accounts. Water conservation programs 

20 intended to reduce the summer peak water use should be targeted to these sectors."2 

21 

2 DEIS Support Technical Memorandum October I, 2010 revised, UWNY Future Water Demands and Conservation 
Issues CDM, page 6 
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1 Recognizing that the same observation was made regarding MFR accounts, there was no detailed 

2 review of the NR customer base in Rockland County and its potential for water savings through 

3 conservation-based rates presented in the Petition. The Billing Frequency data that is provided in 

4 Herbert Exhibits for SFR and MFR customers is also not included in those same Exhibits for NR 

5 customers. The absence of a " .. forecast the likely response, in terms of usage, of various rate 

6 design strategies, including, at a minimum, increases in the seasonal rate differential and in the 

7 increments of inclining block rates. . . " again means that the Company did not satisfy the 

8 requirements of the PSC Order. Once again, the Company should not be rewarded with a rate 

9 increase if it does not comply with PSC Orders. 

10 Here, no rationale is presented in the JP for the proposed tiers for NR customers. The water 

11 conservation logic for selecting 900 ccf as the ceiling for the first tier, but none is provided No 

12 analysis is presented for the proposed rates per the JP of $4.854 and $5.855 per CCF, 

13 respectively, for the first and second tiers, to explain how those rates encourage conservation by 

14 Non-Residential customers. 

15 Once again, the JP presents no analysis showing how the new NR rate structure will be better 

16 than the existing rate structure in promoting conservation; in fact, the seasonal increase in NR 

17 rates under the current structure are eliminated despite the previous comments of Company 

18 consultants that there are seasonal increases in consumption by NR customers. 

19 It is unclear how the PSC Staff Testimony refers to the proposed rates as a conservation-oriented 

20 rate design when there is no data presented in the JP to support this conclusion for NR 

21 customers. 

22 Moreover, the JP kicks the NR customer seasonal consumption issue down the road for three 

23 years until the next rate case, again losing the opportunity to encourage conservation over that 
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1 three-year period and does not even guarantee it will even be addressed in the next case. This is 

2 not in the public interest. The Company's own consultant (Black & Veatch) highlights seasonal 

3 use. Under the JP, seasonal customers may pay less under the proposed NR rate structure than 

4 they do under the current structure which makes no sense if the message is conservation. 

5 For simplification, our comments are divided into two parts: for NR customers without 

6 significant seasonal variations, no basis has been provided for the tier selection so there is no 

7 basis to conclude that the new rate structure will encourage conservation. The proposed 

8 structure in the JP is not in accordance with the previous PSC Order. The Company should be 

9 required to start over on the NR rate design. If the PSC does not want to change the course laid 

10 out in the JP for the entire NR class, then we strongly urge action on the rates for customers with 

11 significant seasonal demand variations as noted below. 

12 The PSC should focus the Company's attention on NR customers with significant seasonal 

13 variations by requiring a new seasonal rate structure for those NR customers with significant 

14 seasonal variations intended to reduce the seasonal peak usage; this seasonal structure should be 

15 developed immediately instead of pushing it at least three years into the future. The program 

16 design should be submitted to the PSC within two hundred seventy (270) days of the date of the 

17 JP. In addition, the PSC's Order focused attention on the affordability of conservation measures 

18 and rates: "UWNY's study should consider as well the direct and indirect costs of various 

19 measures, including the extent to which such measures may burden the economy of the service 

20 territory." 

21 Single family water rates in the Company's service area under the proposed rate structure are 

22 expensive relative to the charges of other water purveyors in the region, much higher than the 

23 average charge and in the highest quartile of peer utilities. The County has a strong median 
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1 household income but has many households that have low incomes. The JP do not address the 

2 high single family rates or the income issues so, once again, the Company did not comply with 

3 the PSC Order. Similar to the energy industry, the trend in the water industry is to provide bill-

4 paying assistance to low income households --- there are numerous illustrations of such 

5 assistance programs, including American Water (New Jersey). The PSC should order the 

6 Company to create an affordability assistance program for monthly water bills of low income 

7 ratepayers. The program design shall be submitted to the PSC within two hundred seventy 

8 (270) days of the date of the JP. Key components of the affordability assistance program are 

9 outlined in our Direct Testimony. 

10 The JP also presents a Conservation Program Incentive Mechanism (the "Mechanism") by 

11 which the Company can receive negative or positive revenue adjustments depending on the 

12 performance of its conservation program. Consistent with its prior Order, the PSC must direct 

13 the Company to pursue conservation initiatives that will minimize the need for traditional 

14 infrastructure investments. However, the Mechanism is focused on the number of rebates, not 

15 on the effectiveness of other conservation measures. It would make no sense to reward the 

16 Company for doing well in promoting rebates but at the same time falling short in all other 

1 7 means of promoting conservation. 

18 On this point, we recommend that the PSC expand the scope of the proposed Conservation 

19 Program Incentive Mechanism to include not only rebates but the effectiveness of all other 

20 actions required to reduce water demand including the use of conservation rates. In addition, 

21 the periodic review period to assess the effectiveness of conservation should not have to wait 

22 for five years, but be started immediately and be finished in time for the beginning of Rate Year 

23 2. 
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1 Finally, if the Company's efforts are falling short of expectations (in terms of demand 

2 reduction), an independent party should be retained (at the sole expense of the Company) to 

3 review and routinely monitor the Company's conservation performance, reporting to the PSC 

4 and interested stakeholders. 

5 Q. Does this conclude your rebuttal testimony? 

6 A. Yes. 
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MR. SIMETI:  No.  No, ma’am.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  All right.  Is

your witness now available then?

MR. SIMETI:  Yes.  Your Honor, Mr. Markus

is available for cross-examination.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  And it’s my

understanding that there is cross examination for this

panel by Suez and Municipal Intervenors.  Correct?

MR. SIMETI:  That’s my understanding,

Judge.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  And do we have

agreement as to who is going first?

MR. FITZGERALD:  We have not, Your Honor,

but I would be glad to concede to the other party to start

and then I will follow.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Dichter, would you

like to proceed first or would you prefer second?

MR. DICHTER:  Prefer second here.

The Exhibit A that was filed on September

14th will be marked for identification with Hearing No.

45.  Exhibit B will be marked for identification with

Hearing No. 46.  And then Exhibit A that was attached to

the September 23rd testimony will be marked for

identification as Exhibit 47.  Did I miss anything? 

922



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Company, please

proceed.  You’ve indicated 60 minutes.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BRIAN FITZGERALD

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Markus.  My name

is Brian Fitzgerald.  I’m counsel for the Company.  How

are you this afternoon?

A. Doing well.  How are you?

Q. I’m doing well.  Thank you.  I’d like

to turn to your direct testimony at page 4.  In

particular, I’m looking at Lines 22 through page 5, Line

13.  Let me know when you’re there.

A. I’m sorry, page number?

MR. DICHTER:  What was that cite again,

Brian?

MR. FITZGERALD:  Certainly.  It was page 4,

line 22 through page 5, line 13 of this direct testimony.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BRIAN FITZGERALD

Q. Mr. Markus, do you need a copy of your

testimony or do you have it with you?

A. Is this it?  Please set out the

recommendations from your report?  Is that the --
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Q. That is correct.

A. Okay.

Q. So -- so you’re with me now?  You’re

there?

A. Yes.  Uh-huh.

Q. In that section, you’re recommending

the Commission order the Company to validate the

classification of each customer within 120 days of its

order.  Is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And I’d like to turn next to Exhibit B

of your direct testimony which was filed on September 14th

and in particular, I’m looking at page 5 and,

unfortunately, there are no line numbers but for focus

purposes, I’m looking at the first full paragraph that

begins with 50 CCF.  Do you see that?

A. I’m sorry.  Again the page number?

Q. It’s page 5 of Exhibit B to your

at is the sentence that is at the top of page 5.  It says

the actual number of misclassified SFR accounts could be

higher or lower than the Black & Veatch report estimate.

direct testimony.

A. Is this under Amawalk observations?

Q. It is.  And actually what I’m looking
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Do you see that sentence?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Can you be more specific for the

record on which Black & Veatch report you’re referencing

there?

A. This is in the conservation study that

was done by Black & Veatch.

Q. And -- and you’ve reviewed that report

and you’re familiar with it.  Correct?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. Now looking at again back to Exhibit

A. That’s what it says there.  Yes.

Q. And you assert there that you’ve

identified 5,880 bills under the SFR heading with monthly

usage at 55 CCF or higher.  Is that correct?

A. That’s correct.

Q. Now just continuing down a little bit

further here in Exhibit B, you then divided those

identified 5,880 bills by 12 months to arrive at a

conclusion that there’s an equivalent of 490 accounts if

B, you note in the next paragraph down that Amawalk has

selected a 50 CCF as a potential cutoff for the account

SFR customer class.  Is that a fair summary of your

testimony?
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spread evenly over 12 months that are misclassified.  Is

that right?

A. We said that with that assumption of

the 50 CCF, that is correct.

Q. And let’s talk for a moment about your

selected 55 CCF threshold.  Regarding that threshold, you

do note here in Exhibit B on the same page that it

represents 10 times the basic household need as cited by

the Company witness Herbert.  Is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Can you explain why you selected 10

times the basic household need for a single family as a

threshold and not 15 times?

A. We were using the 10 times as a -- as

an illustration.  I think we point out in here that the

Black & Veatch number, we believe is arbitrary and

unsubstantiated.  We made an assumption as well but one

could make other assumptions.  Our concern is the fact

that it was flagged by Black & Veatch.  I mean we’re

consultants too.  If we find very minor data problems

within a client’s properties, you know, we’re going to

report that back to the client but we’re probably not

going to mention much unless it’s something that rises to

a different and Black & Veatch is the one that brought it
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up.

Q. Now, if -- if you assumed the 20 times

the normal household use instead of the 10 times as your

CCF threshold, that would change your calculated number of

“misclassified accounts.”  Isn’t that right?

A. That is correct.

Q. And of the 5,880 bills for the SFR

class that you identified with usage at 55 CCF or higher,

they were not limited to the winter month bills.  Isn’t

that right?

A. That is correct.

Q. And so those bills included summer

month usage as well?

A. That’s correct.

Q. And was your 50 CCF analysis focused

solely on indoor usage?

A. It is solely on the basis of the data

that was provided in the Herbert testimony.  Actually the

Herbert exhibits.

Q. And is that based on indoor usage?

A. I don’t recall that it was restricted

to indoor usage.

Q. So you’re saying you don’t remember

whether it is or isn’t?  Is that correct?
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A. That’s correct.

Q. Would you agree with me that 50 CCF is

equal to approximately 37,400 gallons?

A. 7.48.

Q. Approximately?

A. Approximately.

Q. Is that a yes?

A. I mean I’d have to sit down and do the

calculations but I mean it sounds like it’s in the

ballpark.

Q. Okay.  Do you know what percentage of

Rockland County customers of the Company have swimming

pools?

A. I do not.

Q. Do you know the percentage of Rockland

County residents that have swimming pools?

A. I do not.

Q. Would you accept subject to check that

a typical residential in ground swimming pool takes

approximately 18,000 to 20,000 gallons of water to fill?

A. I don’t have any -- I don’t have any

basis to concur with that.

Q. Would you accept that a residential
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swimming pool takes a considerable amount of water to

fill?

A. Depends on the size of the pool.

Q. Let’s say a 16 x 32 in ground pool,

which would be standard in the industry, would you agree

that that takes a considerable amount of water -- water to

fill?

A. I have not done research on swimming

pools to see what the standard is in the industry, so I’m

in no position to agree to that.

Q. Is one of the known uses of large

quantity of water by customers in the FFR, I apologize,

SFR class, filling a swimming pool?

A. I’m not in a position to answer that

because in the Black & Veatch conservation plan, there was

no data presented on how many swimming pools were included

within single-family residential accounts.

Q. Would you agree that a customer that

waters an average size residential lawn for this service

territory every single day for several hours could use a

significant number of gallons per month?

A. Depends on the size of the property.

It depends on a number of different factors so again can’t

agree to that without knowing the specifics.
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Q. Hypothetically, if a customer was

running a sprinkler system with 32 heads utilizing say

5,000 gallons a day and they do that for several hours a

day and for multiple days, would you agree that that’s a

large use of water?

A. For that hypothetical, yes.

Q. So if I had a hypothetical customer

that filled a pool and, again, I’m going to make another

hypothetical assumption here that had 18,000 gallon

capacity and aggressively watered their lawn, and had

normal indoor usage in the same month, that could easily

surpass your 50 CCF threshold, is that correct?

A. I’d have to sit down and do the math

on it.

Q. What -- what math particularly are you

referencing?

A. Well, you’re talking about -- well,

first of all, you’re not giving the size of the property.

You’re not giving the number of gallons going through the

sprinkler heads.  There’s a lot of things that would have

to go into that, so that’s not something I can --

Q. Let’s break it up then.  I understand

what you’re saying.  Let’s break it up.  So
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hypothetically, the pool would be used and they’re filling

it.  It has 20,000 gallons in it.  Hypothetically, they

aggressively water their lawn and that uses 10,000 gallons

and then they add into it additional normal usage.  In

that hypothetical, would you say that they are capable of

exceeding the 50 CCF threshold?

A. And how many times are you filling the

pool in a given month?

Q. Twice in my hypothetical.

A. If you’re filling a pool of that size

and you’re using those number of gallons, yes, if you add

up all of those pieces in a hypothetical.

Q. And in your 50 CCF calculation, how

much did you assume for indoor water usage?

A. We did not break it down.

Q. Okay.  And how much did you assume for

outdoor usage?

A. We did not break it down and I might

point out there was no data provided in the Black & Veatch

report to break it down either.

Q. Now, assuming that the customer we

were just talking about hypothetically used over the 50

CCF, in that case, they could still correctly be

classified in the SFR class even though their usage was

931



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

higher than your 50 CCF threshold.  Isn’t that right?

A. If the question is could someone using

more than 50 CCF be in a single family class, the answer

is yes.

Q. Let’s move back to your Exhibit B to

your direct testimony at page 5, lines 14 through 20.  Are

you there yet?

A. Is this beginning as to issue 2?

Q. It’s your direct testimony at page 5,

line 14, which starts with a number 2 and then it says as

to issue 2.

A. As to issue 2, yes.  Uh-huh.

Q. So we’re in the same place, sir?

A. Yes.

Q. Great.  In that section, you -- you

recommend that the Commission order the Company to

maintain the existing MFR rate structure until such time

as the Company submits a “realistic assessment of MFR

conservation rate structures and recommends a specific

conservation rate structure.”  Is that correct?

A. That’s correct.

Q. And on page 6, lines 1 through 4, at

the very top of the page of your direct testimony, you

further assert that the Company’s assessment of
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alternative rate structures should include a review of the

MFR class and the ability to encourage conservation in the

county.  Isn’t that right?

A. That’s correct.

Q. Have you reviewed and are you familiar

with the Company’s information that was in the Black &

Veatch report on the seasonality profile of the MFR class?

A. Yes.

Q. And in that seasonality chart that was

contained in there in the profile is consistently around

the 3 MDG line across most of the year, in fact, in almost

all of the months.  Isn’t that correct?

A. I don’t remember the numbers but my

recollection is that it was pretty consistent.

Q. So there wasn’t very much seasonal

variation, correct?

A. Based upon the data that we saw,

that’s correct.

Q. And so for this MFR class, there’s a

very modest at best seasonality of usage profile.  You’d

agree with me on that point?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you also agree that this type of
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modest seasonal variation is likely due to the fact that

there are few discretionary water usages for this class of

customer?

A. Well, given the fact that there was no

data or I should say limited data presented in the Black &

Veatch report regarding the characteristics of the multi-

family residential base.  We would kind of assume that

outdoor irrigation uses are limited but in terms of the

rest, we really don’t know because the information wasn’t

presented.

Q. And based on this seasonality of this

class, what alternative rate structures are you proposing

to stimulate conservation given its lack of discretionary

water use and modest seasonal variation?

A. First of all, I didn’t agree to the

lack of discretionary water use. What I indicated was that

the seasonal irrigation does not seem to be a factor with

multi-family residential properties.  But there are a

number of accepted industry approaches to encouraging

conservation in the multi-family residential structures.

Black & Veatch did a study for Laguna Beach County,

California, where they have a 3-year rolling average that

they use per customer for multi-family residential

accounts that’s designed to encourage water conservation.

934



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

We kind of assumed that they probably have little seasonal

variation too but the idea is to drive down the multi-

family residential consumption.  I mentioned in our

report, Gary, North Carolina is another illustration where

they use a water budget based upon the number of units in

multi-family housing.  There are a number of interesting

structures that are being used in the industry to try to

encourage conservation in the multi-family residential

sector and we just did not see that analyzed at all either

in Herbert or in Black & Veatch.

Q. We’ll get to the water budget in a --

in a few moments.  I’d like to turn to page 6 of your

testimony on lines 10 through 23.  Let me know when you’re

there, sir.

A. It begins as to issue 3?

Q. That’s correct.  In this section,

you’re recommending an affordability assistance program

for low income customers.  Is that correct?

A. That’s correct.

Q. And you suggest on page 6, line 14

that there’s an agreed-upon budget be set up.  When you

say agreed-upon, to whom are you referring that has to

agree?
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A. This is a recommendation for the PSC

to establish an agreed-upon budget.

Q. And you suggest there a .5 percent of

revenues from user charges for the initial years of the

program.  Is that correct?

A. We say such as 5 percent, so as an

illustration.

Q. And based on that illustration, do you

know what size budget in annual dollars that would

represent?

A. I don’t know offhand.

Q. Did you calculate that as part of your

testimony?

A. No, I did not.  And, again, we use

that as an illustration to put it in terms of magnitude.

Q. Sure --

A. Not 10 percent, not 0 percent but

something in the middle.

Q. But you didn’t do any benchmarking to

determine how many real dollars that would represent,

that’s correct?  Is that correct?

A. That’s correct.  Uh-huh.

Q. And you reference the initial years on

936



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

page 6, line 15.  Is it your suggestion that the

programming would continue to grow indefinitely in size

beyond the initial years?

A. From what we’re seeing in the

industry, affordability assistance in the water business

is growing pretty significantly in terms of the scope and

type of assistance that’s being provided.  So that we

expect that a preliminary program could be introduced and

then as experience is gained through it and you could see,

you know, how the benefits are being applied and things

like that, there would be modifications to it just as

there are in other utilities around the country.

Q. Are you aware of any New York statute

or regulation that authorizes the creation of a low-income

program for water utility?

A. I did not do the research on -- on

that.

Q. And then the cost of such a program

would be borne by the other rate payers through rate

design process.  Isn’t that right?

A. There would have to be a source of

revenues for it, yes.

Q. And -- and in proposing this low-

income program, did you review the median income of
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Rockland County compared to the median income of the rest

of the state?

A. We looked at the median income of

Rockland County, which is fairly high relative to a lot of

counties in the state and even relative to -- to the

country but median income we believe is not a good

indicator of affordability because median income does not

take into consideration the substantial number of people -

- substantial number of households that are low income.

Q. In making your proposal, did you

conduct a cost-benefit analysis of a proposed low-income

program at the .5 percent of revenues from user charges

that you set forth in your testimony?

A. It was not our responsibility to

develop the program.  What we viewed in the PSC, one of

the previous -- I’m sorry --

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, that did call

for a simple yes or no answer and if the witness wishes to

explain, he may.

MR. MARKUS:  If you could repeat the

question, please?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Are you -- are you able

to precede that with a yes or no before you start the

explanation?
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BRIAN FITZGERALD

Q. Sure.  Have you conducted a cost-

benefit analysis of your proposed low-income program at .5

percent of revenues from user charges to determine whether

such a program would be cost effective?

A. Could you define what cost effective

is?

Q. Cost effective would mean that the

benefits being provided would be less than the cost.

Excuse me.  Let me rephrase that.  I got it opposite.

A. Yeah.

Q. That the benefits being provided would

be greater than the cost.

A. In terms of dollars, I don’t see how

that’s possible because you’re basically taking dollars

from one place and providing it as a benefit to low income

customers but the obvious benefits are to help those

customers with very low incomes be able to afford their

water bills, which are not cheap in Rockland County.

Q. You mentioned the bills for the

Company not being cheap in the county, are you aware of

the average cable bill for residents of the county?

A. We’re talking the water bills.
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Q. So the answer is no.  Is that correct?

A. Not part of the scope of our review.

No.

Q. Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I -- I think he’s just

asking though whether or not you’re aware, so.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So, sorry -- sorry,

Your Honor.  No.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. BRIAN FITZGERALD

Q. Thank you.  Let’s turn to page 6, line

24 of your testimony and this is still in your initial

testimony.

A. Yes.

Q. And the conservation rates that you

have in mind there, would those rates be higher than what

customers would otherwise pay in that particular class?

A. The conservation rates could

potentially be different or a concern as described in our

testimony is that the proposed multi-family residential

And you indicate on line 2 of page 7the 

use of conservation rates, do you see that section?
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rates, and non-residential rates, there is no evidence

presented to show that those are in fact conservation

rates.  They’re different from the current rate structure,

and I believe we agreed that we concur that there is no

seasonal peak to multi-family residential, so that’s fine,

but the structure as proposed provides no evidence of how

that’s going to encourage conservation, how that’s going

to apply to multi-family buildings in Rockland County.

It’s basically a matter of if it’s a bigger building, it

pays a bigger unit rate, which really doesn’t reflect

conservation, so conservation rates, yes, but we can’t

comment on whether or not the existing proposal will in

fact encourage conservation.

Q. Turning to your rebuttal testimony on

page 5, I’m looking at lines 4 through 8.  Are you with

me?

A. Is this the water budget per housing

unit?

Q. That is correct.

A. Okay.

Q. On this page of your rebuttal, you’re

recommending the company look at the option of setting a

water budget per housing unit for MFR, is that correct?

A. And/or other conservation rate
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structure alternatives, yes.

Q. Let’s focus for a moment on the water

budget, one that you were talking about.  Are you aware of

a water budget rate structure being implemented in New

York for any other major water utility?

A. I’m not aware of it at this time.

Q. Are you aware of it for any other

major water utility in Connecticut?

A. I really don’t work in Connecticut at

the present time, so the answer would be no.

Q. And you talked there about setting

certain parameters for the water budget.  Could you give

me your sort of top two parameters for the size of such a

water budget?

A. Well, we present an illustration of

Gary, North Carolina, where you set a budget in terms of

number of gallons per quarter, or per dwelling, per

housing unit within a multi-family housing structure, you

obviously need to know how many housing units you have.

Q. Now are you looking at that also as to

ascertain the number of people that live in an individual

unit within that multi-family structure?

A. No, we are not.

Q. So if the number of people within that
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unit changed, wouldn’t that also change the demand of that

unit?

A. It could, yes, just as it would for a

single family, or any other customer.

Q. Are you aware of the company's tariff

file definition of MFR customers as not being individually

metered?

A. I don’t recall specifically reading

it, but I’ll accept your definition.

cross for this witness.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Did you want

to do redirect as they do cross, or do you want to wait

until the end?  Mr. Simeti, I’m sorry, I’m trying -–

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is that your preference?

Okay, Mr. Dichter, and remember no friendly cross.

MR. DICHTER:  Depends how you define

friendly cross. I’m trying to understand the testimony,

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, if I 

could have just one more moment to review quickly.
A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, I have no further

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, if I may, I

 can wait until the end and confer with the witness at

 that time as to whether or not ––
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how it contrasts with the J.P. is friendly then we have an

issue.  If it’s to help him give him a chance to bolster

his testimony, I’m not looking to do that.

testimony I believe it is, looking at starting at line 22,

recommendations or consideration, please set out the

recommendations from your report.

A. Yes, got it.

Q. Is that related to the service

classification study?

A. Yes.

Q. What I’m like to -- trying to

understand is how this compares to the comprehensive

service classification study set out in the joint

proposal.  In the joint proposal on page 25, it says for

the next rate proceeding that they will submit a

comprehensive service classification study, and then it

lists an A and a B.  What I’m trying to understand is,

does the joint proposal include the items that you’re

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  That’s what I mean.

MR. DICHTER:  Good afternoon, Mr. Marcus.

MR. MARCUS:  Good afternoon, Mr. Dichter.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DICHTER:

Q. Referring to page four of your direct
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looking for it to include, or are there additional items

that would you like to see included in the joint proposal

that aren’t covered by it?

A. I’ve actually found the joint proposal

a little bit ambiguous there as to exactly what is

included.  Our intent here was to make sure that everyone

is in the proper customer class for both cost of service

purposes, as well as the application of a new rate

structure, whatever that might be, to make sure that the

customer is in the proper class.  It’s a tedious job to do

that, but it’s not all that difficult to figure out that

someone is multi-family versus single family, or mixed

use, or a non-residential.  It just takes a little bit of

effort, it’s not -- again not very difficult to do, but

that is something that we’ve recommended, but I can’t tell

if it’s in the joint proposal, and the other thing that

concerns me about that is it says, as necessary, and who

determines whether it’s necessary or not for that to take

place.

Q. How do you go about conducting such a

study?  What data do you have to gather and look at and

analyze?

A. If you have, let’s take a very

simplistic example, that you have a, out of your company
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billing records, you have a given street, you have

hopefully block and lot information there.  In pure single

family residential neighborhoods, probably a drive by of

just verifying that this particular address matches up

with single family residential, done.  When you get into

mixed use areas and commercial areas, a little bit more

difficult, and they may have to contact the customer and

things like that, but, again, it’s to make sure that

everyone is in the proper class.  If everyone were charged

the same rates across all classes, then it would be

important for cost of service, but not so important for

rate setting and customer charges because it doesn’t make

a difference, but if you’re a single family customer that

should be multi-family, and you’re getting charged the

multi-family rate, or vice versa, it’s not in the public

interest to have people misclassified.  And it was the

company’s consultant that raised that issue, and there’s

no resolution to it that is addressed in any of the

documents that we’ve read so far.

Q. And it’s your opinion that that study

could be completed in 120 days?

A. Yes.

Q. That’s all I have, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.
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MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, could I just ask

one follow up question that was prompted by Mr. Dichter’s

cross?  I used less than 10 minutes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I know but he didn’t

indicate that he had cross, but I’m going to allow one

question so, one question.

MR. SIMETI:  Yes, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SIMETI:

Q. Is the data unavailable, or was it

just not provided?

A. We based our assessment and

conclusions on what was provided.  I did read in response

to one of the follow-up questions, that the company said

that it did not have information on the number of housing

units, for example, for multi-family housing by account,

but I don’t know in terms of the rest if they had the

data, and just didn’t provide it, or if the data needs

updating, we really don’t know.

MR. SIMETI:  Okay, thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Simeti, do you want

to consult?

UNKNOWN FEMALE:  Yes.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, no redirect.

947



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  It’s my

understanding then that that concludes any examination of

this witness -- wait, I’m sorry.  Yes, that concludes the

examination of this witness.  I want to thank you for your

time, and you are excused.

MR. MARCUS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So we have a little more

time before the afternoon break, would you like to call

your next witness?

MR. SIMETI:  Yes, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry, I should

indicate for the record I was talking to Mr. Simeti,

sorry.

MR. SIMETI:  The County would call Harriett

D. Cornell on behalf of the Rockland Water Task Force.

Your Honor, if I may have a request of subject to the

Court -- Your Honor’s approval to allow Patricia Drake,

who is the coordinator of the Rockland Water Task Force,

to sit with Ms. Cornell.  Ms. Cornell is testifying as an

elected official as chair of the Water Task Force, Ms. --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I have to correct you.

Ms. Cornell is granted party status as an individual, and

as the chair of the Rockland County Water Task Force, not
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as a legislator.

MR. SIMETI:  No, I understand that.  Ms.

Cornell may need to refer to a document.  Ms. Drake, as

coordinator of the task force, has prepared those

documents so that she can show whatever document Ms.

Cornell may need during her testimony.  So only to

facilitate the process, Ms. Drake is not going to testify,

she’s only going to facilitate the testimony of Ms.

Cornell.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you want to be heard?

MR. ALESSI:  Yes, thank you, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m asking the company

counsel.

MR. ALESSI:  We had no notice of this, and

so this is the first time we’re hearing it.  Secondly, we

can address Mr. Simeti’s concerns in a number of ways.  I

am going to be conducting the cross. I’m going to be

referring to documents, and every single document that I

am going to refer to other than Ms. Cornell’s -- Mrs.

Cornell’s direct and rebuttal will be provided to her, and

to all parties consistent with Your Honor’s ruling.  If at

any time, Mrs. Cornell believes she needs to refer to a

document that she either doesn’t have in front of her, or

we don’t provide, we have no objection to a document being
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brought to Mrs. Cornell, and the person who brings it

returns, and Mrs. Cornell works off that document.  So we

will work in every way to accommodate that, other than to

have someone putting documents in front of a witness with

all the concerns that can bring.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, if I may?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Go ahead.

MR. SIMETI:  In regards to the Court’s

concern -– Your Honor’s concern, Ms. Cornell may have been

granted party status as an individual.  Her testimony, I

note, is submitted on behalf of the Rockland County Task

Force on Water Resources Management.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I don’t think you heard

me.  At the procedural conference, there was quite a bit

of dialogue on this issue, and as a result of the way her

request was presented, I granted her party status both as

a chair of the Rockland County Water Task Force, and as an

individual, just as herself, and you can go back to the

transcript, and you’ll see that I stressed that.  I did

have a concern because I noticed in the testimony that she

filed, she said as legislator, and that is not correct,

that’s what I was trying to communicate.  So -- I’m sorry,

I might be standing too close.  She has party status as

the chair of the task force, and as an individual, we

950



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

should probably clarify the testimony.  I know she filed

it as chair of the task force, but then she also referred

to her status as a legislator, but that is not –- that

does not reflect her party status as it was granted in

this proceeding.

MR. SIMETI:  I understand you, thank you.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, if I could maybe

in this regard, I have the same recollection as you

articulated about the party status, and exactly her

status.  However, the company does not have an objection

with regard to so much if she is going to testify as a

legislator for this reason.  I’m then going to have to ask

a number of questions almost on everything to see if that

testimony was in her capacity as a legislator, or as an

individual, and some of the questions that I have for her,

it is in her status as a legislator, so I know what the

party status ruling was, but in terms of cross-

examination, in order to examine that, I just want to make

sure that I -- I don’t know how I can ask some questions

if the objection’s going to be that regards her status as

a legislator and I can’t ask it, so if you could clarify

that, that would be helpful.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I don’t see how that

could be an objection, to be honest.  You can ask her
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about anything in her testimony.  I’m just clarifying that

consistent with my granting of party status, her testimony

will be viewed as being filed consistent with that.  So as

a chair of the Rockland County Task Force, or as Harriett

Cornell, individual, that is how her testimony should be

viewed.  I know there will be some things that will

probably be influenced by her status as a legislator, but

I’m viewing her participation and her testimony consistent

with the grant of her party status request.

MR. ALESSI:  That clarifies it, thank you,

Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Legislator

Cornell, could you please raise your right hand?  Do you

swear or affirm -- actually I shouldn’t call you that now

that I’ve made such a point of that.  Ms. Cornell, Mrs.

Cornell, could you please confirm -- or let me start over.

No, I have to swear you in, I just have to get myself

together here.  Ms. Cornell, do you swear or affirm that

the testimony you give will be the truth, the whole truth,

or nothing but the truth.

MS. CORNELL:  I do so swear and affirm.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Please be

seated.  Could you please prepare the witness.

MR. SIMETI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

952



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

Rockland County Water -- Rockland County Task Force on

Water Resources Management?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. Yes, thank you, and did you pre-file

direct testimony under DMM -- identified as DMM number

107, consisting of 25 pages, on September 14, 2016, and

responsive testimony identified as DMM number 127,

consisting of 13 pages, on September 23, 2016?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And did that testimony contain --

consist of questions and answers?

A. Yes, the testimony did consist of

questions and answers.

Q. And do you have any changes or

corrections to that testimony?

A. No, I do not.

Q. And if I were to ask you the same

questions today, would your responses be the same?

A. Yes, they would.

Q. And do you adopt this testimony as

your testimony in this proceeding?

By MR. SIMETI

Q. Mrs. Cornell, you are the chair of the

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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A. I do.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, I ask that the

direct testimony identified as -- as well the responsive

testimony identified, consisting of the question and

answers, be copied into the record as if given orally

today and that the -- there are no exhibits to that

testimony, so.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. SIMETI:  I will provide the

stenographer with a copy of those -- that testimony at the

conclusion of this afternoon.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, thank you.  The

testimony of Harriett Cornell consisting of 25 pages that

was filed on September 14, 2016 should be copied into the

record as though given orally, followed by her testimony

consisting of 13 pages dated September 23, 2016, also

should be copied into the record as though given orally.
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Q.  PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, OCCUPATION AND BUSINESS ADDRESS. 1 

A.  My name is Harriet D. Cornell.  I am a Rockland County Legislator.  My business address is 2 

11 New Hempstead Road, New City, NY 10956. 3 

Q.  ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU SUBMITTING THIS TESTIMONY? 4 

 A. I am submitting this testimony before the New York State Public Service Commission 5 

(“PSC”) as Chair of the Rockland Task Force on Water Resources Management (“Rockland 6 

County Water Task Force” or “Task Force”) and as an elected Rockland County Legislator. 7 

Q.  PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EXPERIENCE AND EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND 8 

WITH PUBLIC SECTOR ISSUES RELEVANT TO WATER CONSERVATION AND 9 

POLICY. 10 

A.  I have been an elected Rockland County Legislator for over 32 years, first elected in 1983 and 11 

re-elected every four years since.  As a public official I am in close touch with the issues and 12 

concerns of people of all ages, all races, religions and ethnicities, and all income levels.  As Chair 13 

of the Legislature for nine years, I initiated the development of Rockland Tomorrow:  Rockland 14 

County Comprehensive Plan.  I also initiated a study of the growing elderly population in 15 

Rockland, entitled Aging in Place.  As Chair of the Rockland County Water Task Force, signed 16 

into law on June 19, 2014, I have been deeply involved in issues of water conservation, water 17 

quality, protection of wetlands, woodlands, floodplains and other aspects of the Task Force 18 

mission.   I have a B.A. from Swarthmore College and an M.P.A. from N.Y.U. Wagner Graduate 19 

School of Public Policy. From 2005-2013 I served as Chairwoman of the Legislature. During 20 

those years and years following, I have presented at public hearings and submitted formal 21 

comments to NYS DEC, NYS DOS, NYS Assembly Committee on the Environment, PSC, and 22 

most recently filed testimony in PSC proceedings with SWNY, all containing the contention that 23 

a combination of actions to ensure a long-term sustainable water supply would preclude the 24 

necessity of a single project which carries with it a number of undesirable and costly results that 25 
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negatively impact Rockland residents and businesses, and the environment. All of these 1 

considerations are important in forging long-term natural resource management plans and policy. 2 

As a policy maker, I would like to speak to these matters and make recommendations that are 3 

consistent with the State of New York policies, which stress the need for sustainable planning and 4 

conservation as a priority.  5 

Furthermore, I have led the Rockland County Water Task Force (“Task Force”) in our response to 6 

calls from the PSC (see PSC Orders in Case 13-W-0303 in 2014 and 2015) to work with Suez 7 

Water New York (“SWNY”, “the Company”) prior to this rate filing to develop an aggressive 8 

conservation plan that would be a model for New York State. I have worked with the Task Force 9 

and its committees to identify and maximize conservation opportunities through government and 10 

community action, and succeeded in securing State funds to develop a Conservation 11 

Implementation Plan for Rockland County in the amount of $250,000. I continue to work with the 12 

Task Force, the Legislature, the County Executive, and community and regional partners to 13 

solidify and deploy conservation strategies in Rockland County and fulfill the commitments 14 

responsive to PSC’s requests.  15 

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY? 16 

A. The purpose of my testimony today is to request the PSC to carefully consider the 17 

financial benefits of conservation to rate payers over time and to consider the 18 

environmental benefits of sound water policy. Accordingly, I urge improvement on the Joint 19 

Proposal (“JP”) executed by the Company and the Department of Public Service Staff (“DPS 20 

Staff” or “Staff”). The Joint Proposal was filed with the PSC Secretary on September 2, 2016 in 21 

the above captioned proceeding.  My testimony will introduce and describe in general terms those 22 

improvements to conservation related items of the Joint Proposal that I endorse, and which have 23 

been produced cooperatively by a coalition of Rockland County Water Task Force community 24 

partners (“Task Force Partners” or “Partners”), who are also Parties to this proceeding. The 25 
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Partners will contemporaneously submit relevant filed comments, testimony and reports to detail 1 

specific suggestions for improvements primarily concerning the policy aspects of the Joint 2 

Proposal, namely the conservation plan, conservation rates, affordability, and non-revenue water 3 

(“NRW”).  4 

Q: WHO ARE THE TASK FORCE PARTNERS THAT WORKED TO PRODUCE THE 5 

RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE JOINT PROPOSAL? 6 

The Task Force Partners for purposes of this proceeding are individual and organizational Parties 7 

that grouped around aforementioned aspects of the rate case and worked closely together over the 8 

past several months toward shared goals. Some of these partners are not traditional environmental 9 

organizations, but because they recognize that water conservation is the least costly route to 10 

prevent water rates from escalating and to ensure that water rates are affordable for lower income 11 

families, they share our goals.  Outside of the formal definitions of this proceeding, Partners 12 

represent a broader coalition of members and supporters of the Task Force with a long history of 13 

demonstrated interest in shared conservation objectives intended to assure sustainable and cost 14 

effective management of Rockland County’s most precious water resources and environment. 15 

The Task Force Partners are, in a broader sense, also partners to the PSC and its stated interest to 16 

promote water conservation policy. My agreement with the Partners on recommended 17 

improvements to the Joint Proposal is the result of our continued and ongoing collaboration; it 18 

reflects concerted joint effort, pooling of resources among uncompensated interveners, and a 19 

significant commitment of time to provide concrete proposals requested by PSC in order to aid 20 

the PSC’s decision on the policy matters that concern long-term sustainable water resource 21 

management in Rockland County. 22 

The Partners are: representatives of Rockland Water Coalition, Sierra Club, Scenic Hudson, 23 

Riverkeeper, Public Utility Law Project (PULP), Dan Duthie, and other individual supporters of 24 

the Rockland County Water Task Force and its conservation efforts.  25 

Q. HOW IS YOUR TESTIMONY ORGANIZED? 26 
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A. First, my testimony contains background information on the Task Force and its involvement in 1 

the SWNY conservation planning and the input that PSC sought, followed by an overview of 2 

recommended improvements to the JP in a number of areas:  3 

 Improvement to NRW program 4 

 Recommended changes to Conservation Program 5 

 Review of shareholder incentives for water conservation performance 6 

 Review and recommended actions with regards to the conservation rate structure and 7 

affordability 8 

After the overview of recommendations, my testimony provides further details of Task Force 9 

activities and first instances of responding to PSC’s call to collaborate on conservation efforts.  10 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ROCKLAND WATER TASK FORCE.  11 

A. The Rockland County Task Force on Water Resources Management (Rockland Water Task 12 

Force) was created by Resolution #296 of 2014 of the Rockland County Legislature and signed 13 

into law by the County Executive on June 19, 2014. It was a response to years of ferment in the 14 

community as a result of the Haverstraw Water Project, the desalination plant, which raised 15 

concerns that it was an energy-intensive, very costly plan to create a greater water supply using 16 

the Hudson River water across from Indian Point.  17 

The Rockland Water Task Force mission is to develop a County Water Plan that ensures a safe, 18 

long-term water supply for Rockland County that incorporates sustainability, demand-side 19 

principles and conservation. It shall assemble, examine, and investigate relevant data, further 20 

County goals regarding protection of floodplains, woodlands, and wetlands, increasing 21 

groundwater supply, reducing storm water runoff, and preventing flood damages to residents and 22 

businesses. The Task Force shall also develop education and outreach programs, seek funding 23 

opportunities, and report its findings, conclusions, and recommendations to the Legislative and 24 

Executive branches of County government.  25 
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Q: DESCRIBE THE TASK FORCE MEMBERSHIP.  1 

The membership of the Rockland Water Task Force is diverse, with representatives from the 2 

public and private sectors, large and small water users, local governments, and environmental 3 

organizations. As such, the Task Force is the single duly constituted stakeholder spearheading 4 

collaborative sustainable water resource management in Rockland County and in the Company’s 5 

service area. Notably, the Company had been a named participant in the Task Force, as per 6 

the legislation creating the Task Force on June 19, 2014. SWNY had worked 7 

productively and harmoniously with the 18 other members of the Task Force and its 8 

committees. However, in August 2015 the Company unilaterally withdrew from further 9 

participation in the Task Force.  The Company was unhappy with an analysis of its 10 

system and customer water use done for the Water Task Force by Amy Vickers, a 11 

nationally-acclaimed expert who had been recommended to the Task Force by David 12 

Stanton, President of Regulated Water for the Company and Acting General Manager. 13 

The Vickers Report was filed on July 22, 2015 under case 13-W-0303 in accordance with 14 

the request of the PSC to aid the agency’s decision on the question of “need” for the 15 

desalination project proposed by SWNY. The Company “resigned” from the Task Force 16 

shortly after the consultant’s Vickers Report became public. The Company provides 17 

water to approximately 90% of Rockland’s residents and businesses and its collaboration 18 

with the Task Force is essential for a unified approach to water conservation and to fulfill 19 

the broad mission of the Task Force. 20 

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE IN MORE DETAIL THE ACTIVITIES OF ROCKLAND 21 

COUNTY WATER TASK FORCE RELEVANT TO THIS RATE CASE AND CREATION 22 

OF A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN AS REQUESTED BY THE PSC. 23 
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A.  I would like to give you a picture of what has been transpiring recently, thanks to 1 

collaborative efforts spearheaded by the Rockland Water Task Force, with the great assistance of 2 

a wide range of Partner organizations and individuals in Rockland and the Hudson Valley.  This 3 

includes The Rockland Water Coalition, Sierra Club, Strawtown Studio, AARP, EMC as well as 4 

Riverkeeper and Scenic Hudson.  We have also enjoyed the confidence displayed by the PSC and 5 

Chair Audrey Zibelman, who on several occasions indicated her belief that Rockland can develop 6 

a plan of water conservation that will prove to be a model in the State of New York and beyond. 7 

Consequently, the first priority of the Task Force—but far from the only one—is to develop a 8 

comprehensive conservation plan for the county of Rockland. However, it is essential that in this 9 

process, SWNY work collaboratively with the Task Force to develop a truly comprehensive 10 

program for water savings in the County, one that maximizes the full potential of conservation 11 

that can be achieved as a result of actions taken by the utility, municipalities and the community, 12 

in partnership.  13 

Last Fall, at the request of PSC Chair Audrey Zibelman, in anticipation of the upcoming rate 14 

proposals to be submitted by SWNY, the Task Force was asked to give assistance to SWNY 15 

which was required to submit a plan of conservation for the company with its rate filing. Chair 16 

Zibelman assigned her Deputy, Judy Lee, to convene small “blended” meetings at Rockland 17 

Community College with SWNY and the Task Force, which commenced in November 2015 and 18 

concluded in mid- February 2016. In addition, the Task Force was asked specifically that two 19 

representatives of the Task Force volunteer additional time to attend separate meetings and web-20 

conferences with SWNY and its conservation contractor–and to offer advice. Those Task Force 21 

representatives were Patricie Drake, Task Force Coordinator, and Marguerite Turrin, a scientist at 22 

Lamont Doherty Earth Observatory and Chair of the Task Force Conservation Committee.  23 

Q.  DO YOU KNOW WHY THE TASK FORCE WAS ASKED TO WORK WITH SWNY 24 

IN DEVELOPMENT OF A CONSERVATION PLAN FOR THE COMPANY? 25 
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A. The County of Rockland legally constituted the Task Force in June 2014 with broad 1 

responsibilities ranging from drought avoidance to flood prevention. Accordingly it holds special 2 

status. I and other members of the Task Force first met with Chair Zibelman and many members 3 

of her staff in August 2014.  We were accompanied by regional partners Riverkeeper and Scenic 4 

Hudson, as well as our state legislators who had arranged the meeting.  We described the Task 5 

Force mission and why we knew Rockland was capable of developing and planning its own water 6 

future based on conservation, rather than a costly capital project then on the table.  On Lincoln’s 7 

Birthday, 2015, Chair Zibelman and PSC staff members’ attended an open public meeting of the 8 

Task Force in Rockland County and listened carefully to the dialogue and the expertise of Task 9 

Force members.  At that meeting Chair Zibelman praised the group and said she believed that we 10 

could become a model for the State of New York in protection and conservation of our water 11 

resources.  The Task Force kept Chair Zibelman informed of progress, and we had two 12 

subsequent meetings with her in New York City after SWNY resigned from the Task Force.  The 13 

second meeting included David Stanton of SWNY.  It was at that meeting that Chair Zibelman set 14 

out the plan of collaboration. I can’t say definitively why she made this request, but I believe that 15 

by charging SWNY and the Task Force to work together on a conservation plan for the Company 16 

that was tailored to Rockland, it could mesh seamlessly with the conservation planning by 17 

Rockland’s municipalities and county that would follow; and that both plans together would 18 

constitute a model for the state.  Collaboration might also minimize conflict during the rate case. 19 

Q. WHAT WAS THE EXPERIENCE AND THE RESULT OF THE TASK FORCE 20 

EFFORT TO HELP DESIGN SWNY’S CONSERVATION PLAN? 21 

A. Each of these “blended” meetings was comprised of approximately 20 people, and included 22 

officials of the Company and its consultants David Sayers and Andrew Chastain-Howley of 23 

Black & Veatch (“B&V”), several members of the Task Force and its Conservation Committee, 24 

Judy Lee and her staff.  Several meetings also included Settlement Judge Ashley Moreno and her 25 

team. Each meeting ran at least 2-1/2 hours, sometimes longer. Many of us prepared in advance 26 
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of meetings to be able to contribute meaningful ideas. At those focused meetings, discussion and 1 

dialogue took place, with Task Force members enlightening B&V consultants about Rockland’s 2 

population and demographics, how to best to reach people for the survey B&V was planning; and 3 

best conservation practices that may be most suitable for diverse Rockland communities and 4 

particular water concerns. The additional smaller working sessions with SWNY and B&V 5 

included Task Force representatives Patricie Drake and Margie Turrin, Dr. Daniel Miller, 6 

Rockland Health Department’s hydrologist who helps the Task Force Drought & Flood 7 

Committee, and another Task Force member Peggy Kurtz. At all of the meetings B&V utilized 8 

slide presentations and received useful feedback from Task Force members, who were 9 

particularly concerned about a number of items, such as addressing seasonal discretionary water 10 

use, tailored approach to conservation in the commercial sector and its subsectors, appropriate 11 

and accessible messaging, and more.  12 

B&V is a very reputable firm, and we enjoyed working with Andrew and David, as well as with 13 

Donald Distante of SWNY, who sponsored in his initial pre-filed testimony a description of the 14 

conservation plan, resulting from the work of B&V. However, B&V never filed the promised 15 

final report that it completed for SWNY on April 29,
 
2016. This full B&V report was only posted 16 

on the Company’s website and was subsequently submitted into the record by the DPS Staff in its 17 

testimony of the Conservation Panel.  18 

Task Force members and I conscientiously fulfilled Chair Zibelman’s request in order to help 19 

SWNY develop a progressive plan of conservation. We knew that Chair Zibelman is hoping for 20 

Rockland to be a model for the rest of the state; it was with that commitment in mind that we 21 

approached the challenge and devoted volunteer time and resources of the County Task Force. 22 

Clearly the time given by the one staff member of Rockland Water Task Force together with the 23 

work of Marguerite Turrin and others meant time not spent on other conservation efforts being 24 

developed by the Rockland Water Task Force, but we looked forward to an enlightened, 25 

progressive Conservation Plan resulting from collaboration with B&V, It was only when the 26 
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Company filed a description of its Conservation Plan in Mr. Distante’s testimony, not through 1 

B&V testimony, that we were shocked to learn that the goals SWNY had set for conservation 2 

were minimal and not close to approaching the ambitious goals we believe possible. 3 

Q. IS IT YOUR OPINION THAT THE JOINT PROPOSAL CONTAINS 4 

SATISFACTORY PLANS FOR CONSERVATION AND FOR DECREASE OF NON-5 

REVENUE WATER?  6 

A. No. It is not. The Task Force and Partners agree that the way to achieve a sustainable future 7 

water supply for Rockland County is through greater efficiency and an effective water 8 

conservation program. Rockland County has a tremendous opportunity to be a leader in water 9 

system management and conservation. In fact, it may be more accurate to say that we have an 10 

opportunity to enhance efforts in the water utility area by learning the lessons and following the 11 

examples that were set by the PSC with its visionary energy policies. The PSC has already made 12 

the difficult but correct decision in abandoning the unnecessary desalination plan. Suez NY’s 13 

service territory in Rockland County is the perfect place to serve as a model program for water 14 

conservation in New York.  We had hoped throughout the process of this proceeding that we 15 

would arrive at a truly ambitious plan that we could support in whole or in part. It was very 16 

disappointing to see the final Joint Proposal on September 2
nd

 and find it lacking many of the 17 

features that would elevate the plan and ensure its successful administration. Many of the Task 18 

Force suggestions were ignored and the proposed plan was not of the caliber that we had 19 

expected. While the Joint Proposal contains some improvements over the initially filed plan, it 20 

does not live up to our expectations for a model plan.  The Partners and I propose additional, 21 

substantial improvements as reviewed generally in my testimony, and detailed in the Partners’ 22 

submitted documents.  I strongly urge the PSC to carefully review and consider our 23 

recommendations presented in good faith in order to realize the benefits of a superior plan of 24 

conservation. 25 
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Q. WHAT ARE THE AREAS OF IMPROVEMENT TO THE JOINT PROPOSAL AS 1 

RECOMMENDED BY THE TASK FORCE AND THE PARTNERS?  2 

A. The general areas addressed first are: the proposed programs in the Joint Proposal for 3 

decreasing non-revenue water (Section X) and increasing water conservation (Section XIX), and 4 

the proposed shareholder incentive for the water conservation program (Section XX). Concrete 5 

recommendations for improvement are detailed in the testimony and exhibits of Jonathan 6 

Kleinman, the President of AIQUEOUS, LLC (“AIQUEOUS”), who submitted testimony on 7 

behalf of Sierra Club Atlantic Chapter and the Municipal Consortium.  8 

Additionally, Edward Markus and Shan Lin of AMAWALK CONSULTING GROUP PANEL 9 

(“AMAWALK”) will testify on behalf of the County of Rockland to offer recommendations with 10 

regards to conservation rates (Section XVII) and affordability (Section XXII).  11 

Q. WHAT ARE THE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REDUCING NON-REVENUE 12 

WATER?  13 

I strongly urge the PSC to review the specific recommendations presented by AIQUEOUS, some 14 

of which are highlighted below:  15 

• Hire an independent real water loss contractor to identify leaks 16 

• Increase main replacement rate in the next 5 years in order to catch up to reasonable 17 

levels, and remove yearly expenditure cap  18 

• Provide quarterly NRW reporting with performance incentives and penalties 19 

• Require AWWA M36 water audit methodology and software as standard 20 

• Break NRW information in reports into AWWA recommended subcategories 21 

• Audit reports independently and have both reports and audits subject to review of 22 

PSC and filed on DMM 23 

The most recent test year indicates unreasonably high NRW levels at 24.55%, which may 24 

represent more than 4MGD of real water losses in the system. As Mr. Kleinman points out, such 25 

high real water losses have significant economic value to ratepayers and—if stemmed-- could 26 
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lower SWNY’s real losses by more than 1MGD, saving millions in avoided cost benefits to 1 

ratepayers in coming years.   Real water losses represent a serious problem with system efficiency 2 

and are against public interest. In a community where need for conservation is being emphasized, 3 

and where municipalities are to consider ordinances that permanently restrict outdoor watering 4 

schedules, it is problematic to have a water distribution system with such high percentage of 5 

water loss. Other experts, including an expert hired by the Task Force in 2015, agree that the level 6 

of NRW losses in SWNY system is too high. This creates an opportunity for SWNY to improve 7 

efficiency and show itself a conservation-minded entity on the supply-side. In any case, SWNY is 8 

far exceeding the State of New York reporting level of 18%, above which NRW levels are 9 

considered excessive and are most certainly against public interest.  10 

 We recommend that SWNY hire an independent real water loss reduction contractor to identify 11 

leaks for repair, increase the main replacement rate to 1% for year one (1) and 1.5% for the 12 

following 5 years so as to catch up the current sluggish schedules. These sluggish replacement 13 

rates were previously strongly criticized by other experts, including the aforementioned Task 14 

Force expert Amy Vickers, who pointed out in 2015 that the NRW levels are not surprising with 15 

replacement and repair detection schedules being far behind state recommended standards. In the 16 

past few years reviewed by Amy Vickers, and in the most recent test years, the Company has not 17 

made sufficient commitment to improving its below-standards maintenance performance. In the 18 

meantime, we caution against the proposed annual expenditure cap of $17.0 million on increased 19 

main replacement rate. Increasing the rate of replacement is a move in the right direction and 20 

given the excessive NRW levels, it is clear that at least temporarily increased goals are necessary 21 

to get SWNY back to reasonable efficiency levels.  22 

Yearly NRW reporting has clearly not resulted in greater efforts or efficiencies; therefore, we 23 

think it in the public interest that PSC require quarterly NRW reporting with performance 24 

incentives and penalties, as per Mr. Kleinman’s testimony and prior recommendations of Amy 25 

Vickers. These measures would not only assure greater supply-side efficiency and improve 26 
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transparency, but also demonstrate the Company’s adherence to conservation policy of the State 1 

of New York.  2 

We agree that SWNY ought to utilize the AWWA M36 water audit methodology and software 3 

and provide a copy of those reports to the PSC, and that SWNY should break NRW info into 4 

subcategories, so as to establish clearer nomenclature in the areas and make the implications for 5 

the report clearer to sophisticated non-experts. As a matter of fact, in the coming months, I will 6 

discuss model legislation with State Legislators to require: the use of clear unified nomenclature; 7 

that the AWWA methodology and software be used by all water utilities to report NRW; that 8 

reports be independently audited; and the AWWA reports, underlying data, and independent 9 

audits be submitted to the PSC for its review.  10 

Q. WHAT ARE YOUR CONCERNS WITH THE SWNY CONSERVATION PLANNING 11 

APPROACH?  12 

A. My concern is that SWNY did not fulfill the intent of PSC Order of November 17, 2014; and 13 

that SWNY’s conservation planning process was in first order aimed at satisfaction of the most 14 

minimal suggested regulatory requirements.  15 

In the Order Addressing Status of Need and Directing Further Study (“2014 Order”) in case 13-16 

W-0303 (“Need case”) PSC asked that SWNY complete a study to measure the ability to reduce 17 

demand through conservation programs and identify any opportunities to increase water supply 18 

with small incremental projects. The Commission made it clear on more than one occasion that an 19 

aggressive and detailed plan was expected. In response, SWNY filed a Report on the Feasibility 20 

of Incremental Water Supply Projects and Conservation Opportunities in Rockland County, New 21 

York (“June 2015 Report”). The June 2015 Report contains only marginal discussion of 22 

conservation, but SWNY nevertheless offers a conclusion that limits the scope of its effort to 1 23 

MGD through conservation and 1 MGD through reduction of NRW. The DPS Staff’s conclusion 24 

that SWNY demonstrated reasonableness of its conservation goal of 1 MGD with research and 25 

the June 2015 Report is mystifying. SWNY was ordered to “… identify the feasibility, cost and 26 
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estimated demand reductions associated with each identified measure…” (2014 Order, page 66-1 

67), which SWNY clearly did not do in its June 30 Report. In fact, SWNY, in its June 30 Report, 2 

does not offer any analysis or supporting documentation to demonstrate the means and method by 3 

which it had concluded how much water-savings can be achieved if conservation were 4 

maximized in Rockland County. No actual study of potential for conservation is contained in that 5 

report, on which the Staff relies as the source of SWNY’S conservation “research” and source of 6 

its resulting conservation goal. Regrettably, this minimal goal was subsequently utilized in 7 

developing the Conservation Plan in this rate case and was somewhat modified in agreement 8 

between the Staff and the Company in the JP.  9 

A fundamental problem still underlies the conservation plan in the JP; that is, a conclusion about 10 

feasible conservation goal is adopted in absence of the actual study of what can be achieved 11 

through conservation as a starting point. Such planning approach is flawed in that it does not seek 12 

to first identify the maximum conservation potential and only then scale it to economic 13 

feasibility;  rather it aims first to set a budget that caps conservation potential before such 14 

potential is even assessed. In other words, the planning approach is to do the minimum required 15 

to please the regulator. During the meetings with the Task Force members, SWNY never 16 

articulated the 1 MGD minimal target as the limiting scope of the analysis employed in 17 

preparation of the initial Conservation Plan. Once SWNY filed its initial testimony, the Task 18 

Force was dismayed to see very little of its input included in the plan which was limited in scope 19 

to evaluate only what can be done to achieve 0.68 MGD of savings through active SWNY effort. 20 

The remainder, 0.32 MGD, will be saved as the passive result of a trend in demand reduction 21 

from existing national, state and local programs, regardless of any Company efforts.  22 

DPS Staff remarked in its earlier testimony that the 1 MGD is not a “limit, or cap,” on the water 23 

savings potential of the program but rather is used in context of the cost-benefit analysis for 24 

“comparison purposes.” However, SWNY expressly admits in an interrogatory response to Sierra 25 

Club Atlantic Chapter (SCAC-3) that no cost-benefit analysis was done past the 1 MGD mark, 26 
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thus making it clear that it was not merely for “comparison purposes,” as Staff understands it, but 1 

it was truly a limit or cap on SWNY’S conservation study. The B&V study did not “estimate the 2 

potential for water savings” but rather ascertained how much 1 MGD would cost and what 3 

potential savings might be derived from that through the proposed measures. This type of 4 

approach is unlikely to herald an ambitious and aggressive conservation model as was required by 5 

the PSC and is contrary to the public’s interest in maximizing conservation before resorting to 6 

more expensive capital investments with high environmental impacts. 7 

Q. WHAT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPROVEMENT OF THE JOINT PROPOSAL 8 

CONSERVATION PLAN SHOULD PSC CONSIDER?  9 

A. The following is a general description of recommended changes aimed at enhancing the JP 10 

conservation plan. These are further detailed in the testimony and filed comments of our regional 11 

Partners, and in particular in the testimony of AIQUEOUS. The PSC should carefully consider 12 

the financial benefits of conservation to rate payers over time, as analyzed in the AIQUEOUS 13 

testimony and exhibits, and review the specific proposed changes to the conservation plan in the 14 

Joint Proposal. Beyond that, the PSC should consider the environmental benefits of sound water 15 

conservation policy. We agree with our regional Partners that it is in public interest to promote 16 

and maximize conservation before considering additional capital water supply projects.  17 

SWNY proposes a 5-year conservation plan that would achieve 0.68 MGD of active water 18 

savings. AIQUEOUS recommends shortening the horizon to three years with annual targets and 19 

plans, similar to the approach in the energy sector.  20 

AIQUEOUS proposes additional programs that will address, inter alia, the lack of attention to the 21 

CII sector and the omission of measures geared to reduce outdoor peak water use. We are also in 22 

agreement that residential direct installs are an essential component to the rebate program. Direct 23 

installs would not only reduce free-ridership, but also assure that the ratepayers get the best bang 24 

for their buck in financing the rebates and achieving desired conservation goals.  25 
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AIQUEOUS recommends replacing some of the rebates with direct installs, but I would urge the 1 

PSC to consider increasing both the rebate amounts and the matching direct installs.  Other 2 

jurisdictions have found that higher rebate amounts are necessary to attract consumers and make 3 

them willing to go to the trouble of replacing fixtures when they were not already planning a 4 

renovation.  5 

Following is an overview of the improvements recommended to the JP:  6 

 Four major recommended additional programs:  7 

o CII Incentive and Technical Assistance,  8 

o Residential Direct Install,  9 

o Residential Irrigation Consultancy, and  10 

o Smart Meter Savings 11 

 Third-party evaluation, measurement and verification (EM&V) of water savings claims 12 

and program effectiveness  13 

 Hire a Water Conservation Manager instead of Water Conservation Coordinator 14 

 Reduce the single- and multifamily residential toilet rebates in favor of direct installs in 15 

order to address high free-ridership risk associated with the currently proposed market-16 

based program 17 

 Eliminate the CII audit program (in favor of incentives and technical assistance with a 18 

more tailored approach) 19 

 Shorten the program horizon to three-year horizon with annual targets and plans 20 

 Evaluate the use of Smart Controllers and provide eligibility rules and performance 21 

standards that would avoid increasing water use in “under-watering” homes 22 

 Offer irrigation workshops to reach contractors in early mornings and offer on-line tools 23 

to reach residents, along with providing education-oriented materials and DIY videos 24 
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 Shift focus of audits from specific indoor plumbing fixtures to evaluation of what might 1 

actually use the most water at individual facilities 2 

 Enhance outdoor watering measures and offer technical assistance   3 

 Program cost recovery through surcharge, instead of rates to provide more flexibility in 4 

making necessary adjustments to funding mechanism  5 

Q. WHAT ARE YOUR PARTICULAR CONCERNS WITH REGARDS TO OUTDOOR 6 

WATER USE?  7 

A. Outdoor water use is one of the biggest areas of opportunity and one of the most critical areas 8 

that need attention in Rockland. SWNY’s initial plan, and the JP seem primarily focused on 9 

indoor use and largely ignore opportunities to reduce seasonal discretionary water use. This is 10 

unwise, particularly in light of the seasonal drought conditions in July that warranted a stage II 11 

drought alert declared by the County Department of Health, governed by the County Sanitary 12 

Code.  13 

Various outdoor landscaping and irrigation incentive and technical assistance programs are 14 

common in other jurisdictions, as evidenced by examples of programs listed in response to Staff’s 15 

interrogatory DPS-19 Attachment A, in which various outdoor landscaping, xeriscaping and 16 

irrigation design assistance were provided, as well as coupons and rebates, and/or free irrigation 17 

consultations and appropriate irrigation controllers, sprinkler nozzles, rain barrels and soil 18 

moisture systems – i.e., measures that are part of virtually every leading conservation program 19 

around the country.  20 

While watering ordinances are not within the Company’s purview, there is plenty of opportunity 21 

to work to curb outdoor seasonal discretionary use by enlisting the cooperation of the public and 22 

providing accurate information to prevent over-watering, as well as tools and resources necessary.  23 

The Company has not taken advantage of all of those opportunities and has addressed this 24 

important element most passively and marginally both in the initially filed plan and in the JP. We 25 

are glad to see the effort to remedy this in the JP, which added rebates for Rain Sensors and Smart 26 
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Controllers and irrigation contractor workshops. However, in order to keep up with leading 1 

jurisdictions, SWNY’S plan should aggressively pursue solutions that include free outdoor 2 

residential and non-residential audits, technical consultations and installations/replacements, and 3 

collaboration with trade professionals and associations. Additionally, as AIQUEOUS points out, 4 

we would like to caution that the use of smart controllers might result in increase of water 5 

consumption in some situations.  6 

Q. WHAT RECOMMENDED MEASURES SHOULD PSC CONSIDER WITH REGARD 7 

TO PROGRAM EVALUATION CRITERIA?  8 

It is no secret that SWNY has a long record of mistrust in the Rockland Community. Its 9 

withdrawal from the Rockland Water Task Force did not help.  Now the Company proposes a 10 

Conservation Plan that will require buy-in from Rocklanders. The Company proposes flexibility 11 

in the administration of the rebate program to adjust the levels based on interest and water-12 

savings and to reallocate funds from a measure with lesser demand to a measure with higher 13 

demand. However, the Company has a poor track record of buy-in from the community and 14 

therefore an evaluation criteria based on popularity of the SWNY program and demand alone 15 

seems to create a paradoxical situation where the Company may defund measures and blame the 16 

customers, instead of being accountable for making the program succeed.  17 

I have noted in previous comments that the evaluation, measurement and verification (“EM&V”) 18 

of conservation results and performance metrics are problematic. AIQUEOUS recommends a 19 

third-party EM&V and the hiring of a Water Conservation Manager to address some of those 20 

issues. We ask that the Company demonstrate performance, accountability, transparency and 21 

good will by setting specific evaluation criteria, specific annual targets and program plans and 22 

that it file public reports on PSC DMM site.  23 

Q. WHAT ARE THE RECOMMENDATIONS WITH REGARDS TO SHAREHOLDER 24 

INCENTIVES FOR OVERACHIEVING CONSERVATION GOALS?  25 
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A. We have previously discussed the fundamental problem of setting a low conservation target 1 

with no supporting documentation that it represents the maximized conservation potential. With 2 

that in mind, the JP sets 1 MGD as the savings target, without specifying if that solely consists of 3 

“active” savings. The JP then proposes financial incentive mechanisms, “carrots and sticks,” for 4 

achievement of the target savings.  5 

We are glad to see such an incentive mechanism, which we have recommended in prior 6 

comments. However, there are some concerns and recommendations that the PSC must consider. 7 

AIQUEOUS, in its testimony and report, compares similar programs in the country in the energy 8 

sector, as well as those that are used in New York. AIQUEOUS concludes, that the proposed 9 

regime does not set appropriate target incentive levels or appropriate incentive amounts. We urge 10 

PSC to re-evaluate the overall conservation target, or at the least, align more appropriate 11 

incentives with over- or under- achievement of the conservation program.  12 

Q. WHAT RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS SHOULD PSC CONSIDER WITH 13 

REGARDS TO CONSERVATION RATES AND AFFORDABILITY?  14 

A. The following is a general description of recommended changes aimed at enhancing the JP 15 

conservation rates. These are further detailed in the testimony and filed comments of our regional 16 

Partners, and in particular in the testimony of Edward Markus and Shan Lin of AMAWALK, 17 

testifying on behalf of the County of Rockland.  18 

The PSC should carefully review the conservation rate structure which was decidedly a step in 19 

the right direction, but which appears to require significant re-examination if the rates are to 20 

achieve the required results and remain equitable and affordable. The PSC should order SWNY to 21 

perform a detailed review of customer classification within 120 days, especially if the next rate 22 

case may not be filed for another 5 years. A problem with customer classification was noted even 23 

by SWNY’s own consultant B&V, and was highlighted by AMAWALK.  24 

Furthermore, we may have a great opportunity to address discretionary outdoor water use, but the 25 

currently proposed rates fail to do so, and instead lower the summer rates for certain classes as 26 
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compared to previous rates. Simplicity of rate structure ought not be the only driving principle 1 

when one of the big issues for Rockland is seasonal water peek use. We may not want to merely 2 

wait for a declared drought to address it with a drought surcharge if the rates can control the 3 

peeks before that happens.  4 

The Task Force is fully cognizant of the measures that can be taken on our end and we are 5 

working diligently through our Conservation Committee to lay the groundwork for municipal 6 

commitment to WaterSense and gradually to watering ordinances. Task Force volunteer members 7 

meet with municipal boards and town engineers and other officials. The work continues, and once 8 

the funding from the state is received, we will be engaging a consultant to help create the 9 

Comprehensive Plan. In the meantime, we urge the PSC to carefully review the proposed 10 

conservation oriented rate structure in the JP and give consideration to the testimony and exhibits 11 

of AMAWALK. 12 

AMAWALK testimony and exhibit focus on three key issues: 13 

1) Reasonableness of the inclining tier thresholds - are customers appropriately classified so that 14 

the rate structure sends the appropriate conservation message and are the tier thresholds for the 15 

proposed rate structure reasonable given customer usage patterns and the urgency to promote 16 

water conservation through the rate structure?  17 

2) Alternative rate structures – are there alternative rate structures that can better achieve 18 

conservation and the equitable recovery of cost among customer classes without unduly 19 

burdening users in any particular customer class? 20 

3) What options does SWNY have to assist low income ratepayers given the already high cost of 21 

water in the County? How do its efforts compare with peer utilities? 22 

Some of the key recommendations detailed in AMAWALK’s testimony and exhibits are:  23 

 PSC should order the Company to validate the classification of each customer 24 

within one hundred twenty (120) days of the date of the JP 25 
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 The Company should provide the results of the classification review to the PSC and to 1 

interested parties; the results provided to parties other than the PSC may be in summary 2 

form, without reference to specific property names/address 3 

 The MRF rate structure displays no evidence of tailored approach likely to result on 4 

targeted conservation savings. The PSC should order the Company to maintain the 5 

existing MFR rate structure until such time that it complies with the previous PSC Order– 6 

no later than 180 days of the date of the JP--to: (a) submit a realistic assessment of MFR 7 

conservation rate structures more suitable for that class and (b) recommends a specific 8 

conservation rate structure suitable to the specific characteristics of the MFR class in 9 

Rockland. Alternative rate structures, such as budgets for housing units, use of historical 10 

rolling averages per account and other options to tailor the consumption allowances 11 

should be considered.  12 

 The PSC should order the Company to create an affordability assistance program 13 

for monthly water bills of low income ratepayers. The program design shall be 14 

submitted to the PSC within two hundred seventy (270) days of the date of the JP.  15 

Key components of the affordability assistance program must include items 16 

detailed in AMAWALK testimony and exhibit. 17 

 The review period should not wait until next rate case, but must be started immediately 18 

and be finished in time for the beginning of Rate Year 2.  19 

 If the Company’s efforts fall short of expectations in terms of achieving demand 20 

reduction, an independent party should be retained to review and routinely monitor the 21 

Company’s conservation performance, reporting to the PSC and making reports available 22 

to interested stakeholders.  23 

 24 
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Q. APART FROM THE TIME LEADING UP TO FILING OF THE RATE CASE, 1 

DESCRIBE THE FIRST TIME THAT PSC SPECIFICALLY ASKED THAT SWNY 2 

COLLABORATE WITH ROCKLAND WATER TASK FORCE ON CONSERVATION 3 

PLANNING FOR ROCKLAND. 4 

A. The SWNY now-abandoned desalination project in Haverstraw raised the ire of Rockland 5 

residents. The PSC under Chair Zibelman stepped forward and set hearings on “Need” (Case 13-6 

W-0303) for the Haverstraw Desalination Project in October 2013. Pursuant to the PSC order that 7 

followed in that case in November 2014, SWNY was ordered to work with Rockland Water Task 8 

Force to study conservation opportunities and report back to PSC.    9 

Q. DESCRIBE ROCKLAND WATER TASK FORCE ACTIONS FOLLOWING PSC’S 10 

FIRST CALLS TO WORK ON CONSERVATION WITH SWNY. 11 

A. In March 2015, the Rockland Water Task Force contracted with water analysis expert, Amy 12 

Vickers, as a consultant to analyze the water use data for customers of then United Water (now 13 

SWNY), known as a demand analysis and systems analysis.  14 

It is important to know that Amy Vickers was recommended to Rockland Water Task Force for 15 

the task of studying SWNY’s system and customer water use by David Stanton, President of 16 

Regulated Water for United Water and the Interim General Manager of SWNY at that time, 17 

following the departure of General Manager Michael Pointing. Mr. Stanton was a member of 18 

Rockland Water Task Force, representing SWNY. This recommendation of Amy Vickers was 19 

met with unanimous approval by Rockland Water Task Force.  20 

  The Amy Vickers’ analysis and report assessed SWNY customer and system water use data 21 

provided to her directly by SWNY. The analysis reviewed current and historical SWNY 22 

production and customer use data, the company's reports and filings with the PSC, and an in-23 

depth analysis of the 2012-2014 data including customer meter and billing data. The report 24 

identified high indoor or outdoor data use, compared data to benchmarks for water efficiency, and 25 
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provided an analysis of residential, non-residential (commercial, industrial, public/institutional), 1 

and system/utility use including infrastructure leakage and water losses.  2 

Q. IN WHAT WAY WAS THE SYSTEM WATER USE STUDY RESPONSIVE TO THE 3 

PSC’S CALL TO WORK ON CONSERVATION PLANNING WITH SWNY?  4 

A. The PSC must ensure that SWNY is operating as cost-effectively as possible to manage rates. 5 

That includes ensuring that SWNY prioritizes conservation and reduce system inefficiencies 6 

before proposing costly new supply projects. The purpose of that water use data analysis was to 7 

produce analytical findings to influence a future water conservation program strategy. The 8 

Vickers Report revealed important information about opportunities for water savings through 9 

conservation and leak reduction. Rockland Water Task Force submitted the findings to the PSC at 10 

the agency’s request to aid the agency’s decision on the question of “Need” for the desalination 11 

project proposed by SWNY. The report was submitted as the “Vickers Report,” on July 22, 2015 12 

under Case 13W-0303. In December 2015, the PSC recognized that there is great opportunity for 13 

economical water savings through conservation and leak reduction and ordered abandonment of 14 

the desalination plan.   15 

Q. EXPLAIN THE SIGNIFICANCE OF THE VICKERS FINDINGS AND STATE HOW 16 

IT INFORMS CONSERVATION POLICY AND APPROPRIATE CONSERVATION 17 

PLANNING BY SWNY.  18 

A. According to Amy Vickers’ preliminary estimate, 1.9 MGD to 3.6 MGD of potential water 19 

demand reductions from customer-oriented conservation measures exists within the SWNY 20 

system. This is significant because from policy perspective water conservation should be 21 

maximized, as it is not only environmentally sustainable, but also more cost effective, costing far 22 

less per MGD saved than alternatives like incremental supply or a major long term supply facility 23 

such as the failed desalination plant. Nevertheless, SWNY did not conduct cost-benefit analysis 24 

beyond 1MGD to evaluate feasibility of what more could be achieved economically. There is 25 

ample indication from various experts and from recent trends in other jurisdictions that more 26 
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ambitious goals could be achieved in a very cost-effective manner. Among those experts that had 1 

previously researched and prepared reports that were submitted in previous proceedings are: 2 

 Report by Al Appleton, former Commissioner of the New York City Department of  3 

Environmental Protection, in which capacity he served as the Director of the New York 4 

City Water and Sewer System,   5 

 The findings of Columbia University Sustainable Development Workshops that 6 

specifically  focused on conservation in Rockland, led by Dr. Stuart Braman.   7 

 A copy of Dr. Braman’s prior testimony to the PSC in Case #13-W-0303 dated 8 

November 7, 2013 and January 5, 2014.   9 

  As Dr. Braman indicated, the Columbia study estimated that up to 3.15 MGD might be achieved 10 

in Rockland from recommended cost effective conservation programs. These findings are similar 11 

to those of Amy Vickers and findings of other experts and overview of conservation success in 12 

other jurisdictions.  13 

  As a result of these trends and indications, our main concern is that SWNY’s conservation plan 14 

does not go far enough. The proposal is the result of limited analysis. SWNY admits that no cost-15 

benefit analysis was conducted for possible water savings beyond a minimum suggested 1MGD. 16 

It appears that SWNY interpreted the PSC’s minimum required savings of 1MGD, as articulated 17 

in its December 2015 Order in Case 13-W-0303, as the total scope for SWNY’s conservation plan 18 

and specifically tasked B&V with developing a plan only to meet this minimal target in the rate 19 

filing case under 16-W-0130.  20 

Q. WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDATION FROM A PLANNING AND POLICY 21 

STANDPOINT WITH REGARDS TO SWNY’S PROPOSED CONSERVATION PLAN 22 

A. SWNY’s conservation plan does not go far enough. After reviewing SWNY’S conservation 23 

proposal filed in the rate case, and examining the company’s planning approach, with its 24 

limitations as described, we urge SWNY and PSC to revisit the fundamental expectations and 25 
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Q.  Please state your name, occupation and business address. 1 

A.  My name is Harriet D. Cornell.  I am a Rockland County Legislator.  My business 2 

address is 11 New Hempstead Road, New City, NY 10956. 3 

Q.  On whose behalf are you submitting this testimony? 4 

 A. I am submitting this testimony before the New York State Public Service 5 

Commission (“PSC”) as Chair of the Rockland Task Force on Water Resources 6 

Management (“Rockland County Water Task Force” or “Task Force”) and as an elected 7 

Rockland County Legislator. 8 

Q.  Please describe your experience and educational background with public sector 9 

issues relevant to water conservation and policy. 10 

A.  I have been an elected Rockland County Legislator for over 32 years, first elected in 11 

1983 and re-elected every four years since.  As a public official I am in close touch with 12 

the issues and concerns of people of all ages, all races, religions and ethnicities, and all 13 

income levels.  As Chair of the Legislature for nine years, I initiated the development of 14 

Rockland Tomorrow:  Rockland County Comprehensive Plan.  I also initiated a study of 15 

the growing elderly population in Rockland, entitled Aging in Place.  As Chair of the 16 

Rockland County Water Task Force, signed into law on June 19, 2014, I have been 17 

deeply involved in issues of water conservation, water quality, protection of wetlands, 18 

woodlands, floodplains and other aspects of the Task Force mission.   I have a B.A. from 19 

Swarthmore College and an M.P.A. from N.Y.U. Wagner Graduate School of Public 20 

Policy. From 2005-2013 I served as Chairwoman of the Legislature. During those years 21 

and years following, I have presented at public hearings and submitted formal comments 22 

to NYS DEC, NYS DOS, NYS Assembly Committee on the Environment, PSC, and 23 
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most recently filed testimony in PSC proceedings with SWNY, all containing the 1 

contention that a combination of actions to ensure a long-term sustainable water supply 2 

would preclude the necessity of a single project which carries with it a number of 3 

undesirable and costly results that negatively impact Rockland residents and businesses, 4 

and the environment. All of these considerations are important in forging long-term 5 

natural resource management plans and policy. As a policy maker, I would like to speak 6 

to these matters and make recommendations that are consistent with the State of New 7 

York policies, which stress the need for sustainable planning and conservation as a 8 

priority.  9 

Furthermore, I have led the Rockland County Water Task Force (“Task Force”) in our 10 

response to calls from the PSC (see PSC Orders in Case 13-W-0303 in 2014 and 2015) to 11 

work with Suez Water New York (“SWNY”, “the Company”) prior to this rate filing to 12 

develop an aggressive conservation plan that would be a model for New York State. I 13 

have worked with the Task Force and its committees to identify and maximize 14 

conservation opportunities through government and community action, and succeeded in 15 

securing State funds to develop a Conservation Implementation Plan for Rockland 16 

County in the amount of $250,000. I continue to work with the Task Force, the 17 

Legislature, the County Executive, and community and regional partners to solidify and 18 

deploy conservation strategies in Rockland County and fulfill the commitments 19 

responsive to PSC’s requests.   20 

Q. What is the purpose of your direct testimony? 21 

A. The purpose of my response testimony is to highlight a few key issues with the 22 

SWNY conservation plan as contained in the JP, to stress again there are proposals for 23 
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specific improvements and to urge the PSC to carefully consider the financial benefits of 1 

conservation to rate payers over time and to consider the environmental benefits of sound 2 

water policy planning process. I strongly urge improvement on the Joint Proposal (“JP”) 3 

executed by the Company and the Department of Public Service Staff (“DPS Staff” or 4 

“Staff”), and ask the PSC not to postpone by years some of the measures that would 5 

improve the JP.  6 

Q. How is your response testimony organized?  7 

A. I first address an issue of the SWNY plan failing to fulfill the purpose of the PSC 8 

Order of November 2014, which required SWNY to find how much can be achieved 9 

through conservation. I further speak to the low conservation goals that were set by 10 

SWNY without supporting analysis, and I explain that such process and baseless 11 

conclusions are against public interest.  12 

Second, I address the Non-Revenue Water (“NRW”) issues. Lastly, I point out a serious 13 

issue with conservation rates.  14 

Q. Do you agree with the SWNY’s assertion in its testimony that the program design 15 

is consistent with prior Commission Orders?  16 

A. No, I disagree. In its testimony on page 31, SWNY states that its program design is 17 

consistent with prior Commission orders and sites a December 2015 Order (Case 13-W-18 

0303, “Need Case”) that was speaking to the overall conservative approach to adequate 19 

water supply planning, not to the appropriate planning approach for maximizing 20 

conservation by finding how much can be done and then scaling it to cost and need.  The 21 

relevant order was issued in November 2014 in the Need Case, and required SWNY to 22 

perform an analysis that was not presented in SWNY’s response in the June 2015 Report.  23 
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Q. What is the significance of the November 2014 Order and how does it relate to 1 

the stated Conservation goal of 1 MGD?  2 

A. I am concerned about the most fundamental element of the conservation planning 3 

process--the setting of the low conservation goal of 1 MGD. The task, as given by the 4 

PSC in its November 2014 Order in case 13-W-0303 was clear: find how much 5 

conservation can be achieved, through what best practices and how much it will cost. So 6 

articulated by the PSC, the planning approach would seek to rely on actual data analysis 7 

to estimate potential savings and then to scale them to feasibility.  8 

SWNY was ordered to report back within 6 months with the analysis and detailed 9 

answers. SWNY did not come back with those answers in its response, which was the 10 

June 2015 Report on Feasibility, and which addressed conservation in the most marginal 11 

manner. In fact, there is no analysis, no data, no feasibility basis whatsoever to conclude 12 

that 1 MGD is all that can be, or should be done through conservation. The assertion that 13 

SWNY fulfilled its task under the November 2014 Order can only be made by SWNY 14 

and anyone else who has not read that report. The report is entirely devoid of basis for the 15 

conclusions that were carried forward from there, as if they were established and well 16 

supported facts.  17 

I ask how these conclusions were made and I posit that neither the TF, the public, nor the 18 

PSC were given the answer. I challenge anyone that reads my testimony to cite the data 19 

analysis performed in that report that provides basis for how much conservation savings 20 

can be achieved, what practices would achieve specific savings and how much each of 21 

them would cost per MGD in comparison to additional water-supply projects. The June 22 

2015 Report has been repeatedly cited as the source of the 1 MGD goal in satisfaction of 23 
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the November 2014 PSC Order. It is not an opinion but fact, that the report presents no 1 

such analysis and the 1 MGD thus comes out of thin air and has no rational basis.  2 

Q. Do you think that the low conservation goal and the process by which it was set is 3 

in public interest and in keeping with public policy of the State?  4 

A. In my experience as an elected official and a policy maker, I understand the profound 5 

trust and responsibility that is granted to those that assure proper working and 6 

management of matters of public interest, such as sustainable and safe water resource 7 

management. The only manner in which public trust and confidence can be retained and 8 

reassured, is through process that is transparent, has rational basis, and is accountable. 9 

The process taken in developing conservation goals fails that test – it is not in public 10 

interest to pitch a low-ball conservation target and accept it with complete lack of basis. It 11 

has been accepted by the State of New York, the PSC and acknowledged by Suez that 12 

maximizing conservation is the most cost-effective and sustainable measure to protect 13 

our precious natural resources and to avoid future costly infrastructure projects: Rockland 14 

ratepayers already pay some of the highest rates in the State. Therefore, I strongly object 15 

that SWNY’s conservation plan design is in keeping with public interest or public policy 16 

of Rockland County and this State.  17 

Q. Do you think that the record supports the conclusion of 1 MGD conservation 18 

target to represent the best effort to maximize conservation?  19 

A. I am not an attorney, but to the best of my understanding, I do not think that SWNY 20 

has proven and would be able to prove for purposes of litigation that they have sufficient 21 

basis for setting the minimal conservation goal. I have recounted how the goal was in 22 

complete absence of analysis. In my initial testimony and my prior filed comments, I also 23 
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noted that SWNY admitted in an interrogatory response to Sierra Club in express terms 1 

that no cost-benefit analysis was conducted past the 1 MGD to ascertain how much more 2 

conservation water savings could be achieved. The Staff had previously argued that they 3 

do not think SWNY set that as a cap, but that is exactly what SWNY has asmittedly done. 4 

At the time B&V were hired, they were not given a task of finding how much 5 

conservation can be achieved, but were tasked with developing a program for 1 MGD as 6 

supposedly derived in the June 2015 Report. Needless to say, the ball was rolling with the 7 

low unsubstantiated goal prior to the PSC December 2015 Order which SWNY sites in its 8 

testimony as an example of its compliance. Again, the relevant Order is November 2014, 9 

because it was in response to that Order that SWNY was ordered to ascertain aggressive 10 

conservation goals.  11 

Neither B&V nor SWNY conducted the requisite analysis or provided a proof of such 12 

analysis in the record in order to show the basis for the appropriate conservation goals 13 

and benchmarks. As can be seen in other filings, other experts analyzed the conservation 14 

potential and concluded that much more can be done cost effectively for conservation in 15 

Rockland. Some of those experts are Amy Vickers, whose report was filed with the PSC 16 

in the Need Case, and who had access to raw water consumption data directly sent to her 17 

by SWNY. The Aiqueous expert, Jonathan Kleinman, performed cost-benefit analysis 18 

and submitted detailed reports and testimony in this rate case, concluding that his 19 

suggested improvements to the conservation program in the JP could yield as much as 4 20 

MGD of conservation savings. I could continue on with Columbia University 21 

Sustainability Workshop Study and others to cite other examples of experts that agree 22 

that much more can be achieved, some of them have filed with the PSC in this case or in 23 
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previous proceedings related to this one. However, the main concern for the PSC should 1 

be the fact that even when prompted, SWNY was unable in an interrogatory to produce 2 

any evidence of having conducted a conservation feasibility study beyond the 3 

“mysterious” scope of 1 MGD to discover how much conservation may be achieved if 4 

conservation potential were maximized. It is worth noting that almost one-third of 1MGD 5 

savings will occur as a result of the trend in demand reduction and not of the Company’s 6 

efforts. 7 

Therefore, I can only imagine that the outcome of litigation would have to find that 8 

SWNY did not give any rational support for its position on this account. Of course it does 9 

not help that SWNY’s experts who prepared the Conservation plan, B&V, have not 10 

offered testimony to explain whether in its work B&V came across evidence of greater 11 

conservation potential than was capped within its scope of contract (which, again, 12 

commenced prior to the PSC December 2015 Order).  13 

Q. What are your concerns with the measures in the JP to address excessive levels of 14 

NRW in the SWNY system?  15 

A. In my Direct Testimony submitted on September 14, 2016, I concurred with 16 

recommendations by Jonathan Kleinman of Aiqueous to improve the Joint Proposal for 17 

decreasing non-revenue water.  Real water losses are a serious problem with system 18 

efficiency and are contrary to the public interest.  In a community where need for 19 

conservation is being emphasized, and where municipalities are to consider ordinances 20 

that permanently restrict outdoor watering schedules, it is problematic to have a water 21 

distribution system with a high percentage of water loss.  22 
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Certainly water loss is an economic issue, and real water loss occurring from sluggish 1 

repair and replacement schedules is also a quality of life issue and a potential threat to 2 

health.   3 

Q. What are your other concerns with the efficiency and integrity of the SWNY 4 

water system and public health and awareness issues?  5 

Let me call attention to an ongoing Brown water problem in the communities of 6 

Haverstraw and Stony Point.  Residents complain of brown water which they have been 7 

experiencing over a long period of time; photos of dark brown water coming out of 8 

kitchen faucets are disgusting.  Residents who came to the Legislature on May 11, 2016 9 

for an informational panel on Trihalomethane (which had been found in the drinking 10 

water resulting in a violation to SWNY issued by NY State Department of Health) raised 11 

the brown water problem.   Since Suez officials were panel participants, I thought 12 

attention and remedial action would follow.  But it appears the problem has gone from 13 

bad to worse. Since then, there has been further indignation and anger in the communities 14 

of North Rockland with regard to the brown water and inadequate communication by 15 

Suez with the affected public regarding a public health issue. 16 

Water was recently turned off for a wide number of North Rockland families.  According 17 

to residents, there was no advance notification and calls to Suez were not answered on 18 

that weekend.  There was no recorded message for residents.  Written comments on 19 

Facebook deplore the fact that SUEZ has no direct notification system, unlike recorded 20 

telephone alerts that come from other sources.  On September 17, a local online news 21 

service posted a news article stating that “a boil-water advisory has been issued for 22 

portions of Stony Point and Haverstraw after the Suez D Distribution Network said it lost 23 
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pressure after an overnight water-main repair Saturday.”  This was followed in small type 1 

by the following:  “For a rundown of addresses covered by the alert, check this 2 

announcement on the Suez website by clicking here.”  It was then followed by 3 

instructions on how to boil the water before using or to use bottled water certified for sale 4 

by the NYS Department of Health.  The article printed further instructions from DOH to 5 

use only boiled or bottled water for drinking, brushing teeth, making ice, washing dishes, 6 

and food preparation until further notice.  Then there was a description of the possible 7 

illnesses caused by bacteria and the specific risks to infants, elderly and some 8 

compromised immune systems.  One has to wonder how people who don’t go online for 9 

news would have received that boil-water information which impacts public health. 10 

It is my understanding that brown water occurs when corrosion builds up on the inside of 11 

old iron pipes, dramatically narrowing the 4” pipes.  When a waterline breaks or is 12 

opened for firemanic use, the force of high pressure water passing through the narrowed 13 

corroded pipes causes the brown water.  The efficiency of the water delivery system is 14 

dependent on aggressive, ongoing leak detection and attention to repairs and replacement 15 

of pipes and mains.  Public health requires no less. 16 

Q. What are the recommendations to improve the persistent water main breaks and 17 

leaks that cause problems such as that with repeated impaired quality or shut-offs?  18 

This information is to highlight the importance of the recommendations fully described in 19 

the Aiqueous Report and enumerated in my Direct Testimony of September 14, 2016 20 

with the request that the Public Service Commission adopt them:   21 

• Require water main replacement at an accelerated rate of 1.5 % per year (15 22 

Miles) for the next five years before going to the 1% rate.   23 
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• Require Suez to hire an NRW contractor, expressly to identify leaks using DMA 1 

data, temporary acoustic monitoring networks and manual acoustic detection techniques.   2 

Aiqueous recommends allocating $1.5 million for this effort during the first two years of 3 

AMI implementation. Based upon results elsewhere, this should result in additional real 4 

water loss reduction of 1MGD  (beyond the proposed  1 MGD  of real water loss 5 

savings.) 6 

• Fill the proposed NRW Manager position with a mid to senior level staff person 7 

who would be effective managing outside contractors, developing reports to key 8 

stakeholders, and representing NRW concerns and program performance within the 9 

SWNY organization. 10 

• Require SWNY to submit quarterly reports to PSC and adopt performance 11 

incentive for driving NRW below 15% and a penalty should NRW remain above 18%.   12 

• Cost effectiveness Analysis:  revise analysis of proposed real water loss program. 13 

Q. What are some of your concerns with the JP proposed conservation-oriented rate 14 

structure?  15 

A. Some of my primary concerns are:  16 

• Customer Classification Issues. This is a particularly disconcerting problem which 17 

was pointed out by SWNY’s own contractor, Black & Veatch (“B&V”) in its 18 

report that was filed as an exhibit in this case by the PSC Staff. B&V as well as 19 

Amawalk Consulting (“Amawalk”) noted evidence of customer misclassification, 20 

an issue that may have distorting impact on both the allocation of cost of service 21 

and the rate design if it is truly to be conservation-oriented.   If conservation rates 22 

are put into effect, based upon incorrect classifications of customers, there will 23 
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not only be a backlash by those adversely affected; there could well be a setback 1 

to public perception of water conservation in general. 2 

 SWNY is in error when stating in its testimony on page 31 that no parties 3 

challenged the cost of service study. Amawalk submitted testimony to specifically 4 

indicate the issues with customer misclassification that have implications for the 5 

accuracy of such a study and its results. It is even more disconcerting that the DPS 6 

Staff appears to agree that a classification study may be needed, but both SWNY 7 

and DPS Staff chose to postpone the necessary study for 3 years, in effect letting 8 

potentially inequitable rates to stand for years before corrected. This is 9 

unacceptable and requires PSC’s immediate attention.  10 

• Reasonableness of the inclining-block structure and its ability to achieve desired 11 

conservation. I am particularly concerned with classes of customers that display 12 

seasonality, but nevertheless will have lower peak summer rates as compared to 13 

the current structure. Summer discretionary use is of high priority in Rockland 14 

and must be addressed in the Conservation Plan as well as the rates. The rates as 15 

proposed fail to encourage change of behavior towards water savings – on the 16 

contrary, they are likely to result in greater water use with what will appear 17 

cheaper rates as compared to previous summers. I implore that PSC recognize this 18 

serious error and correct it, lest Rockland County deal with high seasonal 19 

consumption issues for at least the next 4 summers to come before a new rate case 20 

comes about.  21 

• Alternative Rate Structures – the PSC in previous Orders suggested that SWNY 22 

must study alternative rate structures and compare their estimated effectiveness 23 
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and impact on customers. SWNY failed to do such analysis or consider alternative 1 

structures, including possible hybrid structures that may address some of the 2 

seasonality issues and other complexities in MFR and CII customer classes. The 3 

proposed inclining-block rate structure is unlikely to have any possible effect for 4 

large residential buildings that are not sub-metered and offer any creative 5 

solutions to address particularities of CII class. It appears as if the JP is “throwing 6 

up its hands” as if nothing can be done for that sector except to conduct customer-7 

by-customer audits, with no indication of connecting the results with specific 8 

possible actions to realize those potential savings. I urge the PSC to review the 9 

recommendations both of Amawalk Consulting and Aiqueous, which address the 10 

inadequacies of the rate structure and conservation plan.  11 

I further call attention to my Direct Testimony, submitted on September 14 which details 12 

a number of significant recommended improvements to the JP with regard to 13 

conservation rates, affordability and increased water savings, which I won’t repeat in this 14 

Response.  SWNY’s conservation plan does not go far enough and has not evaluated 15 

potential gains from more ambitious programs.  Less than 3/4 (0.68 MGD) out of the low 16 

target of 1 MGD of water savings is going to be achieved through SWNY’s direct 17 

actions:  the rest is the passive result of a trend in demand reduction, not of SWNY’s 18 

actions. 19 

Q. Does this conclude your testimony?  20 

A. Yes.  21 

 22 
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               MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, Ms. Cornell is

available for cross examination.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, and it’s my

indication that only the company has cross-examination for

this witness, correct?

MR. ALESSI:  That’s our understanding, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Please proceed.  And I

will note for the record, 150 minutes.

something to eat.

MR. SIMETI:  As Your Honor, if I may, as

regards to 150 minutes, if at some point in time, it may -

-

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We’re going to take an

afternoon break, don’t worry.  And if at any time, and I

should have said this for all the witnesses, I think it

was understood, but if you need a break at any time other

than those designated breaks, just wave or indicate so.

MR. ALESSI:  Noted, Your Honor, as well.

THE WITNESS:  It’s a good thing I had

THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:
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Q. Good afternoon, Ms. Cornell.  How are

you?

A. Good afternoon, Mr. Alessi.

Q. As you know, I represent Suez, the

company in this proceeding, and first, on behalf of the

company, I want to thank you for coming up to Albany and

to provide the opportunity for us to have a discussion

about your testimony, so the company appreciates that.  As

the administrative law judge indicated, if you need a

break, if you -- I see you have some water, if you need

more water, please let me know.  To the extent that I go

too fast, please let me know.  Please feel free just to

interrupt and say in whatever fashion for me to slow down.

If I’m asking you a question that you think is not

understandable, please feel free to ask me to state it in

a different way so that you understand the question or I’m

being clear enough for you to understand the question.  Is

that acceptable to you, does that work for you?

A. Absolutely, thank you.

Q. You’re welcome.  Now if -- what we’re

going to do -- have you testified in an administrative

proceeding before?

A. No, this is a new experience.

Q. Well, welcome to an administrative
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evidentiary hearing, and so the way this goes, I will ask

questions.  Pursuant to the judge’s ruling, I am to refer

to your testimony or if it’s not your testimony but if it

springs from it and I have a document, I’ll refer to that.

So when I give you the document, it’s not a speed game

here, if you want an opportunity to review it, read it,

you just indicate it to me if you need that.  To make this

go faster, the way I traditionally do it is if I refer to

a testimony or I refer to a document, I read the

provision.  I direct you to it and then I read it and I

ask you if that’s -- if you’re there.  If you would prefer

to read it yourself, that is your option with the judge’s

ruling.  You please let me know that as well.  All right,

thank you.  So if you could please first turn to your

direct testimony.

A. Yes.

Q. And if you could go to page 2, line

11, and you have been a member of the Rockland County

legislature since 1983, correct?

A. I took office in January of 1984,

elected in 1983.

Q. So from January 1st, 1984 to the

present, you’ve been a member of the Rockland County

legislature?
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A. I have.

Q. And if you can go to the same page,

line 20?

A. Yes.

Q. And you were the chair of the

legislature from 2005 to 2013, correct?

A. Yes, through 2013.

Q. Through 2013.  As a member of the

legislature, do you consider it one of your many duties,

as a general principle, to be as fair as you can to your

constituents and persons who are in the county?

A. Absolutely.

Q. And now you are the chair of the

Rockland County Task Force on Water Resources Management,

correct?  If you could go to page 3 please, lines 10 to 11

of your direct testimony, I’m going to keep on your direct

until I switch over, so to shorthand it --

A. Sure.  That’s fine.

Q. -- I’m going to keep saying this,

okay?  In there, you state that you’ve worked with the

task force, quote, to identify and maximize conservation

opportunities through government and community action,

correct?

A. Yes.
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Q. And if you could please go back to

page 2, lines 21 through 25 of your direct testimony.

There you state that you’ve presented at public hearings

and filed public comments with the DEC, that’s the

Department of Conservation of New York State, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. The Department of -- New York State

Department of State is what DOS stands for?

A. Right.

Q. And then the assembly committee on the

environment and public service commission, and you say

that all is containing the contention that, quote, a

combination of actions, end quote, would in your view

preclude the need for the company’s proposed Haverstraw

water supply project, correct?

A. Yes, the --

Q. I’m sorry to interrupt you but the

only reason I wanted to, is to just give the complete

quote but we’ve had a number of rulings that we weren’t

going to talk about the need.  I just wanted to give the

foundation that you’ve been in a lot of places with regard

to water management issues.

A. Yes, but you did leave out a phrase in

the middle of that sentence which is, a combination of
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actions to ensure a long term sustainable water supply --

Q. I’m sorry, you’re right --

A. -- would preclude.

Q. Thank you for correcting that, Mrs.

Cornell, I did do that.  Now how many years approximately,

and if you wanted rather count the years you want to just

give from the first year, that’s fine, have you been

involved with water resource management, water supply, and

conservation issues in Rockland County?

A. When I became the chair of the task

force, which was created by resolution of the legislature

and signed into an act by the county executive and that

was June 19, 2014.

Q. And is --

A. And prior to that, and still I’m the

Q. How about for water supply and working

with United Water on water supply and conservation, how

far does that go back?

A. Really started with the water task

force because the resolution included the named United

998

chair of the legislative environmental committee, so there

were some water issues that came before us, but certainly

the -- my involvement with any management of water came

starting in 2014.
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Water New York as being a key member of the task force.

So it was from the time that the task force was formed, it

was working with United Water specifically on these

issues, which were varied because the task force has a

very broad mission, but because of the issues involving

public service commission, et cetera, we really focused on

the issues of conservation, water conservation.

Q. So is it your testimony, you’ve never

had a meeting on the environmental committee or otherwise

as a legislator with United Water over water supply issues

before 2014?

MR. ALESSI:  I’m sorry, Your Honor, I was

just asking about a specific date, not the issues.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. I’m sorry, Mrs. Cornell, I tried to

ask a question that is focused on one particular issue.

If you could answer that question first, that would be

good.  If you believe there is a need to go on beyond the

question I asked, that would be just something that I’ll

999

A. Oh yes, there have been times when

United Water has come to the legislature.  As chair of the

environmental committee, there was an issue with arsenicin

 the water --
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listen for and communicate with the judge on.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I thought she did

actually answer at first but then she went --

MR. ALESSI:  She did --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- on to talk about the -

-

MR. ALESSI:  Exactly, exactly.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- content of the

meeting, so she did answer at first.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’ll just note that he

was asking about the date.

THE WITNESS:  The date.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Yeah, how far back does your

experience with Suez, the predecessor, United Water, go

back to where you’ve had meetings with them --

A. Yes.

Q. -- about any issue regarding water and

water supply?

A. Right, I certainly did during the

years from 2005 on, I would say every so often because of

--
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Q. Any time before 2000?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry, just a

reminder, when you finish your question, she gets to

answer, and neither of you should talk while the other is

talking because it won’t get on the transcript correctly.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you for the reminder,

Your Honor.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. When do you recall was your first

meeting, what year, with United Water on water supply

matters?

A. I can’t remember a particular year,

Mr. Alessi.  It’s -- when you’re in the legislature, you

1001

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So if you’d like to --and 

before you do, I just want to correct, I think I saidthat 

you asked her about the date, in fact, you asked her if she 

ever attended a meeting, so I want to correct myself on that

 and I apologize for misstating that, but not the content of

 the meeting was my understanding.  She was answering very 

fully.  So once you ask her a question, that’s why you have 

to be careful how you phrase it, the witness is allowed to 

answer that question.
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have a variety of meetings, and people come to the

meetings, and I certainly knew Mr. Pointing over the years

for various things, various kinds of meetings.  Some of

them had to do with water quality.  Some of them may have

had to do with water supply.  I do remember Mr. Pointing

coming to talk to the legislature about the selection of

the capital project known as the Desalination Plant.  So

just, over time, there were certainly many, many such

meetings.

Q. Would the meetings have begun before

the year 2000?

A. I can’t remember.

Q. And you were involved in the 2006 rate

case in your capacity as a legislator understanding that

United Water had come before the Public Service Commission

to, as part of the merger and to increase its rates and

you were aware of that, correct?

A. I was aware of it.  I was not a party

to it.

Q. Now, if you could turn please to lines

19 to 20 of page 2.

A. Yes.

Q. In terms of higher education, you

state that you have a Bachelor of Arts degree from
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Swarthmore College, is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And that degree is in international

relations.

A. Yes, it was.

Q. And you also have a master’s in public

administration from --

A. I do.

Q. -- New York University, correct?  Is

that the extent of your college or university degrees?

A. It is.

Q. Do you have any formal training in

water demand analysis or forecasting?

A. No.

Q. Do you have any formal education in

water demand analysis or forecasting?

A. No.

Q. Have you ever personally performed any

water demand analysis or forecasting?

A. No.

Q. Do you have any formal education or

training in water supply system engineering?

A. No.

Q. Have you ever personally performed any
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water system engineering work?

A. No.

Q. If you could please, turn to page 11,

line 12 of your direct testimony.  And if you could let me

know as a matter of course when you’re there and then I

won’t --

A. Oh, I’m here.

Q. Thank you very much.  A question’s

asked there about your recommendations for reducing non-

revenue water.  Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And further down on the page, line 20

of your direct testimony, one of your recommendations to

reduce non-revenue water is this, in the Suez system, is

for the Public Service Commission to require AWWA M36

water audit methodology and software as standard.

Correct?

A. That’s what it says.

Q. And again, on page 13, line 3 --

A. Could I ask you please just to read

1004

the beginning sentence, which says, I strongly urge the PSC 

to review the specific recommendations presented by Aiqueous
 Consulting, some of which are highlighted below. So I’m 
highlighting the Aiqueous report and not indicating
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that I am a specialist.

Q. Thank you for that, Mrs. Cornell.

A. Certainly.

Q. If you could go to page 13, line 3

please.

A. Line 3, yes.

Q. You state that -- and I am going to

sometimes quote just portions, not all of your testimony -

-

A. Okay.

Q. -- but if you believe, in order to

give a fair context for your answer, you need to go beyond

what I quote, please do as you just did in the last

answer.  You state that Suez ought to utilize the AWWA M36

water audit methodology and software, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, have you read AWWA M36?

A. No, this is, all of these pages follow

1005

the listing of some of the recommendations that came from

Aiqueous, which was a company that was hired by one of our
partner groups or two of our partner groups together, Scenic

 Hudson and I believe the Water Coalition was the other 

group.  So I’m highlighting these reports, not purporting to
 be an expert myself, but I certainly did
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write that in there, that the American Water Works

Association water audit methodology is certainly something

that the PSC should be looking at.

Q. So Mrs. Cornell, just so I don’t go

down a line of questioning on the M36 water audit

methodology, if I were to ask you any question about the

components of it, I assume your testimony would be that’s

not in your knowledge.

A. Correct.

Q. Now if you could please go to page 11,

line 21.

A. Yes.

Q. To give this context, up above in line

12 is the question, what are the recommendations for

reducing non-revenue water.  I assume, based on your last

answer, you’re just summarizing what someone else said,

this is not your -- I’m just trying to understand --

A. I am trying to introduce to the PSC

our partner organizations that have submitted information

that we believe to be something that the Public Service

Commission should really pay attention to and I’m simply

trying to highlight that, all of these things as studies

that have been done for partner organizations working with

the task force, and in the same way that I’m sure the
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company relies on your consultants, we’re relying on our

consultants.

Q. If you could please go to, now down to

line 21 on page 11.

A. On page 11.  Yes.

Q. And you state there that the PSC

should require that non-revenue water information be

broken into AWWA recommended sub-categories, correct?

A. No, because I didn’t say that the PSC

should recommend them or adopt them.  I’m asking them to

review them.

Q. Okay.  So your recommendation is that

the PSC review --

A. All of these bulleted things that you

read one before and this one and those are probably all, I

strongly urge the PSC to review the specific

recommendations, in terms of opening up the thought

processes for the people who are going to make decisions

about Rockland County and its future.

1007

Q. Just so I understand though, your

testimony here, I’ll read it starting on line 14, says I

strongly urge the PSC to review the specific

recommendations presented by Aiqueous, some of which are

highlighted below.
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A. Exactly.

Q. So as my question, the purpose of your

Q. Thank you.  Ms. Cornell, have you ever

read Suez’s annual non-revenue water report to the

Commission?

A. Was it something that was submitted in

this case?

Q. If -- I’m not allowed to answer

questions.  So --

A. Sorry.

Q. -- maybe what I will do.  That’s okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think you -- I’ll allow

you to clarify for her whether it was filed in this case.

MR. ALESSI:  Yes.  Thank you.  Thank you

for that leeway, Your Honor.  And we have an exhibit for

this as well to assist Mrs. Cornell.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. On the Suez panel’s responsive

1008

testimony is, you believe it should be done or are you

simply highlighting that Aiqueous has recommended that 

it be done?
A. I  am  highlighting  that  Aiqueous

recommended that it be done.
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testimony on pages 20, lines 4 to 6 -- you don’t have to

memorize this.  We’re going to give you a copy.  There’s a

response to your testimony on this subject.

MR. ALESSI:  And so what, Your Honor, we

planned on doing is marking that as an exhibit or given

it’s already an exhibit, we can -- we can hand her a

portion of it or we can just refer to it.  I just want to

do what’s easiest for her because she doesn’t have the

testimony.

THE WITNESS:  I don’t think I do, because

it doesn’t --

MR. ALESSI:  Not with you in the table,

that’s --

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I don’t think so.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Excuse me.  Mr.

Simeti, do you -- I want you to show what you’re going to

provide to Mr. Simeti.  It’s my understanding that you

simply want to provide a portion of the testimony that’s

already been copied into the record, but because it’s the

testimony of the company panel, you’re basically offering

it to refresh her recollection.  Is that correct, or make

sure she’s familiar with what you’re referring to?

MR. ALESSI:  Exactly, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.
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MR. ALESSI:  Actually a little bit of both.

I need to kind of do a foundation to see --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I do not want to

mark that, but I will give Mr. Simeti an opportunity to

review and let me know whether he has any concerns.

MR. SIMETI:  This, lines 1 through 6, Mr.

Alessi?

MR. ALESSI:  For, for page 24 through,

lines 4 through 6 only.

MR. SIMETI:  4 through 6.

MR. ALESSI:  Yeah, page 20.

MR. SIMETI:  Yeah, I have it.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, I know.  I’m not --

I’m looking for something else.  Okay.  Thank you.  So you

have no objection to him showing that to her.  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  We have enough copies for

everybody.  How would you like, Your Honor, to do it?

Just give her a copy and move on?  Because everyone else -

-

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I don’t want a copy.

Does anyone else want a copy?  Okay.

MR. SIMETI:  Just me then.

MR. ALESSI:  May I approach the witness,

Your Honor?
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Excuse me, Mrs. Cornell --

A. Certainly.

Q. -- may I hand this to you?

A. Yes, absolutely.  Thank you.

Q. There’s a cover page for that, so that

can give you a little context for what that is.

A. Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, if the record

would reflect that I have handed Mrs. Cornell the Suez

panel’s responsive testimony, but however only so much of

it, which shows a cover page and then page 20, lines 4

through 6 is what I’m going to focus on, but it’s just,

it’s just one page of actual testimony.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Ms. Cornell, I’m going to ask you to

focus on lines 4 through 6, but if you want to read the

entire page, you just let me know.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You can read 4 through 6.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you very much.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

A. I do.

Q. Thank you.

A. I do.

Q. Do you --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I trust that when Mr.

Kleinman comes, he will be able to respond to that as

well.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

1012

Q. Now does that -- the question on

number 1, I just want to put it in context, do you agree

with Ms. Cornell’s recommendation and now you’ve clarified

that you’re passing along the recommendation of Aiqueous,

it’s not your recommendation, that the company break down

NRW, Non-Revenue Water, information into sub-categories

and that it utilize AWWA water audit methodology.  That’s

the question.  And the answer is, the company has already

-- the company already follows the AWWA water audit

methodology and NRW data is already broken down into sub-

categories when it is submitted as part of the company’s

annual non-revenue water report to the Commission.  Do you

see that?
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Q. And do you have any information that

the company has not done what it states in lines 4 through

6?

A. No, I have no indication one way or

the other.

Q. If you could now -- and we’re done

with that document, Ms. Cornell.  And I know as a witness,

sometimes it’s confusing with a lot of documents.  You’re

free to put that way to the side because I’m not coming

back to it so it doesn’t get in the way of other

testimony.

A. Thank you.

Q. And that chair in the corner, right

behind you or wherever, it’s good.

A. Yeah.

UNKNOWN FEMALE:  If you want, I’ll take it

away because I think it’s overwhelming to have all that

paperwork.

THE WITNESS:  I could probably give you a

whole folder.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.  And

thank you, Mrs. Cornell.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

1013



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

Q. Now if you could please go to page 15,

lines 10 through 11.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Just a moment.  Let’s go

off the record.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

[OFF THE RECORD)

(ON THE RECORD)

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Miss Cornell --

A. Could you tell me again what lines you

were talking --

Q. Sure.  I’m on page 15, lines 10

through 11.

A. Okay.

Q. And there you state that you are --

you state the following is a general description of

recommended changes aimed at enhancing the JP Conservation

Plan.  Here you do not cite to a consultant or give any

indication that that’s a consultant recommendation.  But I

want to make sure I understand it correctly.  Is that your

recommendation?  Or is that the recommendation of someone

else?  And if it’s a recommendation of someone else, we

don’t need to talk about the basis for it.  I just want to
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know whether that’s your recommendation or the

recommendation of someone else.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, we’re back to --

object to the question.  Mr. Alessi is not reading the

full context of the question.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay, I’m sorry.  Thank you,

Mr. Simeti.  You are correct.  I will read the full

context.  I appreciate that.  May I proceed, Your Honor?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. The following is a general description

A. Well, I believe, and it’s my belief,

that the Public Service Commission should carefully

consider the financial benefits of conservation to rate

payors over time, as analyzed in the Aqueous testimony.

1015

at least to me, whether some are yours alone, all are of

Aiqueous, or they’re a combination.  Because I want to just
go to the ones that are yours, not of a consultant.

of recommended changes aimed at enhancing the JP

Conservation Plan.  These are further detailed in the

testimony and filed comments of our regional partners, and 

in particular, in the testimony of Aiqueous.  My question 

is, you say they are further detailed.  But it’s not clear
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MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, I’m sorry to

interrupt Mrs. Cornell, but please let me know how far

before I indicate the question.  Would you like me to just

let Mrs. Cornell go till she ends?  Cause I just want to

be mindful of the time, but I don’t want to --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I won’t hold it against

your time --

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- but let her finish her

question, her answer, please.

MR. ALESSI:  I’m sorry to interrupt, Mrs.

Cornell.

THE WITNESS:  No, I just wanted to say that

I was talking about non-revenue water, lost water, a lot

1016

But also as stated by Suez and other consultants, that

conservation is the most cost-effective way of delivering

water services.  So that is where I come from, and I

believe that very strongly.  There are environmental

benefits certainly to sound water conservation policy,

there are economic benefits and there are public health

benefits, really because particularly with the problems

that occur with lost water and slow repairs of mains and

pipes, we have just had incidents over the past few months

of brown water, which listed in a New York --
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of which occurs as a result of aged pipes.  And we’ve had

a situation in Rockland County, particularly in North

Rockland, where the pipes -- basically what happens is

that corrosion occurs within the pipe and then the high-

pressure water causes people’s homes to be full of brown,

ugly water that goes into their taps and out, and there

was a breakage, I think United Water or Suez, I’m sorry,

was repairing a main recently and it just elicited a lot

of problems because it happened on a Friday night.  People

called the company, there was no answer, there was nothing

on their tapes machines.  So there’s a lot of unhappiness

in the community over not only the brown water, and the

problems that go on, but also the fact that there was

little accountability, they couldn’t really reach people

at Suez.  So that’s a problem that’s in the community that

is something that we know about.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. So these recommended changes, based

upon the testimony you just gave, are your recommended

changes.

A. Some of them are.  I’m sure they are.

Q. Okay.  If you could go to page 15,

lines 21 through 22 of your testimony.
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A. Page --

Q. Page 15.

A. Still there.

Q. Same page we were on, yes.  Lines 21

through 22.

A. Okay.

Q. And there you discuss a recommendation

for, quote, additional programs that will address inter

alia, the lack of attention to the CII sector and the

omission of measures geared to reduce outdoor peak water

use, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. What does CII stand for?

A. It stands for Industrial, the first is

Commercial, Industrial and Institutional sectors,

buildings.  And with the omission of measures geared to

reduce outdoor peak water use, it’s because there is peak

water use often by this sector.  And so that is something

that we felt was not given due attention in the J.P.

Q. If you could please turn to page 2,

we’re going to go backwards now, line 6 of your direct

testimony.

A. Okay.  Back to my college.

Q. No.  I’m not going back to your
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college.

A. Okay.

Q. You state that you are the chair of

the Rockland task force on water resources management.

Correct?

A. Yes, that’s correct.

Q. And you state on line -- if you can go

to page 6, line 8.

A. Yes.

Q. And you state that there are 18 other

members of the task force.  Correct?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And the members of the task force are

volunteers, correct?

A. Yes, they’re volunteers for the most

1019

part.  There are several of them who are employed by the

County of Rockland as such, the Department of --

Commissioner of Planning, and a member from the Rockland

County Department of Health, from the Environmental

Resources Department and then there are representatives.

There’s a representative of the Supervisor’s Association,

the town supervisors, and a representative from the

Village of Mayors.  There is a representative of large

business and small business, water users basically.  And
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almost the only named member of the task force in the

legislation was United Water New York because now we

needed to partner with them.  But there are other people -

- there was some advocates, et cetera, so --

Q. To my question --

A. -- oh, and could I just add --

Q. Oh sure.

A. We have committees with a lot of

volunteers but everybody, with the exception of one staff

person, for the task force, there’s only one staff person.

Everybody else is a volunteer.

Q. And who is that one staff person?

A. Ms. Drake, who is sitting behind you.

Q. Now if you could go to page 6 still,

line 6 through 7.  And you state that as was just in your

last answer, you say notably the company had been a named

participant in the task force as per the legislation

creating the task force on June 19, 2014.  Correct?  You

see that?  Just asking if you see that?

A. Oh yeah.

Q. Okay.

A. I just mentioned that even without

reading it to you.

Q. You did.

1020
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A. I did.

Q. You did.  Do you know the difference

between legislation and a legislative resolution?

A. Oh, I do, Mr. Alessi.  I know that

Q. So the task force was not created by a

local law, correct?

A. No, no, it was not.

Q. And it was created by a legislative

resolution, correct?

A. Legislative resolution passed one

night and signed the next day, or two days later by the

County executive and in a joint ceremony.

Q. All right.  Now my understanding is

1021

this is something that’s been troubling you all, but in the

County of Rockland, the acts that we vote on and are

signed by the County executive, we refer to as

legislation, they are resolutions, they are different from

laws that go through a public referendum, where the public

votes.  But it’s generally referred to -- we refer to them

as laws or resolutions, but they’re resolutions.  As I

say, its two branches of government and Rockland County

government doesn’t always agree on everything between the

two branches.  They certainly agreed on the formation of

this task force.
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you believe the company’s participation in the task force

is important, correct?  You spoke about that?

A. Absolutely, absolutely.

Q. And have you always held this

position?

A. Always.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, with your

permission, we are going to be presenting the witness and

Your Honor and the counsel here with a document and ask

that it be marked for identification.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I just have a quick

question.  This looks very familiar.  Is this already in

the record, or, do you know?

MR. TIMBROOK:  Yes, Your Honor.  He

presented this to me when I was on the witness stand.  And

I think it was marked for identification.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think so too.  Give me

a minute.

MR. ALESSI: Your Honor, this is a

different version.  And that is the reason why we are

marking it.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Sorry.  I just

looked at the title and I knew I had read that before.

But okay.

1022
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MR. ALESSI: Your Honor, it’s easily

confused for all the reasons stated in --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Don’t.  Stop.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Wait.  I’m gonna

mark this document, 5-page document.  At the very top it

says, June 17, 2004 and it has a number 16 -- thank you.

I’m sorry.  No, that’s okay.  Thank you.  June 17th, 2014

and it has the number 618 and I won’t read the rest, but

we’re marking it for identification as Hearing Exhibit 48.

MR. ALESSI:  May I proceed, Your Honor?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Please proceed.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Mrs. Cornell, have you had a fair

opportunity to like, take a look at this document?

A. Well, I know it pretty well because

this is the resolution that created the water task force.

Q. Very well.  Now, you were, as you just

mentioned, and I want to clarify, one of the legislators

and indeed you were the chair of the legislature that

introduced the resolution creating the task force,

correct?
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Q. Thank you for that clarification.

A. And there were a series of co-sponsors

as well, bipartisan, I might add.

Q. And as initially introduced by you.

A. Oh, that’s -- I’m sorry.  I’m not

going to answer it. It’ll just stop.  Thank you.  I’m

sorry.

Q. As initially introduced by you and the

-- co-introduced by you, the resolution did not provide

for the company to be on the task force, correct?

A. No, it’s right here, in the, on page -

- the following page.  They list all of the -- the county

executive or his designee, the chair, the environmental

committee, the Commissioner of Health.  It goes right down

the list and then near the bottom, it says -- oh, actually

it’s the last one, a representative of United Water New

York or its successor companies, who shall be appointed by

the general manager of United Water New York, or its

successor companies or his or her designee.  So that was

the -- those were the 19 members.

Q. I’m sorry.  You may have misunderstood

1024
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But I was a sponsor along with the current chair, Mr.
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my question.

A. I did.  I guess.

Q. My question was, as initially

introduced, not the resolution that was passed, but as

initially introduced by you, the resolution did not

provide for a representative of the company to be on the

task force and if you could turn to the last, you start on

620 and you can see under debate, and I would ask you to

turn the page to 621 and if you could take a moment to

read just what’s at the top half of page 61 and when

you’ve had a fair chance to read that, just let me know.

A. You mean this, where it says Mr.

Grant?

Q. Yes.

A. It speaks to United Water

specifically.  Should it say United Water or its successor

company on its membership was representative --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  Did you ask

her to read the whole thing out loud, or -- I understood

you just to be asking her to read it.

MR. ALESSI:  That was my request, Your

Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Ms. Cornell, you

don’t have to read it out loud.
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THE WITNESS:  Honestly, I’m totally puzzled

because right from the beginning of the process, through

the committees, before it even got to the legislature,

United Water was part of it.  So I really don’t know what

you’re saying.  But I will read this --

MR. ALESSI:  If you could.  What I’m trying

to do, as I indicated in the very beginning, I’m trying to

be clear in my questions and I’m trying to be precise.  If

I am unclear in my question, please let me know.  But

here’s my question.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Can I ask a question?  Is

it -- do you really just want her to read the Chairman

Wolf, Ms. Cornell and Chairman Wolf part at the bottom, or

do you want her to read the whole thing?

MR. ALESSI:  I would just like her to read

starting from Mr. Grant, up at the top, and read through

down to the --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Let me interrupt.  Ms.

Cornell, if you would please take the time to read what’s

on this page.

THE WITNESS:  I can tell you that it didn’t

--

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, no, no.  No.  Did you

finish reading it?
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THE WITNESS:  No.  Okay.  I’ll read it.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think he has a question

after you finish reading it.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  He, being Mr.

Alessi.  I apologize.  Off the record.  I’m sorry, what --

Ms. Cornell, have you had an opportunity to read that

page?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have.  And it is

puzzling --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Wait, wait.  I believe

Mr. Alessi wants to ask you a question and then you can

respond.  So, Mr. Alessi?

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you.  Thank you, Your

Honor.  So the record’s clear, we are now, Exhibit 48 and

we are on the last --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We’re on page 621.

MR. ALESSI:  621 of that exhibit and here

is my question.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Isn’t it not correct that from this

page of the resolution, that Mr. Grant brought up the

question of why United Water was not on the list of the
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task force as the resolution was initially introduced?

And your response was, I don’t know.  That we did consider

the two water districts -- and there you’re referring to

the water districts of United Water, correct?

MR. SIMETI:  Objection, Your Honor.

A. No.  No.  We were referring to --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry, there’s an

objection.  What’s the basis?

MR. SIMETI:  That’s not what it -- it does

-- Mr. Grant’s comment does identify United Water was

listed.  What was not listed was what -- or its successor

company.  Is that essentially what he’s looking to find

out, whether or not the amendment, what the amendment was

and to include or a successor company?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay wait.  I’m going to

sustain the objection and ask that you rephrase it and

maybe like short and direct.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, we’ll brief this

as needed.  We’ve got other things we need to move to.

THE WITNESS:  You did misunderstand this

and I can provide any kind of --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  There’s no question

though.  So you don’t have to respond.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Thank you.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Mrs. Cornell, your testimony in this

matter, the direct and the rebuttal, was it approved by

all members of the task force?

A. No, it was not.  We really don’t have

that kind of, bring people back to vote on everything.  I

take the responsibility for writing comments, writing

letters, communicating with people and so, no, there was

no vote on this.

Q. And was, in addition to there being no

vote, was any member of the task force provided with

copies of either your direct or rebuttal testimony before

they were filed in this proceeding?

A. Some of them may have been, yes, and

much of what is in my testimony came from the committee,

known as the Conservation Committee of the task force.  So

there were a number of people who had worked on putting

together the material that I was able to use for my

testimony.

Q. Approximately how many members of the

task force saw the version of your testimonies that are

submitted here before it was filed with the Public Service

Commission?
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A. Oh, I would guess 6 or 8.

Q. If you could please turn your

attention to the second page of the resolution.  And that

is Exhibit 48.

A. Which resolution are you speaking of?

Q. This is the one we were on before.

A. Oh, the one that I was --

Q. Yes.  Now, I’m gonna go and ask you a

specific --

A. Okay.

Q. -- question with regard to the

resolution.

A. All right.

Q. If you could go to the second page,

which is page 619.

A. Yep.

Q. And if you could go to the third

resolve clause from the bottom.

A. Okay.

Q. Do you see where it states that

resolve meetings of the TF, which I assume is the task

force, shall be subject to the open meetings law of the

State of New York, shall follow Robert’s Rules of Order,
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paren, latest edition, and then here’s the sentence, and

shall require a quorum of a simple majority for any

official vote or action to be taken.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. And was there a -- do you consider to

be your testimony in this matter an action within the

meaning of that provision?

A. No.

Q. So your view is that submitting

testimony in a matter on behalf of a task force you

describe as large and diverse, is not an action of the

task force.

A. No.

Q. Was an --

A. We tend to do things when there are

meetings to do things by consensus and that’s the way we

hired our consultant, Amy Vickers, was by consensus upon

recommendation of David Stanton, president of regulated

water of, United Water New York, New Jersey.

Q. So no official vote -- I’m sorry.  Did

you finish your answer?

A. No.  I said United Water New York and

then I added New Jersey.  But it’s now Suez.

Q. Thank you.  So an official vote was
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never taken by the task force adopting your direct

testimony or responsive testimony?

A. Correct.

Q. Has an official vote ever been taken

by the task force with respect to supporting or not

supporting the joint proposal in this proceeding?

A. No.

Q. Did you provide an opportunity for the

members of the task force to present an objection to your

testimony filed in this case?

A. We were so busy working on, working

over the past few months with Suez, with Black and Veatch,

with the Conservation Committee, with the settlement

judge, et cetera, that there haven’t been any summer

meetings or meetings until most recently when we just gave

an update on what was going on.  So I guess, don’t

remember what the question is, but the answer’s probably

no. What was it?

Q. That’s okay, Mrs. Cornell.  My

question was, did you provide an opportunity for any

member of the task force to present an objection to your

testimony on behalf of that?

A. No, but any member of the task force

was welcome to become a party to the proceeding and to
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issue their own statements.  And some did.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, we have a document

to be marked as the next exhibit and I can assure that

this not already in, as marked.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  A 3-page letter dated

July 31st, 2015, it appears to be directed to Legislator

Cornell and signed by David Stanton, I guess the president

of Suez Environment -- will be marked for identification

as Hearing Exhibit 49.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Now, Mrs. Cornell, have you had a fair

opportunity -- I don’t have a question yet, other than

this.  Have you had a fair opportunity to look at that

letter?

A. No.

Q. Would you like that opportunity to

read it?

A. If you’re going to ask me a question

about it, I certainly should remember.  We had a lot of

correspondence back and forth.  This is a letter from

David Stanton, who I believe at that time was still acting

as the general manager of United Water New York.

Q. What I would like to do -- and if it
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doesn’t work for you, you just tell me.  I’d like to refer

you to a portion of the letter.

A. Sure.

Q. And if answering questions about the

portion of the letter does not allow you to fairly answer,

because it’s too out of context, you please let me know,

okay?

A. Yes.

Q. And then if you need to read the rest

of the letter or any other part, we’ll go there.  All

right.  What I would like to do following up on my

questions about whether members of the task force were

provided an opportunity with regard to your testimony of

the J.P., is to now turn to page 2 of Mr. Stanton’s letter

and I’m going to go to a specific part of it, where and --

it’s the paragraph that starts with -- it’s on page 2 of 3

of Exhibit 49, and the second sentence, I’m going read it,

United Water’s proper role -- talking about on the task

force -- I’m sorry.  Let me give it more context.  Read

the whole paragraph in the beginning there.  The task

force has begun a community dialogue regarding important

issues, such as land use, economic development, and

government-mandated water conservation tools that will

progress in the weeks and months ahead.  United Water’s
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proper role is to serve as a resource for that dialogue

but not to take positions on issues best decided by the

residents of Rockland County and their elected and

appointed government officials.  Likewise, you often issue

letters, press releases, and reports in the name of the

task force that United Water may not agree with in part or

whole.  Thus, serving as a task force member is

problematic because our silence could be viewed as

agreement, while our dissent could be viewed as

argumentative.  For those reasons, respectfully, United

Water will no longer serve as a member of the task force

but will be glad to consider any request it receives to

provide technical support on a particular issue.  Here is

my question, here are my questions.  Has United Water, its

successor Suez, ever refused a request of yours to meet

with them and in your capacity --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is that -- because it

sounds as if you’re going on to a compound question.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay.  I will do it -- yes,

all right.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Have they ever --

THE REPORTER:  Your mic's not on.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Sorry.  I’m sorry.  I

shouldn’t have interrupted you.  But --
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MR. ALESSI:  That’s okay, Your Honor.  What

I would like to do, Your Honor, is I wanted to provide

that as background for my next line of questioning, but

I’ll --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  Ask your

question as you planned to.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. What I would like to do is to ask you

with regard to the company, has it, other than task force

matters, has it ever refused a request of yours as a

legislator to meet with you?

A. Well, in terms of the context of this

letter, this letter was sent soon after United Water

withdrew from the task force, which I had asked them not

to do.  They withdrew not because of anything that I was

doing. They withdrew because they were very unhappy with

the Vickers report that found that --

MR. ALESSI:  I’m sorry, Your Honor, I’m

going to have to object because now that is really --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, let’s --

MR. ALESSI:  --saying about what the

company’s reasons were.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Let me just remind --
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THE WITNESS:  Wait, you’re intimating that

their reasons are as stated by Mr. Stanton here.  That the

--

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  Ms. Cornell -

-

THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I’m sorry.  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  In terms of answering the

questions, you’re allowed to explain, but in answering the

questions, if you could keep your answers within the scope

of the question, that would be helpful.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I also want to ask if

your -- about how long this line of questioning will take

because I do want to do the afternoon break soon.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, I -- the last

question that I had was the last question in this line to

answer your question.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Would you like my last question

repeated, Mrs. Cornell?

A. As to whether they have ever refused

to do anything that I asked, or respond to anything that I
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had asked.

Q. My request, if I could state the

question for you, is has Suez, or the predecessor, United

Water of New York, ever refused a request of yours to meet

with you over any water matter other than issues relating

to the task force?

A. Other than, no, I don’t think they

have ever refused to meet.

Q. Thank you.

A. They may have refused to work

together, which is, I mean, I went to their offices to

meet with Mr. Graziano to say how much we wanted to

continue to work together.

Q. That’s with regard to the task force

though, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

A. Yes.

Q. My question was, aside from task force

matters, has Suez or the predecessor company, United

Water, ever refused a request of yours to meet with you --

A. No, I’m sure --

Q. -- on any water supply matter, ever?

A. I’m sure they haven’t --
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  All right.  Let me just

remind.  For purposes of the transcript, he has to finish

talking before you start --

THE WITNESS:  Oh, okay.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- answering.  And he has

to wait for you to finish answering before he asks the

next question because otherwise the transcript ends up

looking like -- did you, yes, did, ever answer, blah --

it’s very unclear.  So, please, each of you wait for the

other to finish talking and that will work much better.

So do you --

MR. ALESSI:  Same reminders, so --

THE WITNESS:  Have you finished?

MR. ALESSI:  I finished that line of

questioning, Your Honor.  And if Your Honor --

THE WITNESS:  I’ll answer then.  No.

MR. ALESSI:  No, I finished, and you’ve

answered the question.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think it’s been asked

and answered.

MR. ALESSI:  If now is a convenient time,

Your Honor, this is the end of the line of that

questioning.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I’d like to take a
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15-minute break.  So please be back by my clock, it would

be 3:35.

(Off the record)

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I’m actually -- I

actually have 3:36, so let’s go back on the record,

please.

THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And we will continue with

the company’s cross examination of witness Cornell.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Ms. Cornell, if you could please go to

page 13, lines 11 through 15 of your direct testimony.

Let me know when you’re there, please.

A. Page 13?

Q. Page 13, lines 11 to 15.

A. Okay.

Q. And there you state that, on line 13,

my concern is that SWNY did not fulfill the intent of the

PSC order of November 17, 2014.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. And then a little lower on that same

page, starting on line 16, you state that the Commission’s
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A. Yes, I do.

Q. And then you state starting on line

20, that in response, Suez filed a report on the

feasibility of incremental water supply projects and

conservation options in Rockland County, New York.  Do you

see that?

A. I do.

Q. And then on lines 22 through 23,

referring to the June 2015 report, which I am going to

refer to as the feasibility report.  Are you okay with me

short-handing it that way?

A. Yes, I have it here.

Q. Good.  And you say, quote, it contains

only a marginal discussion of conservation, end quote.

Correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And then you state from lines 24

1041
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through 26, that you find it, quote, mystifying, end

quote, that DPS staff concluded that Suez’s feasibility

report, quote, demonstrated the reasonableness of -- and I

think you’re referring to here -- Suez’s conservation goal

of one MGD, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Then on page 5 of your direct

testimony, lines 13 through 15 --

A. Yes.

Q. -- you state that, quote, the

assertion that -- I’m sorry, I switched it.  If you could

go to your response testimony.  I’m going to now go to

your -- I didn’t mention this is your rebuttal response

testimony.

A. Yeah, um-hum.

Q. If you could please turn to page 5,

lines 13 through 15.  Are you there?

A. Yes.

Q. I mean, sorry, have you located that

section?

A. No, I’ve located it, but I’m wondering

why you don’t start at the beginning of -- what did you

say, 13 -- it really starts on page, on line 12.

Q. Okay.  We’ll start on page 12.  Where
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it says --

A. It’s, it’s line 12.

Q. Page 13, line 12 is where you want to

start?

A. No, didn’t you say page 5?

Q. Yes, I’m on page -- I’m sorry.  I’m

mishearing you.  You want to go to page --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, no, no.  All she said

was, on page 5, she thought you should actually start with

line 12.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Okay.  We’ll start there.  Where it

say, in fact, there is no analysis, no data, no

feasibility basis whatsoever to conclude that one MGD is

all that can be or should be done through conservation.

Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Which you stated in your testimony.

A. Yes.

Q. All right.  Did you read the

Commission orders regarding Suez in say the last 2 years?

A. Yes.

Q. And did --
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A. I also -- I also have the -- I’d like

to be able to explain the answer, yes, as to why I say

that.

Q. I’m, I’m --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, no, no.  All he said

was did you read them.  So I think that’s yes or no.

THE WITNESS:  I was going back to the prior

question, when he asked about this report, which I just

said yes, which started, in fact, there is no analysis, no

data, no feasibility basis whatsoever to conclude that one

MGD is all that it can be.  I have the report, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  But I don’t -- I

thought.  I’m sorry.  Was the question just is that what

your testimony says?  That’s --

MR. ALESSI:  That’s all that the question -

- yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So you should hold on to

the report, but I don’t know if you have to read it yet or

not cause the question was just is that --

THE WITNESS:  No I had something I really

wanted to say about it.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I know, but when you’re

being cross-examined, you’re able to answer the questions.

So if he asks you a question about it, and in responding
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to that question, you need to explain you can do that.

But your answer should be limited to the scope of the

question that was asked.

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So I answered yes to

this question.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. So if you could go to page 5 of your

rebuttal testimony, line 13.  And it says the assertion

that SWNY fulfilled its task under the November 2014 order

can only be made by SWNY and anyone else who has not read

the report.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. Okay.  So indeed you’ve read the

Commission order and you reference and discuss the

Commission orders in your direct testimony, for example,

if you go to page 13, starting on line 16 of your

testimony.

A. Not the rebuttal, but the testimony.

Q. Yes.

A. We’re moving back to the testimony.

Okay.  All right.

Q. Let me know when you’re there.

A. Page 13, line -- page 13, line 13?
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MR. DICHTER:  We’re on the direct testimony

now?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We’re back to the direct

testimony on page 13.  I believe it’s lines 20 and 21, but

I’ll allow counsel to confirm.

MR. ALESSI:  I’m sorry, Your Honor.  I was

con --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We don’t know what line

numbers on page 13 you wanted us to look at, or the

witness to look at.  Sorry.

MR. ALESSI:  We’re talking about page 13,

lines 16 through 19.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  That’s where we’re talking

about.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Now, I’m going to ask you some

questions now.

A. Okay.

Q. Do you recall reading the Commission’s

December 18, 2015 order adopting alternative demand supply

strategies, and abandoning Haverstraw project in case 13-

W0303.
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A. December 17?

Q. That would be December 18, 2015.

A. I do have the order, adopting

alternative demand supply strategies and abandoning

Haverstraw project?

Q. Correct.

A. Okay.

Q. Could you turn to page 16 of that

order?

A. Yes.

Q. And if you could go down to the bottom

of page 16, about halfway down the page, the order states

that, quote, the company responded to the November order

with a 3-part proposal that it believes will allow it to

manage supply and demand for the next decade.  Correct?

Is that what the order says?

A. Yes.

Q. And at the end of that sentence,

there’s a footnote, 34, which cites to Suez’s feasibility

report and a June 30, 2015 cover letter to the feasibility

report from Christopher Graziano as the source of Suez’s

3-part proposal, correct?

A. Mm hmm.

Q. And then down at the bottom of page 16
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of the Commission order, the Commission summarizes Suez’s

3-part proposal in the feasibility report as follows,

quote, the company’s proposal examines the potential for

recovering water through improved leak detection and

infrastructure repair.  The potential savings to be gained

through conservation measures that the company could

implement, with this Commission’s approval, and the

potential for developing new wells and interconnections

with water systems.  Is that what that order says?

A. I’m not seeing it on page 16.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It says with other water

systems.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. I’m sorry.  I misspoke, with other

water systems.

A. Yeah, I’m sorry.  I just, I’m not

seeing it on page 16.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Nope.  It’s the bottom of

page 16, I think carrying over to the top of page 16 -- or

17.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. If you go to the very last sentence on
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page 16, above the footnotes, where it starts with, to the

far right, the company’s.

A. The company states.  Oh, the

company’s.  All right.  The company’s proposal --

Q. Exactly.

A. Yeah.  Yep.

Q. And that says the company’s proposal

examines the potential for recovering water through

improved leak detection and infrastructure repair.  The

potential savings to be gained through conservation

measures that the company could implement with this

commission's approval and the potential for developing new

wells and interconnections with other systems.  Do you see

that?

A. I do.

Q. Now if you go to page 17, the page

we’re on, and if you just go about halfway down that page

where it says, in terms of the very first full paragraph

-- the outline?  See where -- we’re on page 17.

A. Yes.

Q. The first full paragraph.  It says the

outline of the company's proposal has considerable support

from the task force and many of the other commentators in

this proceeding.  Do you see that?
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A. I do.

Q. And then about two-thirds down on page

17, the order states that the commission finds that the

company's 3-part proposal is reasonable and if pursued

with alacrity will meet United Water New York customer

water needs over the next decade.  Correct?  Do you see

that?

A. I see it.

Q. And then if you go to the last

sentence on the next page, the bottom of page 18 of the

order?

A. On 18, we’re on 18 now?

Q. Yeah, at the very bottom of page 18.

Do you see where it starts with for planning purposes at

the very end of the page, right after footnote 38?

A. No, I don’t see anything, I don’t see

for planning purposes.  Oh, yes, I see, above that.  For

planning purposes, we accept the company’s assessment,

yes, I do see that.

Q. All right.  So it says for planning

purposes, we, meaning the Commission, accept the company’s

assessment of the potential for conservation, which is

based on the company’s experience with the measures it

proposes, and which comports with a cautious approach to
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planning, end quote.  Is that what that order says?

A. Yes.

Q. Now is the caution to which the

Commission refers there on page 18 of the order, as you

understand it, the need to be cautious in estimating what

conservation is feasible, because if you’re not cautious,

you could run out of a water supply if you’re substituting

conservation for otherwise needed additional supply, or do

you believe the Commission is referring to some other

caution?

A. I don’t like to presuppose what the

Commission was thinking in writing that.  The concerns

that I’ve had have been the lack of analysis that came up

with the one MGD figure which was not put into the order,

and the way I read the order of December 15, it really

indicates that, I have it right here, this is not the

right thing, what did I do with this, Interrogatory.  Just

a second if you don't mind.  I –- here is the order, and

here is what the Commission ordered if I might.  This is

on page 25 of the order.

MR. ALESSI:  I’m sorry, Your Honor, I don’t

have a problem with Mrs. Cornell, but if she’s able to

answer the question that I posed first, that would be

helpful.
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THE WITNESS:  I think I did.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I think she said that she

does not want to presuppose what the Commission meant.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay, thank you.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Did I?

THE WITNESS:  You did.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Thank you very much.  On page

25 the Commission orders, and it actually restates

something that was said above, which is that United Water

New York –- first of all, of course, they talk about the

abandonment of the plan for the desalination plant, but

then it says United Water New York Inc. shall, 1, continue

planning for short and long term lost water mitigation

measures, conservation, and other incremental supply

additions, and 2, continue filing quarterly reports of

supply and demand as required by the November order.  Now

the November order was really very clear, and it’s

actually stated a couple of times in United Water’s own

June 2015 report done by CDM Smith, which is a 2-part

order.  United Water New York shall study what

conservation opportunities exist in collaboration with the

Task Force, with the goal of identifying measures that may
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reduce demand by 2 million gallons per day, and shall file

a report with the secretary within 6 months of the

issuance of this order, identifying the feasibility, cost,

and estimated demand reductions associated with each

identified measure.  This report is what was submitted by

United Water.  It’s a 97 page report, and there are two-

and-three-quarter pages on conservation.  There are two-

and-three-quarter pages out of 97.  There’s no analysis

whatsoever.  There’s no basis for one MGD.  I’m sorry, did

you hear me?

MR. ALESSI:  I did.

THE WITNESS:  Do you want me to repeat it?

MR. ALESSI:  No, thank you.

THE WITNESS:  No, okay.

MR. ALESSI:  I did hear you.

THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

MR. ALESSI:  If you could go to page 20 of

the order.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Are we talking about the

December 18, 2015?

MR. ALESSI:  The same order, yes, the same

order we were just on.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And page?

THE WITNESS:  Page 25?
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Page 20.  And if you could go to the

first full paragraph that begins with in conclusion.

A. Yes.  Uh-huh.

Q. It states, in conclusion, we find the

company’s proposal is a reasonable approach to managing

Rockland’s water supply for the next 10 years.  If

implemented with diligence, which we expect the company to

employ, the combination of measures should keep supply in

balance with demand.  That’s what that order says?

A. It does say that.

Q. Do you still maintain -- now if you

could go back to your response testimony, page 5, lines 13

through 15.

A. My response testimony only had 13

pages.  Oh, I’m sorry, was it the lines?

Q. Five, lines 13 through 15.

A. Page 5.  Okay.  Yeah, okay.  Uh-huh.

Q. So is it still your assertion that,

quote, the assertion that SWNY fulfilled its task under

the November 2014 order can only be made by SWNY, and

anyone else who has not read, which you’re referring to I

assume the Suez June 2015 feasible report, are you
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including the Commission in that statement, of in anyone

else?

A. What I’m saying is that the sentence

before the one that the assertion that you read is that

one MGD is all that can be, or should be done through

conservation, because I don’t believe one MGD was listed

in any of the Public Service Commission’s reports, or I

don’t think that figure has appeared anyplace until it

suddenly seemed to appear with the Black and Veatch report

this year.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and can I just ask

though, he did ask, I’m sorry, counsel asked whether the

second line, the assertion is still your assertion.  If

you could just respond to that, is that still?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Did I correctly state

your question?

MR. ALESSI:  You did, Your Honor.

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  I do have -- yes, I stand by

this, the assertion that Suez fulfilled its task.  I do

not think they fulfilled this task.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, and then what his
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other question was, did your assertion include the

Commission?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I think anyone who has

read the report.  I think that they did not fulfill their

responsibility under the -- what I consider to be the

November 17, 2014 order.  I don’t think it was fulfilled.

MR. ALESSI:  We have our answer.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, you have your

answer.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor, I

appreciate that.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Isn’t the conservation program in the

joint proposal consistent with the conservation goals set

forth in the feasibility report that the commission

accepted as reasonable in the December 2015 order?

1056
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are some, as I said, two-and-three-quarter pages.  The

goals are nice but there’s no specificity.  There’s no way
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having a minimal goal is such a disappointment, Mr.

Alessi, because Chair Zibelman had come to our meetings.
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Q. If you could please go back to page 3,

and I’m talking now in your direct testimony.  Page 3,

lines 9 through 11.  And I’m specifically referring to the

sentence that begins on 9.  I have worked with the Task

Force and its committees to identify and maximize

conservation opportunities through government and

community action and succeeded in securing State funds to

develop a conservation implementation plan for Rockland

County in the amount of $250,000.  Do you see that?

A. Oh yes.

Q. Now if you could please turn to page

2, lines 14 through 15, of your response testimony, so

we’re switching now to the response.  Page 2, lines 14

to 15.

A. Yes.
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progressive, aggressive plans of conservation, and asked

us this past year to work with Suez, as we did for 3

months trying to put forth ideas for conservation

and, you know, we were very disappointed to see at the end

that there was a -- no one ever told us that there was a

one MGD cap and that’s really what it was, and I also

disagree with staff on as to whether it was or was not a

cap, it was a cap.  It was a cap.
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Q. In there, you state that, quote, as

chair of the legislature for 9 years, I initiated the

development of Rockland Tomorrow, the Rockland County

Comprehensive Plan.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. And isn’t it the case that Rockland

Tomorrow and Rockland County Comprehensive Plan are

synonyms, they mean the same thing?

A. It’s the title.

Q. Title.

A. It’s the title of the report.

Q. Now if you go further down on page 2

of your responsive testimony, we’re now starting at line

21, and now we’re going to carry over through the next

page to line 5, you state that during the 9 years you were

chair of the legislature and years following, I have

presented, and we went through this earlier in your cross

examination, do you remember that?

A. Yes I do.

Q. Okay, and with respect to your

testimony about identifying and maximizing conservation

opportunities for governmental action, you reference -- if

you could go to your responsive testimony, page 3, lines 9

through 11, do you recall giving a statement to the New
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York State Assembly Standing Committee on Environmental

Conservation on August 6, 2008?

A. Yes, I do.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Did you want this marked

for identification?

MR. ALESSI:  Yes, please, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  This appears to be a --

let’s see --

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, did we mark the

other letter?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It was 49?

MR. DUTHIE:  From Mr. Stanton?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. DUTHIE:  The July 31st letter was 49?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes, right?

MR. DUTHIE:  I missed it, sorry.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  This will be

marked as hearing exhibit 50.  Is this, can I just ask, is

this just an excerpt of certain pages?  It looks like it’s

104 to --

MR. ALESSI:  It is, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:
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Q. Now, Mrs. Cornell, what I’d like to do

is draw your attention to page 114 of exhibit -- this is

49, Your Honor?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, it’s 50.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. 50, thank you.  Exhibit 50 that you have

in front of you and you can see the page number in the

upper -- far upper right hand corner where I’m referencing

114, and I’m going to go from there to page 115, line 5.

And there -- and I just want to see if you recognize what

starts on page 104 and then jumps to 114 and to 115.  Does

that represent the testimony that you gave on August 6,

2008 to the assembly standing committee?

A. Yes, in lines -- could you just tell

me again which lines you wanted me -- from 6 to something?

Q. Yes, what I’m going to focus on is

page 114, line 17, so that’s what we’re going to start

with, here in Rockland County.

A. Right.

Q. And then I’m going to carry over.

A. Okay.

Q. Here in Rockland County, our

environmental challenges are very diverse and very real,
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and there is no challenge greater than the protection of

our water supply.  As virtually all of the water we use in

Rockland comes from precipitation, this situation can be

quite precarious.  Our water supply infrastructure is

stretched to the limit and we are removing water from our

self-contained aquifers and watersheds just as quickly as

we fill them.  If we were to suddenly find ourselves in

the midst of a serious drought, we would have a true

catastrophe on our hands.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. And then if you could please turn to

page 115.

A. Don’t you want to go to the next

paragraph?

Q. I’m going to go to next -- actually I

respectfully say the answer to my question is no -- and

then I’m going to go to page --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You mean the answer to

her question.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q:  I’m sorry, the answer to your question

is no.  And then if we could go to page 115 of this

exhibit 50, and I’m going to go to line 13, where you
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stated, quote, there is no magic cure for this problem,

which is why Rockland County and New York State need to

seek out ways to reduce our water consumption.  Do you see

that?

A. I do.

Q. And then the next two sentences on

page 115, lines 16 through 23?

A. Yes.  Uh-huh.

Q. And I’m going to summarize.  You

testify about your belief in the need to better manage our

water resources, preempting a water related crisis and

creating a situation where water conservation is at the

forefront of everyone’s agenda.  Do you see that

discussion.

A. Yes, but I don’t see the words that

you used written here.

Q. Okay, well let’s just use the words

that you talked about above.  You -- on 13, there’s no

magic cure for this problem, which is why Rockland County

and New York State need to seek out ways to reduce our

water consumption.  We need to work together across

municipal lines, across county lines, and across state

lines to better manage our water resources.  By joining

forces and creating a partnership together, we can work to
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preempt a water related crisis and create a situation

where water conservation is at the forefront of everyone’s

environmental agenda.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. Now, at the time you made this

statement to the Assembly in August 2008, were you the

chair of the Rockland County legislature?

A. Yes.

Q. And you had been the chair since 2005,

correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Now with respect to your 2008

statement to the assembly in exhibit 50 that Rockland

County needs to seek out ways to reduce our water

consumption in order to preempt a water related crisis,

from 2005 to 2008, did the Rockland County legislature

pass any laws creating mandatory water conservation

measures?

A. There were no laws passed for

mandatory conservation measures.  There’s been a lot of

work done, however, with the community in terms of

outreach on environmental education.  There also has been,

in recent years, meetings with landscapers, with

irrigation specialists, working together to really inform
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the public about newer, better ways to do things.  We work

very closely with Cornell Cooperative Extension, Master

Gardeners in terms of working with people and there is a

whole list, of course, of things that the water task force

has been doing including -- has started a course,

developed a curriculum, and working with Columbia

University workshops with Stevens Institute of Technology

doing green infrastructure projects.  We will be -- once

we are accessing the $250,000 --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Excuse me.  Excuse me,

I’m sorry --

THE WITNESS:  -- we will be, actually --

may I just address this about the water -- the $250,000,

which we had been awarded by the State is for the purpose

of hiring a consultant to develop a comprehensive water

plan for the County of Rockland.  We were badly delayed

when United Water left our fold --

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, I’m going to have

to -- I’m sorry to interrupt, but now this is --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  This is --

MR. ALESSI:  -- well beyond did you pass

any laws.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- it is beyond the

question.
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THE WITNESS:  Okay.  All right.  But we are

going to be working on the laws.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, but the answer was

you have not passed any laws.

THE WITNESS:  No.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. From 2005 to 2008 was the time frame,

the answer’s no?

A. No.

Q. We have another exhibit that we would

ask Your Honor to mark for identification as exhibit 51.

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, may I ask Mr.

Alessi if he’s ahead of schedule or behind schedule with

his examination of Ms. Cornell?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  He hasn’t used up his

time.

MR. DUTHIE:  That wasn’t the question. I’m

just wondering if he’s ahead of schedule or behind

schedule.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Let’s go off the record.

MR. DUTHIE:  Please.

(OFF THE RECORD)

(ON THE RECORD)
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THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  A document has been

circulated entitled Rockland Tomorrow, Rockland County

Comprehensive Plan adopted March 1, 2011.  It will be

marked for identification as hearing exhibit 51.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.  May I

proceed?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Mrs. Cornell, do you recognize exhibit

51 as the Rockland Tomorrow, Rockland County Comprehensive

Plan chapter 11?  I’m sorry, chapter 12.

A. I’m glad you told me it was just one

chapter because I thought it lost a lot of weight --

Q. Right.

A. -- because it’s a very big book.  But

if you tell me it’s chapter 12, then I’m sure it is.

Q. Okay.  Now the Rockland County

Comprehensive Plan was adopted on March 1, 2011, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And at that time, you were chair of

the county legislature, correct?

A. Yes.  Uh-huh.
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Q. If you could please turn to page 275

of exhibit 51.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Got it.

MR. ALESSI:  All righty.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. And if you could locate the heading

toward the top of water conservation.

A. Yes.

Q. And the first sentence of this section

of the comprehensive plan states that the county should

facilitate water conservation for its residents as a means

of offsetting some of the demand on water sources from the

projected population growth, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And the next sentence states that

water conservation measures could include, but not be

limited to the following, and then there’s a list,

correct?

A. Yes.

Q. In the 5 and 1/2 years since this

comprehensive plan was enacted, has the Rockland County

legislature made any such amendments to the county

sanitary code?  And I just want to show you that one of
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the items that is on the list here is the last bullet,

which is, investigation of the regulatory requirements to

establish secondary water metering requirements for

outdoor water use and sanitary code and the institution of

tiered rates for outdoor water use with the PSC, and above

that, amendment of the county sanitary code to enforce

odd/even watering year-round and time-of-day restrictions

to relieve peak demand.  My question is, in the 5 and 1/2

years since this comprehensive plan was enacted, has the

Rockland County legislature made any of the amendments

referred to, where I was just reading, to the county

sanitary code?

MR. SIMETI:  Objection, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Based on?

MR. SIMETI:  The basis for the objection,

how does this line of questioning relate to her testimony

or otherwise result -- relate to a recommendation that

would result in a just and reasonable rates or in the

public interest?  Which --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Well, he --

MR. SIMETI:  -- I understand is the focus

of this hearing.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It is, but if you raise

something in testimony, I think counsel is entitled to
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examine it, or cross examine you on it.  And, I believe --

will you point me -- I believe remember she actually

referred to --

MR. ALESSI:  Page 3 of the direct testimony

of Mrs. Cornell, and I’ve referred to it actually twice in

my examination, line 9, the sentence I have worked with

the task force and its committees to identify and maximize

conservation opportunities through government and

community action.  And that’s what I am.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yeah, that’s not actually

what I was talking about because I remember he asked a

question about this and she corrected him as to the title

so I know.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor I have another one,

it’s --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You have another one

what?

MR. ALESSI:  -- it was in the very

beginning of this line where I asked her to go to page 2,

line --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I know.  I’m just saying

I remember there being a question on her testimony that

had this Rockland Tomorrow, Rockland County Comprehensive

Plan.  Can you point me to where that was?  I remember she
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corrected you on the title.

MR. ALESSI:  Right.  I asked her if it was

a synonym and I’m going to go there because she did.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So because it’s in her

testimony, I am going to allow him some leeway to ask a

question based on what was in her testimony and I’m going

to ask for cooperation of everyone, very -- if we can do

very direct questions and answers that are limited to the

scope of the question.  That will help us move along.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, if I may just

briefly.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Go ahead.

MR. SIMETI:  The question relates to the

acts of the legis -- it focuses on whether or not the

legislature -- whether or not Ms. Cornell as chair of the

legislature enacted laws.  She’s presenting testimony as

chair of the water task force, which was created in 2014,

and this document relates to 2011.  I submit that the line

of questioning on whether or not the legislature adopted

local laws is not related to her testimony as chair of the

water task force.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, if I could please,

if you look please at line 2 of her testimony, direct

testimony -- page 2, line 13, Mr. Simeti is not correct.
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She says, as chair of the legislature for 9 years, I

initiated the development of Rockland Tomorrow, and that’s

what I alluded to earlier about -- I want to make sure

that with the party status filing that I get to cross

examine her testimony because she’s the one who says I

initiated this document.  And I wanted to see what’s

happened with the document that she has initiated and its

recommendations.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So --

THE WITNESS:  Can I respond?

MR. SIMETI:  No.

THE WITNESS:  I initiated --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Wait, wait.

MR. SIMETI:  -- let the judge rule,

ruling.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry?

MR. SIMETI:  I defer to your ruling, of

course, so.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I was going to tell you

the basis for my ruling is that she did raise it in her

testimony.  I know I made the distinction about how she

1071
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was testifying, but we did not go through and strike

anything where she referred to herself as the legislator

or what she’s done as a legislator.  So, if it’s still in

her testimony, it’s a proper area for anyone to ask about.

I -- that’s my ruling.

MR. SIMETI:  Very well.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So, do you still have the

question in mind?  Witness Cornell?

THE WITNESS:  You wanted me, Mr. Alessi, to

-- now I’ve lost --

MR. ALESSI:  I’d be happy to repeat the

question.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  The question was --

THE WITNESS:  I think you were asking me

about the last two bullets.  On page 275.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  We were at page 275, can

you just restate your question?

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, if I could just to

-- as background.  I did ask questions about the last two

bullets but --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I know, but can you

restate the question.

MR. ALESSI:  I can.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
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BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. In the 5 and 1/2 years since this

comprehensive plan was enacted, has the Rockland County

legislature made any amendments to the county sanitary

code that are identified in this bullet list under the

heading of water conservation on page 275 of Exhibit 51?

A. Well, I would certainly hope that the

legislature would not have voted on an amendment to the

county sanitary code to enforce odd/even day watering

because that’s way too much water.  Way too much.

Q. So the answer to your question -- my

question is no?

A. Yes, that’s no.

Q. So --

A. As far as the investigation of

regulatory requirements to establish secondary water

metering requirement for outdoor water use in the sanitary

code and the institution of tiered rates, we certainly

have not done that, but there is a board of health that

really creates changes to the sanitary code.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mrs. Cornell.  I’m sorry,

are you just clarifying that the legislature could not

have passed such legislation?

THE WITNESS:  I don’t --
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  As reflected -- wait --

as reflected in that last bullet?

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is that your testimony?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, I believe that it is not

in our prerogative to do that.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. And now let me go to the bullet from

the second -- the second to the last bullet.

A. Yeah.  Uh-huh.

Q. In the last 5 and 1/2 years since the

comprehensive plan was enacted, has the Rockland County

legislature amended the sanitary code to establish -- I’m

sorry, I’m going to rephrase.  Withdraw that, rephrase.

Has the Rockland County legislature amended the county

sanitary code to enforce odd/even day watering year-round

and time-of-day restrictions to relieve peak day demand?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Before you answer, how is

that different from asking if they’ve passed any

legislation?  Wouldn’t that have included the bullet that

you’re talking about too when she answered?

MR. ALESSI:  Okay, Your Honor, I would --
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, would --

MR. ALESSI:  The answer is yes to your

question.  I was just trying to get it broken down because

we had confusion on the record on the bullets but if

that’s clear to Your Honor, I will move on.  There was a

lot of discussion and I just wanted to key in on the

bullet, the second to the last one, and ask that question

for that bullet.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So let me clarify -- let

me ask a clarifying question.  When you said that the

legislature had not passed any legislation, you are

referring to everything in each of these bullets.  There

has been no legislation that would have enacted anything

under each of these bullets, understanding that you’ve

clarified that some of those would not have been possible

for the legislature to pass legislation because you said

it was DOH.  But, when you said they had not passed any

legislation, do we need to go bullet by bullet or is that

-- does your no cover that, cover all of the bullets?

THE WITNESS:  Mr. Alessi had directed my

attention to the last two bullets and those were the ones

I was referring to.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, so that --

MR. ALESSI:  That’s the issue, Your Honor,
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and I’ll proceed as efficiently as I can with Your Honor’s

-- I’m sorry, and I’ll proceed as efficiently as I can,

but that was my concern for the record.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  All right, go ahead.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Mrs. Cornell, leaving out the last

bullet on page 275, under water conservation, in the 5 and

1/2 years since this comprehensive plan was enacted, has

the Rockland County legislature enacted any law to

implement these bullets again other than the last one?

A. Maybe I’ll work backwards a little bit

and maybe as I see things -- the Rockland County Sewer

District has been working on reuse --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m sorry.  The

question was, have they passed any laws.  Can you start

with a yes or no and then if you need to explain --

THE WITNESS:  Then I’ll have to read

them all.  Just a second.  Yes, for the first one.  We’ve

passed legislation on outreach to promote wise water

usage.  Working -- collaboration with towns and villages

to develop and implement water conserving policies.  This

is going on as we speak, mostly through the water task

force.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  But did the

legislature pass a law to that effect?

THE WITNESS:  No, no.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So the third

bullet.

THE WITNESS:  No.  The repair of

distribution systems to minimize -- no, that doesn’t

really fall within our purview as far as I know.  Rain --

MR. ALESSI:  Just so the record’s

clear, so that’s a no, there’s no law -- without the

reason, just the answer no.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Correct.

THE WITNESS:  No.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No.

THE WITNESS:  Rainwater harvesting to

provide water for irrigation or for groundwater recharge.

No.  The reuse of recycled wastewater is being pursued by

the Rockland County Sewer District Number 1.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  But no legislation.

Or is there legislation?  I’m sorry.

THE WITNESS:  No, there’s no

legislation.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Promoting water
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efficient landscaping, which uses drought tolerant plants,

it’s being promoted but there’s no legislation.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And then use of --

THE WITNESS:  Use of gray water, I

don’t know.  I don’t know how to respond to that.  I don’t

know, I don’t think there has been any legislation, but as

I say, there are other entities that really work with gray

water and with recycled wastewater.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Thank you

very much.

THE WITNESS:  You’re welcome.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Have you or any member of the

legislature asked the County Board of Health to amend the

sanitary code?

A. Yes.

Q. Has that happened?

A. Yes.

Q. In what regard has the sanitary code

been amended to enforce odd/even day watering year-round

and time-of-day restrictions to relieve peak demand?

A. It has not occurred.  And as I said, I

wouldn’t have wished to have odd/even days.  It’s too much
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water.

Q. So in light of your last answer, did

you move to have the Rockland Tomorrow, Rockland County

Comprehensive Plan amended to make that change or did you

just assert your individual opinion that you just did, in

that this didn’t happen?

A. It hasn’t happened.

Q. Did you move to change the Rockland

Tomorrow, Rockland County Comprehensive Plan to have that

second to last bullet on page 275 removed.

A. Mr. Alessi, I didn’t write the

comprehensive plan.  I initiated the hiring of

consultants.  I worked on a committee.  There are many

things in there that, in the comprehensive plan, that I

absolutely love and some things that I had nothing to do

with writing.  So I’m not sure what you’re saying.  No,

the comprehensive plan is not something that gets amended.

It is something that is given to put forth, given to towns

and villages for their guidance because the county doesn’t

have control over many of these things, in towns and

villages.  And generally speaking, the -- probably there

would be another county comprehensive plan in some years

from now, where the whole thing is probably not amended,

but redone.
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Q. Have you asked the Board of Health for

more stringent measures than odd/even?

A. We have two members of the County

Department of Health who work with us on our task force.

And we have been doing a lot with water, of course, that’s

what we do, and we have been talking about things like

drought models, which we developed, and have not

specifically talked about any legislation on odd/even, but

legislation will be coming, I can assure you, but it won’t

-- if I have some strong things to say, it won’t be

odd/even, it would be no more than twice a week.

Q. And have you asked the Board of Health

to --

A. Lawn watering, I’m sorry.  I just

wanted to be clear.  Lawn watering, I’m talking about.

Q. And based on your last answer for what

your preference is, in the last 5 years have you asked the

Board of Health for those, what you consider more

stringent measures?

A. No, I didn’t even know that -- I

didn’t know enough about it until these recent years with

the task force.

Q. If you could please turn to page 291

of the County Comprehensive Plan.  And I’m going to ask
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you please to draw your attention to recommendation number

1, develop a comprehensive county water policy.  When the

comprehensive plan was under consideration, do you recall

whether it was criticized because it lacked a water

management plan?

A. When the comprehensive plan was

published?

Q. When it was under consideration,

published, set out --

A. Yeah.

Q. -- for the public to comment --

A. No.

Q. -- do you recall whether the plan was

criticized because it lacked a water management plan?  The

question is, do you recall?

A. There might have been from members of

the public.

Q. But do you --

A. We did a lot -- I --

Q. You don’t recall specifically.

A. I don’t recall specifically but we did

a huge amount of outreach and people had a lot of opinions

about a lot of different subjects, so it’s possible.

Q. All right.  Now, as a member of the

1081



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

county legislature and the task force, you attempt to

communicate the legislature and the task force business

and proceedings to the public, correct?  Just as you

mentioned in your --

A. Correct.

Q. -- last answer.

A. Right.

Q. And you communicate with members of

the media and the press in order to disseminate that

information to the public?

A. Yes.

Q. You have a person named Laura

Incalcaterra on the staff --

A. Right.

Q. -- of the task force.  Correct?

A. No.

Q. Or, I’m sorry, it’s the staff of --

A. The Rockland County legislature.

Q. Rockland County legislature.  And

Mrs., Ms. Incalcaterra’s work relates to communication

with the public?

A. Yes.  She does, for the legislature.

Q. And does her communication relate --

could it include and does it include water matters?  Could
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include anything, right?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. All righty.  In your capacities, do

you regularly read newspaper articles related to water

resources management and conservation in Rockland County?

A. I try to do as much reading as I can.

Q. Before she was employed by the

legislature, Ms. Incalcaterra worked as a reporter for the

Journal News, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And the Journal News is one of the

largest general circulation newspapers in Rockland County,

correct?

A. Probably the only.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay.  Now we have an

exhibit that we would like to have marked as, I guess we

were up to 52.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.  Mark it for

identification as 52.  Mister --

MR. ALESSI:  I got it.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

A. Now Mrs. Cornell, if you could, I just

want to draw your attention to the -- and do you, you see
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that.  And I want to refer you to the fact that Ms. Laura

Incalcaterra is identified on the first page as the author

of this article, correct?

A. I see that.  It says --

Q. Okay.

A. Yeah, uh-huh.

Q. Do you recall reading this article on

or about the date that it was published in March 1, 2011?

A. Probably.  I don’t really remember.  I

certainly -- now that I see it, I certainly am aware that

people had different problems with different parts of the

comprehensive plan, so this was a group that did.  Many

people were thrilled when the water task force was created

because that is really the entity that is going to move

ahead on a comprehensive water plan.

Q. Now you talk about the task force

created, but the date of this article is March 1, 2011 and

the task force wasn’t created until --

A. Right.

Q. -- 2014.  So when you’re saying --

A. I’m saying that --

Q. -- at this time.

A. I’m saying that I almost, I almost

know who these people are and some of them are actually on
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the task force helping to create the comprehensive water

plan.

Q. Now is March 1, 2011 that’s on this

article, the same date as the comprehensive plan that was

adopted by the county legislature, and that is Exhibit 51,

we were just talking about?

A. It has the dates on the front, Mr.

Alessi.

Q. And did you -- do you see the first

paragraph of the article I’m on now, 52, where it states

that a coalition of environmentalists is asking the

Rockland County legislature to postpone its vote scheduled

for tonight on adopting a new comprehensive plan for the

county?

A. Oh.  Uh-huh.

Q. And do you see that the article refers

to a letter sent by the Rockland Coalition for Sustainable

Water, which argued that the proposal that was -- the then

proposed comprehensive plan lacks a water management

policy?

A. This is on the second page in the

middle?  Is that what you’re reading from?  The coalition

wants the legislature -- yes, I see that.

Q. Okay.  Do you remember receiving the
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letter that was referred to, there on Exhibit 52?

A. I don’t remember receiving it, but if

it says that a letter came, then I’m sure it did.

Q. And then the article goes on to state

that the letter from the Rockland Coalition for

Sustainable Water criticized the legislature for failing

to include a sustainable water management policy and says

that it is not an oversight, but rather a carefully

considered decision to defer difficult choices.  You see

that?

A. I do.

Q. And if you turn to the second page of

the article, it says that you stated that the vote on the

comprehensive plan, quote, was likely to proceed but that

legislators would try to address any concerns people had,

end quote.  Correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Do you recall making that statement at

that time?

A. I think I did.

Q. Now if you could please turn back to

the resolution that we were talking about earlier, Hearing

Exhibit 48.  Do you have Exhibit 48, the resolution we

were talking about earlier?  I know you have a lot of
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papers in front of you.

A. I don’t know what -- did it have a 48

on the front?

Q. Yours --

A. What is the --

Q. -- may not have.

A. What was it?

Q. It’s that resolution --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  It’s the June 17,

2014 resolution.  It starts with page 618.  It has who it

was introduced by.  It says amended referral number 4124,

and then resolution number 296 of 2014.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, we’d be happy

to give her another copy --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  -- if that would

facilitate matters.  Mrs. Cornell, we’ll just give you

another copy.

THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  Oh, okay.

Oh, we’re back to this one.  Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. And Ms. Cornell, maybe just for ease,

if you would write at the top, Exhibit 48, and then we’ll
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have that one handy.  If you could go to page 619 of

Exhibit 48.  And look at the first whereas clause on the

top of page 619.  It states that, quote, conservation

measures shall be instituted, shall be instituted, as

described in Rockland Tomorrow -- and that’s the

comprehensive plan, right -- to reduce demand to create

the necessary buffer, while developing the comprehensive

plan that meets the water supply of the next generation,

end quote.  Is that what it says?

A. It does.

Q. However, the two conservation measures

described on page 275 -- now we’re going to go back to the

comprehensive, let’s go back to 275.  That’s Exhibit 51.

And I’m just going to refer to one bullet under water

conservation, okay?  So I’m going to withdraw my question

and just say, the conservation measure on page 275

represented in the second to last bullet, beginning with

amendment of the county sanitary code, has not been

instituted in furtherance of the resolution Exhibit 48.

Is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Were you the chair -- excuse me.  When

you were the chair of the Rockland County legislature, did

you, on occasion, give annual addresses to the
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legislature?

A. Oh yes, every year.

MR. ALESSI:  Going to mark the next

exhibit.  I believe this may be 53.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.  We will mark

this for identification as Exhibit 53.  Wait, hold on.  I

believe it’s 53.

MR. ALESSI:  It is.  Okay.  Your

Honor, this exhibit represents minutes of the legislative

session that occurred on January 3, 2013, and that can be

derived from the very top of the first page and the

underline in the second line.  And the minutes include the

text of Mrs. Cornell’s annual address to the legislature

that starts on page 4, so this document is a 19-page

document with regard to the notice of meeting containing

that information with regard to Rockland County

legislature.  And we’re specifically now going to go to

the annual address to the legislature of Mrs. Cornell that

begins on page 4.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Ms. Cornell, do you have that

location?  Page 4.

A. I -- yes, I -- no, I’m reading some

1089



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16-W-0130 - October 7. 2016 - Suez Water

other things that look really wonderful.

Q. Okay.

A. Just remembering.

Q. Could I direct your attention to --

A. To page.

Q. -- page 4.

A. Page 4.  Okay.

Q. And if you could just flip through --

my first question’s going to be generally, just is, if

pages 4 through 8 represent the totality of your address

to the legislature that day for your annual address.

A. Yes, I’m glad it’s not longer.

Q. If you could, please, turn to page 7

of Exhibit 53.  Second full paragraph that begins with

another priority.

A. Okay.

Q. And there it says, and I’m quoting,

another priority for 2013 is to draft a water conservation

plan, a key component of the Rockland County Comprehensive

Plan.  Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. So in the 22 months between the

enactment of the conservation plan in March of 2011, and

this address represented in Exhibit 53, the County
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legislature had not drafted the, quote, comprehensive

county water policy, end quote, recommended in the

comprehensive plan.  Correct?

A. That’s true.  And if I could just

correct the start of your question, you said county

conservation plan instead of county comprehensive plan.

Q. I had actually said comprehensive

county water policy.  Did I get that wrong?

A. It sounded like -- but in any event,

yes.  The answer to that is we did not enact anything in

that period of time.

Q. And you were the chair of the

legislature for the entire period between the enactment of

the comprehensive plan on March 1, 2011, and the giving of

this address on January 3, 2003, correct?  I’m sorry,

2013.  I’ll repeat that.  You were the chair of the

legislature for the entire period between the enactment of

the Comprehensive Plan Rockland Tomorrow --

A. Right.

Q. -- on March 1, 2011 and the giving of

this address on January 3, 2013.  Correct?

A. I was the chair of the legislature.

Yes.

Q. Now turning to the next sentence of
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A. Yes.

Q. And then the next sentence states, the

students explored the issues and searched across the

country for similar communities that have found practical

remedies and based on their study, the students recommend

that new ordinances, while likely appropriate, must be

tied to education and incentive programs that will lead to

voluntary citizen engagement.  You see that?

A. I do.

Q. And after you stated that new

ordinances are likely appropriate, did the Rockland County

legislature enact any ordinances mandating water

conservation measures?

A. No.  I think I answered that before.

But they did not.  However, many of these remedies that

were explored and given by the students at the Columbia

Development Workshop have been used in -- tied to

1092
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education and incentive programs leading to voluntary

citizen engagement.  That very same group is going to be

working with the task force, has already started working

with the task force as we move forward.

Q. And then on -- skipping down to the

first sentence of the next paragraph of your address, you

stated that the legislature’s environmental committee will

explore creation, and I’m emphasizing explore creation, of

potentially odd/even watering ordinances, even in times of

abundance, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And now those odd/even day watering

ordinances are the ones that were discussed in the March

2011 comprehensive plan as a potential water conservation

measure, correct?  That’s what they’re referring to?

A. That’s what they’re referring to, that

the legislature’s environmental committee will explore

ordinances.

Q. So 22 months after the legislature had

enacted the comprehensive development plan, it had still

not yet begun exploring the creation of these ordinances.

Is that correct?

A. Not exactly.  I think there has been

exploration.  But at this point, no action because of the
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importance of getting community support and understanding

for what is to be enacted.  If one doesn’t have community

support, it becomes a negative, and a difficult time.  We

have had other kinds of situations working -- it’s not

really the same thing, but other kinds of things that work

very well once you get the community to understand what’s

being -- what’s at stake and what’s being asked of them.

Q. If you could please -- we’re going to

switch gears now.  And we’re going to go back to page --

we’re going to go to page, back to page 22 of the

Commission’s December 18, 2015 order adopting alternative

demand supply strategies and abandoning Haverstraw

project.  I’ll give you a moment to grab that.

A. Yes, I have it.

Q. If you could go on page 22 at the top

of the page.

A. Okay.

Q. There the Commission states, at the

top of the page, that both the company and the task force,

quote, recognize that local government action may be

necessary to realize the full potential benefits of

conservation.  Some measures are beyond the company’s

authority and this Commission’s jurisdiction can only be

instituted by local governments acting pursuant to their
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own authorities.  Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Now if you could please turn to page

3, I’m going to ask you -- now go to your direct

testimony.  Page 3, lines 6 to 9.

A. Yes, I have it.

Q. There you state that you have worked

with the task force to develop an aggressive conservation

plan that would be a model for New York State, correct?

A. Yes, is this down at the bottom, did

you say?

Q. I’m sorry.  This is --

A. On page 3?

Q. Page 3.

A. Direct testimony?

Q. Direct testimony.

A. Okay.  Just --

Q. Lines -- if you go to line 6.

A. Oh, okay.

Q. I’ll read it --

A. Yeah, okay.

Q. -- verbatim.

A. Yeah, I see it.

Q. Furthermore I have led the Rockland
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County water task force in our response to calls from the

PSC, et cetera.  Do you see that?

A. Yep.

Q. And then if you could turn to page 7,

lines 8 through 9 of your direct testimony.

A. Yes.

Q. You state, consequently, the first

priority of the task force, but far from the only one, but

it’s the first priority, is to develop a comprehensive

conservation plan for the County of Rockland.  Correct?

A. Yes, it is correct.

Q. And the task force was created, you

said, almost 2 and 1/2 years ago in June of 2014.

Correct?

A. Yes, that’s correct.

Q. And development of a water

conservation plan was identified 5 and 1/2 years ago as

recommendation number one that we discussed on page 291 of

the county’s comprehensive plan, correct?  And that’s

Exhibit 51.

A. Right.

Q. Now 2 and 1/2 years after the creation

of the task force, and 5 and 1/2 years after the enactment

of the Comprehensive Plan Rockland Tomorrow, has the
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county created a water conservation plan?

A. The county has not created a water

conservation plan and as I mentioned before, it is

expected that because of the proposal that was sent to the

state and put into the state budget, that when that money

arrives, we will be able to hire a consultant.  Without

funding, we cannot contract with a consultant.  And we

have not had the funding to be able to do this.

Everything is done with volunteers and it’s quite amazing

what we have accomplished.  And I have a whole list of

those things that I’m sure you don’t want to hear because

it’s getting late, but a great many impacts have been made

already in terms of public education, demonstration

projects, green infrastructure projects, et cetera.  So

the answer to your question is that as soon as we receive

our funding and are able to contract with a consultant, we

will be getting our conservation plan on the way.

Planning.

Q. Mrs. Cornell, you mentioned funding.

The Rockland County budget is approximately 600 million

dollars, is it not?

A. Yes.

Q. And the legislature controls the

expenditure of that 600 million dollars, correct?
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A. No.

Q. As a member of the legislature, do you

have a voice in the expenditure of the 600 million

dollars, either in the creation of the amount or the

expenditure of it?  Do you have a voice as a legislator?

A. We vote on resolutions that come to

us, or a budget that comes to us from the county

executive.  And so that’s our role.  We do set policy and

the issue of funding, if you want me to discuss the

funding of the task force, I’d be more than happy to

explain to you how we do that.

Q. That wasn’t my question.  But just to

clarify, the county has a budget of 600 million dollars,

correct?

A. Something like that, yes.

Q. Thank you.  Approximately 600 million.

Now with respect to your direct testimony, if you could

turn to page 20, lines 5 to 7.  Lines 5 to 7, it states

the task force --

A. Yes.

Q. -- is fully cognizant of the measures

that can be taken on our end and we are working diligently

through our conservation committee to lay the groundwork

for municipal commitment to water sense and gradually to
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watering ordinances.  Now you stated to the assembly, did

you not, back in 2008 in your address that we were

discussing in Hearing Exhibit 50, that Rockland County

needed to, quote, seek out ways to reduce our water

consumption as part of an effort to preempt a water-

related crisis.  You remember that discussion?

A. Mm hmm.

Q. And mandatory water conservation use

restriction laws were identified as a possible solution to

Rockland County’s water supply problems in the 2001

comprehensive plan.  Correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And they were identified in your 2013

annual address?  Correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And they were identified in the

Commission’s, Public Service Commission’s 2015 order,

correct?

A. That’s correct.

Q. Now you’re testifying here that the

task force is only gradually working toward water

ordinances.  Correct?  Let me rephrase that.  Now you’re

testifying that the task force is working gradually

towards watering ordinances, correct?
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A. No.  You misread that.  The task force

has been working with, through our conservation committee,

by meeting with town and village boards and explaining to

them the importance of municipal commitment to water sense

projects.  And all of these municipalities will gradually

be moving to watering ordinances.  This is not about the

County of Rockland.  This is ab -- because the County of

Rockland has actually already jointed as a water sense

promotion partner.  But this is about meeting with all the

municipalities, there’s something like 13 villages and 5

different townships.

Q. Your -- Miss Cornell, I don’t know if

you read, you’re reading the same line as I am, so I just

want to be clear.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, she’s reading

the same line and that is what it says.  If you, if you

look, it says they’re working diligently through our

conservation committee to lay the groundwork for municipal

commitment to water sense and to gradually -- and

gradually to watering ordinances.  So are you -- it sounds

like you’re reading it as the task force is moving

gradually to watering ordinances.  And I think she, well,

she did provide clarification on that point.

MR. ALESSI:  I was just looking at the
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task force, working diligently through our conservation

committee and I wanted to understand what conservation

committee she is referring to there.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Go ahead.

THE WITNESS:  The conservation

committee of the task force with volunteers has been --

has been going to town and village board meetings,

providing information and asking each of them, and several

of them have already done this, joined the water sense

partnership, which is a national movement, I guess you

might say, and that’s what it means.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. Right.

A. They’ve been doing that and with the

idea that each of these municipalities will, over time,

because each of them is an individual entity, will move to

watering ordinances.  And hopefully when.

Q. I’m sorry.

A. That’s okay.

Q. I just want to make sure I was

following that.

A. Okay.  That’s enough.  I said enough.

Q. If you can go to your direct
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testimony, page 17, lines 21 through 23.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. There you –- are you there, at that

line, lines 21 through 23?

A. Yes.

Q. There you state that while watering

ordinances are not within the company’s purview, there is

plenty of opportunity to work to curb outdoor seasonal

discretionary use by enlisting the cooperation of the

public and providing accurate information to prevent

overwatering, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And then further down on lines 24

through 25 of your direct testimony, you state that the

company has not taken advantage of all those opportunities

and has addressed this important element most passively

and marginally, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Wouldn’t a county law or ordinance on

that outdoor seasonal use be substantially more effective

in curbing outdoor seasonal discretionary usage than the

company merely providing information to the public on

overwatering?
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A. I think that to have a successful

conservation plan, it has to involve all elements of the

community.  It certainly needs to involve the company that

provides water to 90 percent of the residents and

businesses of the county.  There are many things that the

company can do in terms of -- we’ve talked about some of

them, which has to do with non-revenue water and other

kinds of conservation programs.  Many people find that the

website that the company offers has no real information or

incentives for people to learn about conservation

practices.  They compare the bills to Orange and Rockland

bills, which always come with very informative kinds of

flyers.  I -- it’s really -- it’s not about who does what

because everybody has to do something different, depending

upon what they are.  The private company has

responsibilities, government has responsibilities, and

when you have committees of volunteers, then you do the

best you can and they have been absolutely amazing from

the task force in taking time after work and weekends and

doing all of this work, so that’s really all I can say

except that I’m so thrilled that we have the funding that

we’re going to be able to actually create that

comprehensive plan.

MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, I just have a few
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more questions and I’m hopeful that I can finish them in 5

minutes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALESSI:

Q. With regard to what we were just

speaking about, namely what you’re asking the county -- or

excuse me, the company to do on page 17, lines 21 through

23 of your testimony, aren’t you effectively asking the

rate payers to pay for the work on overwatering that the

county can do much more cost effectively than the company

can if the county would enact a law or an ordinance on

overwatering?

A. As I’ve said, I don’t think it’s

either/or, the county will do its part, it has done a

great deal by creating the task force, bringing in

volunteers to do so many, many things, reaching out to the

towns and the villages, and we expect that the company

will do its part in a lot of ways.  I happen to think that

non-revenue water is a big issue, it’s an economic issue

and it -- we need to look at it as something that is --

benefits the whole community when we get that -- when that

gets under control.  And yes, the lawn watering ordinances

will help but so will the education of the public.
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Q. Mrs. Cornell, I will ask you whether

you agree or disagree with this statement.  Has the county

of Rockland legislature -- well let me rephrase that.  I’m

going to ask you if you agree or disagree with this

statement.  The Rockland County legislature has been

kicking the conservation can down the road for at least

five years since the enactment of the comprehensive

development plan Rockland Tomorrow.  Do you agree or

disagree with that statement?

A. I disagree.

MR. ALESSI:  That’s all the questions I

have for Mrs. Cornell at this moment.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  Mr. Simeti,

do you want to talk with your witness to see if you have

any re-direct?

MR. SIMETI:  Yes, I -- very briefly, Judge.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I’m actually going take a

2-minute break.  I’ll be right back.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, thank you for the

time.

(OFF THE RECORD)
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the record.

THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

(ON THE RECORD)

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, after conferring

with Ms. Cornell, we do not have any re-direct.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, thank you very

much.  Witness Cornell, I want to thank you again for

making yourself available and you are excused.  Have a

wonderful weekend.

MRS. CORNELL:  Thank you very much.

MR. SIMETI:  Thank you.

MRS. CORNELL:  Your Honor, appreciate that.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You guys are not excused

yet.  Don’t get excited.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Ms. Cornell.  I

know it was a long process.  I appreciate you going all

the way through it.

MRS. CORNELL:  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So my proposal is to deal

with the hearing exhibits, the table of content

discussion, whether or not we need post-hearing briefs,

oh, and transcript corrections, that’s all I have on my

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, let’s go back on
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list.  Is there anything else?  Go ahead.

MR. SIMETI:  Your Honor, I can –- Your

Honor, I can provide the testimony --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Testimony!  Perfect.

MR. SIMETI:  -- of the witness to the

stenographer.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you only have one

copy?  The look on your face tells me yes.

MR. SIMETI:  I can do a second -- I can do

a second, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. SIMETI:  Thankfully the WMC health.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, we all set?  Okay.

We marked for identification today exhibits 44 through 53.

Are there any objections to moving any of those into

evidence at this time?  Hearing –- should I give you more

time, or?  Okay, I haven’t heard any objection.

MR. ALESSI:  No objection, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. FITZGERALD:  No objections.

MR. DOWLING:  No objection, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Simeti?

MR. SIMETI:  No objection, Your Honor,

thank you.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Mr. Dichter?

MR. DICHTER:  No objection.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay, thank you.  So

therefore we will move into evidence.  The exhibits were

marked as 44 through 53 are now moved into evidence.  As I

indicated, we also have a few other pieces of business to

attend to.  The first, I’ll deal first with transcript

corrections.  Often we offer the parties the opportunity

once the transcripts come in to provide corrections.  I

just wanted to talk quickly about the procedure for that,

thinking that I could give parties maybe, I don’t know, 3

business days.  Does that sound reasonable?  To just email

to me -– well, yes, send me a letter or –- send me a

letter indicating what the corrections you believe should

be made to the transcripts and we’ll deal with that in

that manner.  I also wanted to give the parties the

opportunity to discuss whether they desire to provide

hearing briefs for my –- just so you know, I’m thinking

that there really only needs to be one round of briefing

in this case given that we’ve done testimony both initial

and responsive post J.P.  I’ll give parties an opportunity

to be heard if they disagree, but I think that is a

reasonable approach here but I’m open to hearing any

objections or concerns about that.
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MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, if I could be

heard on that, for the company.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yes.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, two points of

clarification.  First would be, when you said a letter on

corrections, were you looking for a formal letter or an

email identifying the corrections?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You can do a more

informal email but just make sure you circulate it to

everyone in case --

MR. FITZGERALD:  We will do that, thank

you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- people disagree.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Now on the matter of the

hearing briefs, Your Honor, we –- the company would

definitely support having the hearing briefs and as the

entity here that is presenting or one of the entities

presenting in J.P., we also believe we should have the

opportunity for a reply brief to respond to any other

issues that happen to be raised in the initial briefs.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Anyone else want to be

heard with respect to that?

MR. DOWLING:  Your Honor, staff would

support the company’s position.
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MR. DUTHIE:  Oddly enough, the municipal

consortium will support the company’s position.

MR. DICHTER:  We have no objection and join

in as well.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Wait, what?  You have no

objection and you join in to what, supporting the two

briefs?

MR. DICHTER:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. SEMITI:  The county will take the same

position as the others.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Everyone wants two

briefs?  Okay.  So let me think about that for a minute

and in the meantime, there was a table of contents for

briefs that was circulated by staff counsel, correct?  Did

everyone have an opportunity to look that over?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, Your Honor.  And I’ve

provided Mr. Dowling with a few small suggestions.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Mr. Dichter?

MR. DICHTER:  I have looked at it but I did

not provide Mr. Dowling any suggestions as of yet.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And company counsel?  Oh,

I’m sorry, Mr. Simeti.  You disappear and then I figure

you’re gone.  But you did not provide any additions?
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MR. SIMETI:  Yes.  I did not.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you wish to provide

any?

MR. SIMETI:  No.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  Mr. Dichter, do

you wish to provide any?

MR. DICHTER:  I need a clarification, I

guess.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Do you have this?

MR. DICHTER:  I do.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.

MR. DICHTER:  In the -- I have no objection

to the table of contents and to the headings on each item.

Then he has some A’s and B’s.  If we’re limited to those

A’s and B’s, then I have a problem.  If it’s just subject

headings, that I’m totally fine with.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I --

MR. DICHTER:  For example, under

Haverstraw, it has duration, A, and carrying costs, B.

Another issue might be the costs that were incurred since

March 2013 and whether they should all be reflected.

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, I suggested to Mr.

Dowling that we have a section on used and useful since it

had come up so frequently during the hearings.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Clarify.  Clarify,

please.  Use and useful --

MR. DUTHIE:  On the Haverstraw concept as a

regulatory matter since that was addressed.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Prospectively, you mean?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  That’s what I

wanted you to clarify.

MR. DUTHIE:  I don’t want to re-litigate,

Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  All right.  So, I’m

sorry, you want to add the -- is this the -- how would,

what would we call this hearing?  You have it?  I don’t

want to call it used and useful, though.  What about the

principles that should determ--

MR. DUTHIE:  Regulatory policy?  Regulatory

policy?

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Right.  I like that

better.

MR. DUTHIE:  Okay.

MR. ALESSI:  But, Your Honor, if I could,

if we could have a demarcation in terms of time as to what

that applies to, so that we don’t get into briefing on

used and useful, going backwards from what the Commission
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ordered.  So --

MR. DUTHIE:  That’s not -- Robert, that’s

not the intent.

MR. ALESSI:  Okay.  So I just heard the

heading, used and useful policy and that is --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, no, no.  Its

regulatory policy as it applies to the project costs going

forward.

MR. DUTHIE:  Right.

MR. ALESSI:  Very well.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  And what was your

addition, Mr. Dichter?

MR. DICHTER:  Audit of plant costs

subsequent to March 2013.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Good catch.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So I’m actually going to

change -- regulatory policy I think should be A, duration,

B, carrying charges, C, and audit, D.  More so because

that’s how I had room to add them.  It looks like there’s

a suggestion to reorder the system improvement charge and

make that number 7?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes, Your Honor.  I was just

trying to put all the capital projects, you know, in close

proximity in the brief.  That’s all.
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MR. FITZGERALD:  Your Honor, also the

company, I don’t believe, has the version that you’re

looking at.  Exactly that format, so we’re trying to

follow along, I guess, once we reach a conclusion on it.

Mr. Dowling, do you have another copy of that?

MR. DOWLING:  Well, this is, this is, yeah,

I’m working on it.

MR. FITZGERALD:  Okay.  Thank you.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  What was the goal in

moving that?

MR. DUTHIE:  Your Honor, I thought it made

sense to just have all of the capital projects at one

location in the brief.  That’s just a simple organization.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I don’t have any

objection.  Does anyone else?

MR. DOWLING:  No, I followed the J.P. table

of contents, but I have no objection to it moving, if you

think it’s --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I actually wanted

to suggest, and maybe the most appropriate place would be

under what’s currently called Rate Plan and Term.  There

seem now to be at least 3 different rate options that are

possible.  I’m just going to call them the non-levelized,

levelized, and Tompkins proposal.  And is there -- it’s
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one Tompkins proposal or 2.  And I’m thinking of the

exhibit that staff prepared.  Was there one?

MR. DUTHIE:  There’s actually 2.

MR. DOWLING:  Mr. Tompkins, I -- based on

the testimony that’s in the record, there were 2

proposals.  And he seemed to be supporting both of them.

MR. DUTHIE:  And there’s a Peterson

proposal and a Duffy proposal.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  You have to use your

microphone.  Peterson proposal and Duffy proposal?  With

respect to how the rates --

MR. DUTHIE:  The recovery, with respect to

the time period and the interest rates.  And I still owe

everyone.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, no, no.  This is -- I

don’t -- this isn’t time period and recovery of rates.

I’m going back to the initial question, I guess, of should

the rate plan be a, just what staff -- what the J.P.

presented as the -- the first option was non-levelized,

and then the second option was levelized and then Mr.

Tompkins had one where you used the qualified New York

manufacturing credit to reduce the first and second rate

years and then I’m not completely sure I understand the

fourth one.  I think --
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MR. DUTHIE:  That was Peterson’s, David

Peterson’s plan was to remove the accumulated equity

component of the AFUDC rate, which was worth about 4 or 5

million dollars and then to amortize the balance over 20

years.  And he used the long-term rate --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  That’s -- I’m sorry.  Is

that for Haverstraw though?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yeah.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  No, I’m talking about

overall.

MR. DICHTER:  Talking about the

levelization.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Before you get to that.

MR. DUTHIE:  Oh, I’m sorry.  I’m sorry.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Before you get to that.

MR. DUTHIE:  No, no, I’m sorry.  Then it’s

just Tompkins.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  That -- what

you’re describing, I think, falls under duration of

recovery --

MR. DUTHIE:  Right.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  -- which we already have

a title for.

MR. DUTHIE:  Sorry.
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A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I actually want to ask

too, is there -- was Mr. Tom -- is there an option where

all of the qualified New York manufacturing credit would

be applied to the first year and non-levelized form to

reduce that amount?

MR. DUTHIE:  Yes.  Yes.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  So --

MR. DUTHIE:  And then he also proposed

taking something like half of it --

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Right.  I think that was

--

MR. DUTHIE:  -- and using the balance to

levelize.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Sorry.  Sorry.  You’re

done.

MR. DUTHIE:  I’m done.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Okay.  I don’t have this

-- I think it was one of the staff exhibits.  Did it have

both of those options?  It was either J.P. 6 or 7, I

believe.

MR. DOWLING:  We had no exhibit that had

Mr. Tompkins’ option on it.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I thought you did.

MR. DOWLING:  No, we went only with
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levelized and non-levelized.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  All right.

MR. DUTHIE:  J.P. 7.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Yeah.  I remember seeing

something that said Tompkins proposal.  And actually, I’m

going to -- I’m going to ask that we go off the record.  I

think it might -- are there any other procedural matters

that I just --

(OFF THE RECORD)

I’m going to go back on the record.

THE REPORTER:  We’re on the record.

(ON THE RECORD)

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  So while we were off the

record, we continued the discussion on table of contents

and decided as follows; that parties will send any

additional headers or headings that they would like to

have added to the document that Mr. Dowling circulated to

him by Tuesday.  If they can do that by -- what time would

work?

MR. DOWLING:  10 o’clock.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  10 a.m.  That would be

helpful.  And then the parties will then have to review

that and I would like a consensus proposal by Wednesday at

11 a.m. from Mr. Dowling.  Thank you.  With respect to the
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briefs, the parties have asked for the opportunity for a

reply brief.  I will grant that request, or I am granting

that request, so I've established an initial briefing due

date for the initial brief on November 10th.  We do have

another day for evidentiary hearings.  The plan is to

request an expedited copy of the transcript of the

evidentiary hearings that will be held on October 27th,

have the initial briefs provided 2 weeks thereafter, which

is November 10th.  I have asked the parties to make sure

that any arguments that they make are -- they cite back to

the record, cite to the evidentiary record where it

supports those arguments, and have indicated that doing a

good job at that will probably require a cite after at

least every other sentence.  With respect to the reply

briefs, I will establish a due date, I believe, of

November 18th, but there will be a 20-page limit, no more

than 20 pages.  All arguments that you know of and that

you wish to make should be presented in your initial

brief.  Do not hold arguments for the reply brief.  I

believe that is a summary, an accurate summary of what we

discussed off the record and I believe that resolves all

of our remaining procedural matters but I will give the

parties opportunity to be heard if there’s anything I

missed.
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MR. ALESSI:  Your Honor, just one item and

I know that’s not going to happen with anybody here, but

assuming hypothetically that someone does not follow your

admonition and arguments show up for the first time in

replies, how would you like that communicated -- is that

something Your Honor will discern and no one should

communicate?  Or is that something that we should

communicate in an email?  Because sometimes it just,

someone, you know, and it gets on to another brief and I

just want to know what Your Honor’s expectation is in that

regard.  Again, I think it’s not likely, but if it does, I

just want to make sure we understand Your Honor’s

protocol.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  I guess it would probably

have to be a motion so that everyone’s aware of it, as

much as I hate to say that.

MR. ALESSI:  Thank you for the

clarification, Your Honor.  Again, I hope it doesn’t

happen.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Is there anything else

that we need to address, and is there anything that I

forgot to summarize on the record with respect to either

the table of contents or the briefing due dates?  I also

should remind parties that you should adhere to the
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MR. ALESSI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

A.L.J. PHILLIPS:  Thank you.  We’re

adjourned.

filing requirements, and by that, don’t use itty-bitty

font or strange margins to effectively exceed at least the

reply brief limit without appearing to do so.  And with

that, I believe that we have covered everything and so

therefore we are adjourned for now but we’ll be back on

October 27th.  Let’s just say 9 a.m.

1121



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

              IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I

have hereunto subscribed my name, this the 17th day

of October, 2016.
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STATE OF NEW YORK

I, JANET AXTON, do hereby certify that the foregoing was

reported by me, in the cause, at the time and place, as

stated in the caption hereto, at Page 770 hereof; that 

the foregoing typewritten transcription consisting of 

pages 770 through 1121, is a true record of all 

proceedings had at the hearing.


